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Earle E. Morris. Jr. was first elected Comptroller General in 1976. He bas been 
reelected to each subsequent term by the South Carolina electorate. Before 
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PAST ... PAST ... FUTURE ... 
DIXI-ANDERSON- . ? . 

South Carolina's present and future are only an extension of our past. As our 
leaders and citizens continue to improve our economic future, we need to 
remember and revere those values and virtues which preceded our time. 

The pictorial theme of this report reviews a time that was but will never be 
a gam. 

As we anticipate a State to be, we should indulge in the nostalgia of earlier 
years. 

We are grateful that Bavarian Motor Works (BMW) is now a part of our 
industrial family. Their first automobile was called Dixi in 1928. 

The Anderson automobile was built in South Carolina between 1915 and 
1926. It earned the title of "the only practical southern automobile." 

The BMW automobile which will be built in this State is not yet named. But 
it will be a South Carolina automobile. 

PAST-PAST-FUTURE 

~r/'~,~-
EARLE E. MORRIS, JR. 
COMPTROLLER GENERAL 



SNAPSHOTS OF THE PAST AND 
GLIMPSES OF THE FUTURE 

There's something about the turn of a new century that seems to energize 
people. 

The twenty-first century, as futuristic as it once sounded, is almost upon us, 
and like a rebirth, it seems to trigger a special sense of mission and destiny 
among Americans. 

Tum-of-the-century South Carolina a hundred years ago was also a time of 
new energy and rebirth. As the twentieth century dawned, our predecessors 
must have also had a keen awareness of their future and the excitement which 
it held for them. 

The pictorial pages of this report convey a visual record of those years 
preceding and subsequent to the turn of the twentieth century in South 
Carolina. They show the faces of people eager to get on in a new world of 
technological and economic achievement. 

They also show people who were making the most of tough times. 

An economy ravaged by war and a political system which seemed in constant 
turmoil had taken their toll on a State which had once been the bellwether of 
the young nation. 

But South Carolinians were joining their counterparts elsewhere in the nation 
in discovering the joys of a new and exciting America. They were venturing 
forth in their newly-bought automobiles and were relegating their horses and 
buggies to farm duties. 
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They were finding vacation places like the seashore and were learning new 
pleasures like golf and horsemanship. They were having installed in their 
homes new gadgets called telephones which could put them in direct, if 
somewhat erratic, contact with a neighbor across town or a relative across the 
State. 

The isolation of rural life was giving way to the adventures of transportation 
and communications, and South Carolinians were in the midst of it all. From 
Abbeville to Myrtle Beach and from Charleston to Greenville, life was being 
made easier and more interesting; people were being brought closer to each 
other. 

Jet airplanes and trips to the moon were still in the distant future, but people 
were understanding the dynamics of change and the excitement of 
anticipation. 

Much has changed over the years: fashion, technology and industry. What 
hasn't changed in a hundred years is the wonderment and enthusiasm which a 
turn of the century brings. It's a moment which brings together a snapshot of 
the past and helps us understand better the foundations on which our present 
and future are built. 
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Before the era of the automobile dawned in South Carolina, early motor vehicles shared existing railroad bridges, 
as does this motorist at Drayton around 1920. 
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Introductory 
Section 

Columbia was a place of policemen on foot and 
horse-drawn equipment for firemen before the 
arrival of the automobile. Looking north 
shortly after noon on this wintry 1904 day, the 
City Hall is to the left. Columbia is greeting 
with its Main Street banner one of America's 
newest attractions, the "Flying Machine." 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

®ffirc nf QTomptrollcr ®cucral 

EARLE E. MoRRIS. JR. 

COMPTROLLER GENERAL 

December 22, 1993 

To the Citizens, Governor and 
Members of the South 
Carolina General Assembly 

30S WADE HAMPTON OFFICE BUILDING 

POST OFFICE BOX 11228 

COLUMBIA. S.C. 29211 

TELEPHONE: 18031 734-2121 

FAX: 18031 734-2064 

It is my pleasure to present to the citizens of South Carolina this 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the State of South Carolina for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 1993. The report provides financial information 
about the State's operations during the 1992-93 fiscal year and describes its 
financial position at the end of that fiscal year. 

Contained in the report is information for the use of all those interested 
in the State's finances, including South Carolina taxpayers, members of the 
General Assembly and directors of the State's executive agencies as well as 
those investors and creditors with whom the State has an ongoing business 
relationship. 

As the Comptroller General of South Carolina, I present these financial 
statements as my representations, and I express confidence that the information 
is accurate in all material respects. The citizens of South Carolina may be 
further assured that this report contains all material facts about the State's 
financial condition and thereby reflects my total commitment to accountability 
to the taxpayers through full public disclosure. 

For the convenience of users, we have divided the report into three 
sections as follows: 

• The Introductory Section, containing this letter of transmittal, 
the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting for the June 30, 1992 report, a list of State officials 
and an organizational chart of State government. 
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• The Financial Section, consisting of the general purpose financial 
statements (combined statements and notes), combining financial 
statements, schedules, and required supplementary information. 

• The Statistical Section, presenting comparative financial data 
and other non-financial data. 

MAJOR INITIATIVES 

For South Carolinians, 1992-93 was a year of restructuring, rethinking, 
and perhaps even the beginning of recovery. 

Revenues and other sources exceeded expenditures and other uses for 
the State's General Fund for the first time since 1987-88, a fact as attributable 
to the State's fiscal restraints as to economic growth. A series of recession
driven appropriation reductions mandated by the Budget and Control Board, 
on which I serve, in both 1991-92 ($128 million) and 1992-93 ($189 million) 
paved the way for this operating surplus. 

South Carolina's unaccustomed brush with fiscal brinksmanship set off 
other actions. Pursuant to constitutional and statutory mandate, the State's 
depleted reserve was increased, and its revenue-projecting methods were 
modified to produce more conservative estimates, recognizing the likelihood 
that annual growth in the foreseeable future is likely to be in the 4% to 5% 
range, rather than the 10% to 11% of earlier years. 

A reform-minded legislature carried out the most significant 
restructuring of State government in almost half a century, consolidating many 
of the State's agencies into cabinet-like departments under gubernatorial 
control during fiscal year 1993-94. The State also initiated efficiency-related 
measures to decentralize some of its administrative authority and to create 
budget strategies based on performance and outcomes rather than expenditure 
history alone. I have proposed a statewide performance audit as a means of 
evaluating and improving the overall effectiveness and efficiency of agency 
operations in the context of diminishing growth potential for future revenues. 

Funding priorities for the State became more sharply focused toward 
health care, public education and corrections. Major legislative initiatives, 
beyond budget and structural issues, addressed public safety, child protection 
and welfare reform. 

South Carolina government has weathered the economic storm of the 
last four years, but its financial future is still one of mixed signals. Job losses 
through the closing of the military installations in Charleston will be severe, 
and a number of significant contingent liabilities loom on the horizon. The 
State, however, seems to have taken some major steps to "weatherize" itself, 
right-sizing and adjusting its operations to cope with leaner times ahead. 
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ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 

Over the last two decades the economy of South Carolina has grown 
faster than that of the rest of the country. Businesses have migrated here from 
all over the world to take advantage of the State's skilled labor force, 
competitive wages, lower-priced land, excellent port facilities, accessibility to 
markets, and in recent years, substantial tax breaks and incentives. Since 1970, 
industry has made $37 billion of investments in plants within the State. 

The State's tourism and retirement industries have also been rapidly 
growing economic sectors over the last two decades. Each year more retirees 
move here to take advantage ofthe area's mild climate, lower cost ofliving and 
special tax breaks for people over 65 years of age. The number of individuals 
receiving Social Security retirement pay has grown at a rapid average annual 
rate of 4.5% since 1970. The annual income from retirement now exceeds an 
estimated $4 billion. 

The coastal areas of the State have emerged as one of the leading 
tourism centers on the east coast, providing even more stimulus to South 
Carolina's growing economy. Personal income in Horry County, which 
includes the Myrtle Beach area, has grown at an extraordinary 11.5% per year 
over the last two decades and now exceeds $2 billion. 

Since 1970, nearly 400,000 people have migrated to the State to take 
advantage of a growing economy and to retire here. Total personal income of 
South Carolina has grown more than six-fold, one-fourth faster than growth in 
personal income in the United States. During the high inflationary 1970's 
personal income grew at an average annual compound rate of 11. 0%, 
compared to a much lower 9.8% nationwide. Even in the lower inflationary 
1980's personal income in South Carolina grew a healthy 8.0% per year, 
compared to a lesser 7.4% nationwide. Employment in South Carolina over 
the last two decades has grown one-fifth faster than in the United States as a 
whole. 

Although South Carolina has been one of the poorer states in the nation 
since the War Between The States, the State is closing the gap in wealth 
between it and the rest of the country. In 1970, per capita income of South 
Carolina was only 74% ofthe national average, but has since increased to 81% 
of the national average. 

The State's economy has recovered from the recession and has begun 
fiscal year 1993-94 on a positive footing. The State's rainy day reserve, which 
had increased to $66.8 million during 1992-93, further increased to 
$100.2 million early in 1993-94. Employment in the State was up by over 
50,000 in October 1993 versus its level in October 1991 during the recession. 
Although statistics for the fiscal year 1993-94 were not yet available from the 
Department of Commerce, the State's Board of Economic Advisors estimated 
that personal income growth was in the healthy range of 5% to 6%. 
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Even though the Federal government's Base Closure and Realignment 
Commission placed the Charleston Naval Base on its list of bases to be scaled 
back by 1996, the outlook for the near term is for continued growth in the 
State's total income in the range of 4% to 5% or more. Construction of the 
new Bavarian Motor Works (BMW) auto assembly plant in Spartanburg 
County has already begun and will offset some of the losses at the Charleston 
Naval Base. There have been other announcements of new plants or additions 
to existing plants in the State which will contribute to the State's continued 
growth. 

The State's Board of Economic Advisors projected that the State's 
Budgetary General Fund revenues for 1993-94 would increase by 4.6% over 
1992-93. Because of the fixed-rate taxes, tax decreases and nonrecurring 
revenues, however, the Board's official revenue estimate reflected a historically 
low 3.5% revenue growth rate. At the end of the first two months of 1993-94, 
Budgetary General Fund revenue collections were ahead of this estimate. 
Accordingly, it is anticipated that actual revenues for 1993-94 will meet or 
exceed the estimate. The Income Tax and Sales Tax, the State's two leading 
sources of revenues, were both healthy, indicating that the State's economy 
was growing as expected. 

FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

Internal Control Structure 

The Statewide Accounting and Reporting System (STARS) is the 
State's budgetary-basis operating accounting system. This double-entry 
system, installed in 1981-82, processes cash and budgetary transactions and 
maintains records for all budgeted funds and some unbudgeted funds. The 
State's higher education institutions and most of the enterprise entities maintain 
separate accrual-basis accounting systems. 

An automated system in the Comptroller General's Office designed to 
allow reporting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP) converts budgetary-basis STARS data into the format presented in 
this report. State agencies which use STARS complete forms at year-end to 
adjust the budgetary-basis balances to conform with GAAP. The Comptroller 
General's Office enters data from these forms as well as from audited financial 
statements for the higher education institutions and most State enterprise 
entities into the GAAP reporting system. 

The State's internal control structure provides reasonable, but not 
absolute, assurance that: 

• Assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or 
disposition 
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• Transactions are executed m accordance with management's 
authorization 

• Transactions are recorded properly to permit the preparation of 
general purpose financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. 

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a 
control should not exceed the resulting benefits. 

Budgetary Controls 

South Carolina's annual Appropriation Act includes legally adopted 
budgets for the Budgetary General Fund and for aggregated Other Budgeted 
Funds. Except for the Retail Sales Tax and selected other taxes, which are 
estimated on a modified accrual basis, the State estimates revenues on a cash 
receipts basis. Appropriations for 1992-93 covered all expenditures deemed 
applicable to that year and paid on or before July 20, 1993. Unexpended 
Budgetary General Fund appropriations lapse unless the Appropriation Act 
specifically authorizes agencies to carry them forward to the next fiscal year. 

State law does not require encumbrance accounting. Accordingly, the 
State does not record encumbrances (except for some higher education 
institutions). The State currently maintains budgetary control for expenditures 
at the level of major object class within each program of each organizational 
unit. Except for accounts of higher education institutions and the Department 
of Highways and Public Transportation, STARS checks to be sure that an 
account has sufficient remaining appropriations before it will charge an 
expenditure to that account. (As a result of legal changes, the Department of 
Highways and Public Transportation is no longer an exception effective on 
July 1, 1993.) Organizational units may request transfers of appropriations 
among major object classes and/or among programs within the same budgetary 
fund. The Budget and Control Board has authority to approve these 
appropriation transfers within certain limits. 

The initial budget appears in the annual Appropriation Act. The 
Budget and Control Board reduces the Budgetary General Fund's 
appropriations during the year if it anticipates a year-end operating deficit. 
Likewise, the State Board of Economic Advisors may recommend and the 
Budget and Control Board may approve revisions of estimated revenues of the 
Budgetary General Fund during the year, if necessary. Such revisions were 
necessary during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1993. 

During June 1993, the General Assembly enacted a Supplemental 
Appropriation Act. The Act required that the first $33.8 million of available 
funds on the budgetary basis of accounting at year-end be reserved (in the 
General Reserve) and that the next $32.5 million be recorded as supplemental 
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appropriations. The Act further authorized the carry-forward of the 
supplemental appropriations to 1993-94. Because sufficient funds were 
available on the budgetary basis, the supplemental appropriations were 
recorded and carried forward to 1993-94. 

State law specifies procedures for processing requested budget changes 
in Other Budgeted Funds and for permanent improvement projects. 

THE REPORTING ENTITY 

The State General Assembly and the Budget and Control Board 
exercise oversight authority over all accounting funds and entities included in 
this report. Members of the Budget and Control Board are the Governor 
(Chairman), the Comptroller General, the State Treasurer, the Chairman of the 
Finance Committee of the Senate and the Chairman of the Ways and Means 
Committee of the House ofRepresentatives. 

The most important element of oversight authority is financial 
interdependency. Other elements of oversight authority include selection of 
governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly 
influence operations and accountability for fiscal matters. 

This report includes all organizational units of the State that are either 
controlled by or dependent upon the State's legislature or constitutional 
officers. Note (1a) in the Notes to the Financial Statements provides a more 
complete description of the State's reporting entity and the criteria used in 
defining it. 

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONS 

The State's general governmental functions include its General and 
Special Revenue Funds. The following sections detail revenues and 
expenditures of the State's general governmental functions. In addition, the 
general governmental functions recorded other financing sources (uses). For 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1993, other financing uses exceeded other 
financing sources by $702.5 million. 

Revenues 

The State's most significant sources of revenue are its 5% retail sales 
tax, its individual income tax (2.50% to 7% tax rates) and Federal grants. The 
following schedule summarizes revenues of the General and Special Revenue 
Funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1993 (expressed in thousands) and the 
amounts (expressed in thousands) and percentages of increases (decreases) in 
relation to prior year revenues: 

15 



State of South Carolina 

16 

Revenues 
Individual income tax .............................. 
Retail sales and use tax ......................... 
Other taxes ............................................. 
Licenses, fees, and permits ................... 
Interest and other investment income ..... 
Federal. .................................................. 
Departmental services ............................ 
Contributions .......................................... 
Fines and penalties ................................ 
Other ...................................................... 

Totals ............................................ 

Licenses, fees, and 
permits (4.3%) 

1992-93 Percent of 
Amount Total 

$1,481,592 21.1% 
1,628,766 23.2% 

983,546 14.0% 
300,699 4.3% 

44,702 0.6% 
2,228,180 31.7% 

153,781 2.2% 
101,242 1.5% 
44,182 0.6% 
52,796 0.8% 

$7,019,486 100.0% 

Revenues 

1992-93 

Increase Percentage 
(Decrease) Increase 

from 1991-92 (Decrease} 
$ 

$ 

94,868 
113,543 
72,510 
81,973 

(10,932) 
87,908 
16,669 
20,010 

572 
9,244 

486,365 

Individual income 
tax (21.1 %) 

6.8% 
7.5% 
8.0% 

37.5% 
(19.6%) 

4.1% 
12.2% 
24.6% 

1.3% 
21.2% 

7.4% 

Licenses, Fees and Permits revenue increased because collections of 
low-level radioactive waste surcharges and environmental fees increased. 

The decrease in Interest and Other Investment Income was a result of 
the decline of interest rates applied to various deposits and investment 
balances. 

Several changes in revenue resulted from changes in the Medicaid and 
Medicare programs. Specifically, the increase in Contributions revenue was 
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due to increases in receipts of Medicaid disproportionate share monies and 
other matching funds. The increase in Other Revenues wa.s due to increased 
refunds of prior-year Medicaid and other program expenditures. The increase 
in Departmental Services was primarily due to an increase in the volume of 
Medicare claims and related reimbursements. 

Expenditures 

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund and 
Special Revenue Funds expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1993, 
(expressed in thousands) and the amounts (expressed in thousands) and 
percentages of increases (decreases) in relation to prior year expenditures: 

Increase Percentage 
1992-93 Percent of (Decrease) Increase 

Ex~enditures Amount Total from 1991-92 {Decrease} 
Current: 

General governmental. ........................... $ 247,452 4.0% $ 13,360 5.7% 
~~~00 ............................................... 254,464 4.1% 13,234 5.5% 
Individual and family services ................. 2,682,162 43.3% 192,841 7.7% 
Administration of justice ......................... 312,961 5.0% 8,473 2.8% 
Resources and economic development. 131,021 2.1% 2,962 2.3% 
Transportation ........................................ 290,740 4.7% 15,783 5.7% 

Capital outlay ........................................... 24,572 0.4% 1,753 7.7% 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement. ............................... 104,316 1.7% 9,778 10.3% 
Interest and fiscal charges ..................... 53,316 0.9% (595) (1.1 %) 

Intergovernmental .................................... 2,096,679 33.8% 63,193 3.1% 

Totals .............................................. $6,197,683 100.0% $ 320,782 5.5% 
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Intergovernmental (33.8%) 

Administration of justice 

Expenditures 

1992-93 

Individual and family 
services (43.3%) 

The increase in Principal Retirement of Debt resulted from a net 
increase in general obligation bonds payable. 

Status of Fund Balances 

GAAP-basis fund balances for the General Fund and Special Revenue 
Funds at June 30 (expressed in thousands) for the last five years were: 

1993 1992 1991 1990 1989 
General Fund 

Reserved ........................................ $153,194 $ 40,649 $ 98,988 $160,278 $193,089 
Unreserved .................................... ~247,475~ ~252,704~ ~252,482~ ~140,568~ ~90,296~ 

Total General Fund ••••••••••••••••••• $ (94,281) $ (212,055) $ (153,494) $ 19,710 $102,793 

Special Revenue Funds 
Reserved ........................................ $ 94,928 $ 103,799 $ 82,260 $ 51,128 $ 36,242 
Unreserved, designated ................. 237,559 252,631 243,989 194,251 126,469 
Unreserved, undesignated ............. 252,663 261,766 253,317 265,422 279,192 

Total Special Revenue Funds •• $585,150 $ 618,196 $ 579,566 $510,801 $441,903 
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The reserved component of fund balance represents amounts legally 
required to be segregated and amounts that cannot be appropriated for future 
expenditure. The unreserved component of fund balance is computed as total 
fund balance less reserved amounts. Even for years in which the total fund 
balance in the General Fund was positive, the unreserved component of fund 
balance was negative because the reserve requirements exceeded total fund 
balance. 

The designated portion of unreserved fund balance reflects tentative 
plans for future use of available financial resources. 

Total fund balance in the General Fund has remained below zero for the 
past three years. I and other State officials have noted this trend with concern. 
We are carefully monitoring tax revenue collections for the 1993-94 fiscal year. 
Whenever revenue collections are determined to be below estimates, estimated 
revenues and appropriations will be revised downward before year-end. We 
believe that this, combined with newly enacted reforms in the budgeting 
process discussed above, will eventually result in a positive fund balance for 
the General Fund. 

PROPRIETARY OPERATIONS 

The Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper) is South Carolina's 
State-owned public power resource. The Public Service Authority (Santee
Cooper) produces and sells electric power to individuals, businesses, electric 
cooperatives and municipal power departments. The Public Service Authority 
(Santee-Cooper) made payments to the State's General Fund of $5.82 million 
during its fiscal year ended December 31, 1992. The distribution to the 
General Fund is based primarily on operating cash flows and mandatory 
reserve requirements. 

There are several other significant proprietary segments of South 
Carolina's State government. The Ports Authority develops and maintains 
State harbors and seaports and handles the commerce through these ports. 
The State Housing Finance and Development Authority provides low-cost 
housing to the State's citizens by issuing bonds/notes and by administering 
Federal contracts and grants. The Education Assistance Authority makes loans 
to eligible students. 

The Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper) and other major 
Proprietary Funds of South Carolina are presented below with highlights of 
segment financial information (expressed in thousands) for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 1993. 
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Operating revenues .... . 
Net income ................. . 
Total assets ................ . 
Total fund equity ......... . 

Public 
Service 

Authority 
(Santee
Cooper) 

$ 546,878 
23,901 

3,515,461 
624,536 

FIDUCIARY OPERATIONS 

Housing 
Authority 

$ 64,465 
4,461 

721,808 
106,745 

Ports 
Authority 

$ 45,335 
4,375 

351,527 
267,389 

Education 
Assistance 
Authority 

$ 19,476 
6,470 

340,815 
63,319 

The most significant of the State's Fiduciary Funds are the five 
retirement systems: The South Carolina Retirement System, the Police 
Officers' Retirement System, the Retirement System for Members of the 
General Assembly, the Retirement System for Judges and Solicitors, and the 
National Guard Pension System. The first four of these systems are funded in 
accordance with actuarially established contribution rates. The National Guard 
Pension System is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. Some key actuarial 
amounts for the systems (expressed in thousands) at July 1, 1992 (latest 
available data), were: 

South Carolina Retirement System ................... . 
Police Officers' Retirement System .................. . 
General Assembly Retirement System ............. . 
Judges' and Solicitors' Retirement System ....... . 
National Guard Pension System ....................... . 

Pension 
Benefit 

Obligation 
$ 11 ,551 ,500 

1,019,900 
28,600 
61,100 
23,300 

Net Assets 
Available 

for Benefits 
(at Cost) 

$ 8,472,300 
870,600 

24,800 
41,400 

Unfunded 
Pension 
Benefit 

Obligation 
$ 3,079,200 

149,300 
3,800 

19,700 
23,300 

In 1993-94, the State plans to begin funding the National Guard 
Pension System in accordance with actuarially established contribution rates. 

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

The State finances many of its major capital needs by issuing bonds. 
Some of this debt is general obligation debt backed by the full faith, credit and 
taxing power of the State. Much of the debt, however, is revenue bonds and 
notes associated with specific State component units. Specific revenue flows 
of particular component units service revenue debt. 

Moody's Investors Service has rated South Carolina's general 
obligation bonds as "Aaa," representing the highest rating awarded. For many 
years, Standard & Poor's also applied its top rating ("AAA") to these bonds. 
From March 1992 through January 1993, however, Standard & Poor's placed 
the State "on CreditWatch with negative implications." On January 29, 1993, 
Standard & Poor's lowered the State's rating on general obligation bonds to 
"AA+." On October 27, 1993, Fitch Investors Service, Inc., announced its first 
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rating of South Carolina's general obligation bonds. Fitch assigned its top 
rating of 11 AAA. 11 

Standard & Poor's has stated that South Carolina must improve the 
structural balance between its revenues and expenditures and must address the 
GAAP accumulated deficit in the Budgetary General Fund in order to regain its 
former 11 AAA11 rating. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1993, the State 
made progress toward those goals. Specifically, the GAAP accumulated 
deficit decreased by $118 million (from $212 million at June 30, 1992, to 
$94 million at June 30, 1993). In addition, the General Assembly enacted 
legislation to limit appropriations in its Budgetary General Fund beginning in 
1994-95. Under the new law, when the General Assembly enacts the annual 
general appropriations bill, appropriations may not exceed the lesser of: 

• Total recurring revenues collected in the preceding fiscal year 
plus seventy-five percent of the revenue growth projected by the 
Board ofEconomic Advisors, or 

• The estimated revenue projected by the Board of Economic 
Advisors. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1993, South Carolina issued 
$110.0 million and retired $100.9 million in general obligation bonds and notes 
payable by governmental funds. The State budgets and pays principal and 
interest on general obligation bonds from current resources of the Budgetary 
General Fund. At June 30, 1993, the Higher Education Funds reported State 
institution general obligation bonds outstanding of approximately 
$43.2 million. 

The State's available legal debt margin at June 30, 1993, was 
$150 million for highway bonds and $16.8 million for institution bonds. State 
law limits annual debt service expenditures rather than directly limiting the 
amount of outstanding debt for general obligation bonds/notes other than 
highway bonds, institution bonds, tax anticipation notes, and bond anticipation 
notes (if any). The annual debt service margin at June 30, 1993, for these 
bonds was $14.4 million. 

Net general obligation bonds/notes outstanding per capita (which 
excludes general obligation bonds payable from Higher Education Funds) is a 
useful indicator to citizens, investors and management of the State's debt 
position. The following table shows these amounts at June 30 for the last three 
years: 

1993 1992 1991 
Net general obligation bonds/notes 

outstanding ................................. . $841 million $832 million $800 million 
Net general obligation bonds/notes 

outstanding per capita ................ . $231 $232 $226 
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The State's higher education institutions and enterprise entities had 
revenue bonds, notes, and certificates of participation of approximately 
$3.7 billion outstanding on June 30, 1993. Bonds, notes, and certificates of 
participation outstanding (expressed in millions) by component unit were: 

South Carolina Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper) .................. . 
South Carolina Housing Authority ....................................................... . 
South Carolina Education Assistance Authority .................................. . 
Various higher education institutions .................................................. . 
Other State component units .............................................................. . 

Total ................................................................................................. . 

$ 

$ 

2,526 
589 
268 
270 

80 
3,733 

During its fiscal year ended December 31, 1992, the Public Service 
Authority advance refunded $158.80 million of its Electric System Expansion 
Revenue Bonds to reduce its total debt service payments over the next twenty
nine years by approximately $28.60 million and to obtain an .economic gain 
(difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old 
and new debt) of approximately $10.27 million. During the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1993, the College of Charleston advance refunded $26.08 million of 
various revenue bonds to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 
fifteen years by approximately $3.87 million and to obtain an economic gain of 
$1.84 million. For additional details, see Note 10 to the Financial Statements. 

CASH MANAGEMENT 

State law requires full collateralization of all State Treasurer bank 
balances. Component units may have collateralization policies that differ from 
those of the State Treasurer. 

Legally authorized investments vary by fund, but generally include 
obligations of the United States and certain agencies of the United States, 
obligations of the State of South Carolina and certain of its political 
subdivisions, certificates of deposit, collateralized repurchase agreements and 
certain obligations ofUnited States corporations. 

As provided by law, the State Treasurer deposits money in a general 
deposit account. The State records earnings of the general deposit account as 
revenue of the General Fund. The Treasurer deposits other monies into 
various special deposit accounts, each of which retains its own earnings. 

State agencies which issue their own checks participate in pooled bank 
accounts. These agencies issue checks against the pooled bank accounts. 
Meanwhile, the State Treasurer invests account balances until the checks clear. 

Investment earnings for the General Fund totaled $38.0 million for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 1993. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT 

The State itself (rather than an insurance carrier) assumes substantially 
all risks associated with: 

• Claims of State employees for unemployment compensation 
benefits 

• Claims of covered employees for workers' compensation benefits 

• Claims of covered public employees for health insurance, dental 
insurance, long-term disability insurance, and group life 
insurance benefits (insurance carriers, however, provide claims 
administration services) 

In addition, the State maintains an Insurance Reserve Fund to cover 
risks associated with: 

• Real property including public buildings, local public schools and 
their contents 

• Motor vehicles and school buses 

• General tort claims that parties may file against the State or its 
political subdivisions 

• Medical malpractice claims that parties may file against covered 
hospitals and employees 

• Business interruptions 

The Insurance Reserve Fund purchases insurance coverage for a 
portion of these risks. 

The State conducts various risk control programs to help minimize 
losses. For example, the health insurance program conducts extensive wellness 
education programs for covered employees that promote development and 
maintenance of healthful lifestyles. 

The State also administers the Patients' Compensation Fund, a public 
entity risk pool reported within the State's Enterprise Funds, which provides 
medical malpractice insurance. 

AUDIT 

An independent audit was performed jointly by the State Auditor and 
the independent certified public accounting firm of KPMG Peat Marwick. 
Again this year, this report includes an unqualified report of the independent 
certified public accountants, the best possible result of the audit process. 
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The audit described above is not intended to meet the requirements of 
the Federal Single Audit Act of 1984. The Single Audit reports for the State 
are issued separately. 

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and 
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 
Financial Reporting to the State of South Carolina for its comprehensive 
annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1992. In 
order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish 
an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR whose contents conform to 
rigorous program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted 
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of 
Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. 

Again this year, the State will submit its CAFR to the Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting program of the GFOA. I 
firmly believe that South Carolina's report for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1993, meets the requirements to receive the Certificate of 
Achievement. 
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One of the best-built early cars in America was one built by the Anderson Motor Company in Rock Hill. The 
company, in business from 1915-1926, ceased operations as mass production methods were developed elsewhere in 
the country. 
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Principal State Officials 

LEGISLATIVE- THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY 
Nick A Theodore, President of the Senate and Lieutenant Governor 
Robert J. Sheheen, Speaker, House ofRepresentatives 

EXECUTIVE 
STATE BUDGET AND CONTROL BOARD 

Carroll A Campbell, Jr., Chairman, Governor 
Earle E. Morris, Jr., Comptroller General 
Grady L. Patterson, Jr., State Treasurer 
John Drummond, Chairman, Senate Finance Committee 
William D. Boan, Chairman, House Ways and Means Committee 

James M. Miles, Secretary of State 
T. Travis Medlock, Attorney General 
Dr. Barbara S. Nielsen, State Superintendent ofEducation 
Major General T. Eston Marchant, Adjutant General 
D. Leslie Tindal, Commissioner of Agriculture 

JUDICIAL 
David Walker Harwell, Chief Justice, South Carolina Supreme Court 

Current Term 
of Office 

1991-1995 
1992-1994 

1991-1995 
1991-1995 
1991-1995 
1992-1996 
1992-1994 
1991-1995 
1991-1995 
1991-1995 
1991-1995 
1991-1995 

1991-1994 

All of the legislative and executive officials are elected by the State's citizens in general elections. Members of the Supreme 
Court are elected by the General Assembly. 
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During 1992-93 the State's General Assembly enacted legislation to restructure State government 
beginning July 1, 1993. The chart above does not reflect this restructuring. 
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Elizabethan England came to The Horseshoe at 
the University of South Carolina in 1900 in the 
institution's dramatization of Shakespeare. 
Almost a century later, Shakespeare is still 
performed outdoors in Columbia's Finlay Park. 
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~Peat Marwick 
Certified Public Accountants 

The Honorable Carroll A. Campbell, Jr., Governor 
and Members of the General Assembly 

State of South Carolina 
Columbia, South Carolina 

~ate nf ~nut4 ~rnltna 

®ffict nf t4t ~ate Aubitnr 

We have jointly audited the general purpose financial statements of the State of South Carolina as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 1993, as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These general purpose financial 
statements are the responsibility of the management of the State. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these general purpose financial statements based on our audit. We did not jointly audit the financial statements of 
certain component units and agencies, which statements reflect the indicated percent of total assets and other debits 
and total revenues, respectively, of the Special Revenue (38% and 15%), Capital Projects (32% and 99%), 
Enterprise (100% and 99%), Internal Service (66% and 82%), Pension Trust (100% and 100%), Higher Education 
(100% and 100%), and Agency (44% of assets and other debits) Funds, General Fixed Assets Account Group (16% 
of assets and other debits), and General Long-Term Obligations Account Group (2% of assets and other debits). 
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors, including the Office of the State Auditor acting 
separately, whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the rrmounts included 
for those component units and agencies, is based solely upon the reports of other auditors. The Office of the State 
Auditor acting separately has examined 27% and 23% of the total assets and other debits and total revenues, 
respectively, of the Higher Education Funds. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the general purpose financial statements 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the State of South Carolina at June 
30, 1993, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary and similar trust funds for the year then 
ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Our joint audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken 
as a whole. The combining financial statements and schedules listed in the accompanying table of contents are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements 
of the State of South Carolina. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the joint 
audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in 
relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. 

Greenville, South Carolina 
December 3, 1993 

Columbia, South Carolina 
December 3, 1993 
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The occasion of its 48th anniversary was time for a flag-bedecked celebration for this Main Street merchant in 
Columbia. The store sold evel)thing from baby buggies to suits to furniture and spanned the years from ante
bellum through Reconstruction in South Carolina. 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Balance Sheet 
ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 
June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

General 

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS 

Cash and cash equivalents ............................................. $ 190,028 

Cash on deposit with fiscal agents .................................. 

Investments .................................................................... 

Receivables, net: 

Accounts ....................................................................... 9,754 

Taxes ............................................................................ 213,778 

Patient and student ....................................................... 

Student loans ................................................................ 

Loans and notes ........................................................... 1,289 

Due from Federal government and other grantors .......... 30,236 

Due from other funds ...................................................... 1,441 

lnterfund receivables ....................................................... 4,084 

Advances to other funds ................................................. 13,548 

Inventories ...................................................................... 10,935 

Property, plant, and equipment, net ................................ 

Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents ........................................... 

Investments .................................................................. 

Loans receivable ........................................................... 

Other ............................................................................. 

Other assets ................................................................... 

Deferred charges ............................................................ 

Amount to be provided for retirement of long-term 

obligations ..................................................................... 

Total assets and other debits ........................... $ 475,093 

GOVERNMENTAL 
FUND TYPES 

Special Capital 

Revenue Projects 

$ 511,697 $ 98,444 

202 

54,101 4,085 

68,527 

53,337 

214,232 36,858 

37,277 6,468 

334 

7,466 

23,913 

408 

$ 971,494 $ 145,855 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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PROPRIETARY FUND 
TYPES 

Internal 

Enterprise Service 

$ 123,259 $ 450,800 

30,132 13,759 

69,001 26,593 

232,467 

32,842 332 

10,358 148 

991 20,111 

1,965 

18,507 

79,317 6,039 

2,350,823 124,982 

372,620 

654,446 

523,181 

9,689 

2,076 870 

619,451 

$ 5,110,653 $ 664,106 



FIDUCIARY 
FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS 

$ 

$ 

Trust and 

Agency 

852,845 

465,298 

11,013,342 

221,375 

41,384 

10,279 

140 

13,008 

80 

5,088 

4,242 

12,627,081 

$ 

$ 

General 

Fixed 

Assets 

1,784,799 

1,784,799 

$ 

$ 

General 

Long-Term 

Obligations 

1,003,416 

1,003,416 

HIGHER 
EDUCATION 

FUNDS 

$ 347,816 

33,904 

7,126 

63,785 

39,007 

124 

61,218 

8,847 

22,169 

2,318,741 

14,498 

$ 2,917,235 

$ 

$ 

State of South Carolina 

Totals 
(Memorandum Only) 

June 30 

1993 1992 

2,574,889 $ 2,290,780 

465,298 446,822 

11,091,339 10,146,490 

392,035 395,287 

323,689 257,204 

63,785 62,738 

271,474 239,487 

98,203 82,283 

353,190 325,226 

88,143 94,762 

6,383 11,458 

39,601 34,391 

142,373 124,991 

6,584,433 6,123,737 

372,620 471,093 

654,446 465,446 

523,181 592,577 

9,689 10,869 

22,094 16,916 

619,451 581,355 

1,003,416 981,801 

25,699,732 $ 23,755,713 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Balance Sheet 
ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS ( Continued) 
June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY, AND OTHER CREDITS 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ...................... . 
Tax refunds payable ..................................................... . 
Intergovernmental payables ......................................... . 
Insurance claims incurred but not reported .................. . 
Due to other funds ....................................................... . 
lnterfund payables ....................................................... . 
Advances from other funds .......................................... . 
Deferred revenues and deferred credits ....................... . 
Deposits ....................................................................... . 
Amounts held in custody for others .............................. . 
Deferred compensation ................................................ . 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets ...................... . 
Notes payable .............................................................. . 
General obligation bonds payable ................................ . 
Revenue bonds payable ............................................... . 
Certificates of participation payable ............................. . 
Capital lease and installment debt obligations 

payable ....................................................................... . 
Commercial paper notes .............................................. . 
Compensated absences payable ................................. . 
Other liabilities, including retainages payable ............... . 

Total liabilities ••••••••••••••..••.•••...•..••.•...•................... 

Fund equity (deficit) and other credits: 
Contributed capital ....................................................... . 
Investment in fixed assets ............................................ . 
Retained earnings: 

Reserved for special purposes .................................. . 
Unreserved ................................................................ . 

Fund balances (deficits): 
Reserved for: 

Pension and other benefits ...................................... . 
Restricted fund balance ........................................... . 
Federal government grants refundable .................... . 
General fund reserve ............................................... . 
Inventories ............................................................... . 
Advances to other funds .......................................... . 
Appropriations to be carried forward ........................ . 
Endowment and similar funds .................................. . 
Long-term loans and notes receivable ...................... . 
School building aid ................................................... . 
Encumbrances ......................................................... . 
Other special purposes ............................................ . 

Unreserved: 
Designated for special purposes .............................. . 
Designated for capital expenditures ......................... . 
Designated for quasi-endowments ........................... . 
Undesignated ........................................................... . 

Total fund equity (deficit) and other 

credits •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••.••••••••••••••••••••.•.•••••••••••• 

Total liabilities, fund equity (deficit), 
and other credits ............................................. . 

$ 

GOVERNMENTAL 
FUND TYPES 

General 

131,867 
291,617 

46,144 

34,549 
737 

8,131 
56,218 

111 

569,374 

66,832 
10,935 
13,548 
57,393 

1,265 
3,221 

(247,475) 

(94,281) 

Special 

Revenue 

$ 239,607 
713 

78,101 

11,470 
1,223 

281 
46,134 

Capital 

Projects 

$ 38,935 

1,435 

988 
16 

654 

8,815 20,182 __ _;..._ 

386,344 62,210 

23,913 
7,466 

53,035 
10,106 

408 

237,559 

252,663 

585,150 

83,645 

83,645 

$ 475,093 $ 971,494 $ 145,855 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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PROPRIETARY FUND 
TYPES 

Enterprise 

$ 180,516 

3,355 
441 

13,436 
25,952 

19 

273 
22,700 
14,066 

3,448,980 

57,744 
121,750 

718 
63,658 

3,953,608 

238,682 

158,979 
759,384 

1,157,045 

$ 5,110,653 

Internal 

Service 

$ 189,704 

114,787 

2,864 
11,208 
13,209 

39,975 

2,733 
85 

374,565 

78,238 

211,303 

289,541 

$ 664,106 



State of South Carolina 

FIDUCIARY Totals 
FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS (Memorandum Only) 

General General HIGHER June 30 
Trust and Fixed Long-Term EDUCATION 
Agency Assets Obligations FUNDS 1993 1992 

$ 203,197 $ $ 1,668 $ 111,433 $ 1,096,927 $ 1,102,762 
884 293,214 279,059 

4 124,249 114,723 
4,302 122,444 128,937 

34,002 6,246 88,143 94,762 
303 1,256 6,383 11,458 

5,557 39,601 34,391 
2,111 29,232 172,872 144,273 
3,704 4,212 8,589 9,092 

684,226 3,788 688,014 603,425 
604,475 604,748 522,598 

22,700 30,252 
19,484 33,550 60,509 

840,795 43,230 884,025 844,955 
231,000 3,679,980 3,498,122 

19,335 19,335 19,740 

3,931 13,168 114,818 123,368 
121,750 124,000 

120,626 55,957 180,034 171,139 
165 32,094 7,041 132,151 83,513 

1,533,071 1,003,416 550,939 8,433,527 8,001,078 

316,920 283,685 
1,784,799 1,973,042 3,757,841 3,532,905 

158,979 146,085 
970,687 896,300 

11,023,597 11,023,597 9,961,902 
143,034 143,034 157,472 
38,818 38,818 36,021 

66,832 
34,848 31,278 
21,014 16,924 
57,393 7,586 

1,362 20,481 21,843 18,980 
54,300 69,959 
13,327 18,378 

1,344 1,344 1,239 
6,871 7,279 6,761 

68,500 306,059 299,857 
83,645 92,433 

24,409 24,409 22,151 
69,051 89,797 164,036 154,719 

11,094,010 1,784,799 2,366,296 17,266,205 15,754,635 

$ 12,627,081 $ 1,784,799 $ 1,003,416 $ 2,917,235 $ 25,699,732 $ 23,755,713 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Individual income ......................................................................... . 
Retail sales and use .................................................................... . 
Other ........................................................................................... . 

Licenses, fees, and permits .......................................................... . 
Interest and other investment income ............................................ . 
Federal .......................................................................................... . 
Departmental services ................................................................... . 
Contributions ................................................................................. . 
Fines and penalties ....................................................................... . 
Other ............................................................................................. . 

Total revenues •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••.••.••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••.••.•..• 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
General governmental. ................................................................ . 
Education .................................................................................... . 
Individual and family services ...................................................... . 
Administration of justice .............................................................. . 
Resources and economic development... .................................... . 
Transportation ............................................................................. . 

Capital outlay ................................................................................. . 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement. .................................................................... . 
Interest and fiscal charges .......................................................... . 

Intergovernmental .......................................................................... . 

Total expenditures ••••••••••••••.....•......•••.•.••••••••••••••••••.....•..........• 

Revenues over (under) expenditures •••••••............•••••.•.••••••••••••••• 

other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds from bonds and notes ................................................... . 
Proceeds from refunding bonds .................................................... . 
Lease and installment debt proceeds ............................................ . 
Payments to refunded bond escrow agent... ................................. . 
Operating transfers in ................................................................... . 
Operating transfers out. ................................................................ . 

Total other financing sources (uses) •••••••••••••••••••.••...•..•••••••• 

Revenues and other sources over (under) 
expenditures and other uses ••••••••••••••••••.........••••••••••••••••••......... 

Fund balances (deficit), July 1, 1992 •••••••••••••••••••••••••••.••...•.•••••••• 
Increases (decreases) in reserve for inventories .••...••..••••.•••••••• 
Residual equity transfers in ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 
Residual equity transfers out. •••••••••.•••••••••••••••••••••••••......•.••.•••••••• 

Fund balances (deficit), June 30, 1993 ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••..•••••••• 

$ 

$ 

General 

1,481,592 
1,251 ,412 

600,292 
158,364 
38,026 

286,792 
17,319 

11 
16,921 
12,058 

3,862,787 

212,503 
153,068 
861,276 
279,577 

71,292 
2,542 

103,134 
53,274 

1,390,014 

3,126,680 

736,107 

1,584 

9,260 
(630,783) 

(619,939) 

116,168 
(212,055) 

1,356 
336 
(86) 

(94,281) 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Special Capital 
Revenue Projects 

$ $ 
377,354 
383,254 40 
142,335 

6,676 54 
1,941,388 215,701 

136,462 1,765 
101,231 244 
27,261 
40,738 98 

3,156,699 217,902 

34,949 
101,396 

1,820,886 
33,384 
59,729 

288,198 
24,572 432,135 

1,182 
42 

706,665 

3,071,003 432,135 

85,696 (214,233) 

110,000 

2,774 

44,063 130,152 
(129,427) (18,687) 

(82,590) 221,465 

3,106 7,232 
618,196 92,433 

2,214 

(38,366) (16,020) 

$ 585,150 $ 83,645 



State of South Carolina 

Totals 
FIDUCIARY (Memorandum Only) 
FUND TYPE For the Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30 
Expendable 

Trust 1993 1992 

$ $ 1,481,592 $ 1,386,724 
1,628,766 1,515,223 

170,319 1,153,905 1,075,168 
2,260 302,959 220,865 

45,200 89,956 96,794 
97,844 2,541,725 2,414,359 

155,546 138,617 
101,486 81,607 
44,182 43,610 

254 53,148 43,869 

315,877 7,553,265 7,016,836 

293,251 540,703 542,257 
254,464 241,234 

48 2,682,210 2,489,458 
17 312,978 304,510 

131,021 128,067 
290,740 274,957 
456,707 429,896 

104,316 94,538 
53,316 53,943 

87 2,096,766 2,033,486 

293,403 6,923,221 6,592,346 

22,474 630,044 424,490 

110,000 116,350 
113,000 

4,358 300 
(112,787) 

1,205 184,680 207,382 
(339) (779,236) (801,045) 

866 (480,198) (476,800) 

23,340 149,846 (52,310) 
545,879 1,044,453 1,107,304 

3,570 (20) 
336 

(54,472) !10,521) 

$ 569,219 $ 1,143,733 $ 1,044,453 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances-Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) 
ALL BUDGETED FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND 

Variance 
Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 
Revenues: 
Admissions tax ....................................................... . $ 8,300 $ 7,788 $ (512) 
Aircraft tax .............................................................. . 4,700 4,017 (683) 
Alcoholic liquors tax ................................................ . 48,325 47,091 (1 ,234) 
Bank tax ................................................................. . 8,700 13,579 4,879 
Beer and wine tax ................................................... . 74,085 72,858 (1 ,227) 
Business license tax ............................................... . 29,000 28,719 (281) 
Coin-operated device tax ........................................ . 28,000 38,380 10,380 
Commercial nuclear waste tax ................................ . 4,800 3,741 (1 ,059) 
Contractors' license tax ........................................... . 1,500 1,474 (26) 
Corporation income tax ........................................... . 139,650 158,246 18,596 
Corporation license tax ........................................... . 42,000 40,463 (1 ,537) 
Department of Agriculture ....................................... . 17,762 6,498 (11,264) 
Departmental revenue (primarily grant revenues 
and fees for services) ........................................... . 55,787 65,872 10,085 

Documentary tax .................................................... . 12,000 13,461 1,461 
Earned on investments ........................................... . 41,925 41,730 (195) 
Education Improvement Act-1% sales tax .............. . 
Education Improvement Act-investment earnings .. . 
Education Improvement Act-other .......................... . 
Electric power tax ................................................... . 18,800 17,646 (1,154) 
Estate tax ............................................................... . 10,900 15,099 4,199 
Excise tax-casual sales .......................................... . 10,156 10,345 189 
Fertilizer inspection tax ........................................... . 180 209 29 
Gasoline tax-counties ............................................. . 18,750 18,807 57 
Gift tax .................................................................... . 100 312 212 
Individual income tax .............................................. . 1,470,333 1,494,799 24,466 
Insurance tax .......................................................... . 76,404 78,008 1,604 
Miscellaneous sources ........................................... .. 51,216 50,473 (743) 
Motor transport fees ................................................ . 5,050 4,808 (242) 
Nonrecurring (low-level radioactive waste 

access fee and other) .......................................... . 97,962 105,810 7,848 
Private car lines tax ................................................ . 1,850 1,123 (727) 
Public service assessment. .................................... .. 4,200 4,482 282 
Public Service Authority ......................................... .. 6,366 5,997 (369) 
Radioactive waste surcharge .................................. . 21,600 18,205 (3,395) 
Retail sales tax (4%) .............................................. .. 1,196,844 1,240,274 43,430 
Retail sales tax-mail order sales ............................ .. 
Retailers' license tax ............................................... . 1,215 657 (558) 
Savings and loan association tax ............................ . 2,700 4,514 1,814 
Soft drinks tax ........................................................ .. 22,900 23,470 570 
Workers' compensation insurance tax .................... .. 8,100 8,639 539 

Total revenues .................................................... . 3,542,160 3,647,594 105,434 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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State of South Carolina 

OTHER BUDGETED FUNDS TOTAL BUDGETED FUNDS 

Variance Variance 
Final Favorable Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable~ Budget Actual (Unfavorable~ 

$ 19,658 $ 14,478 $ (5, 180) $ 27,958 $ 22,266 $ (5,692) 
4,700 4,017 (683) 

48,325 47,091 (1 ,234) 
8,700 13,579 4,879 

74,085 72,858 (1 ,227) 
29,000 28,719 (281) 
28,000 38,380 10,380 

4,800 3,741 (1 ,059) 
1,500 1,474 (26) 

139,650 158,246 18,596 
42,000 40,463 (1 ,537) 

3,167 2,400 (767) 20,929 8,898 (12,031) 

5,836,551 5,105,256 (731 ,295) 5,892,338 5,171,128 (721 ,210) 
1,515 1,289 (226) 13,515 14,750 1,235 

24,979 7,330 (17,649) 66,904 49,060 (17,844) 
301,750 312,290 10,540 301,750 312,290 10,540 

525 474 (51) 525 474 (51) 
4,032 3,073 (959) 4,032 3,073 (959) 

18,800 17,646 (1 ,154) 
10,900 15,099 4,199 
10,156 10,345 189 

180 209 29 
5 (5) 18,755 18,807 52 

100 312 212 
1,470,333 1,494,799 24,466 

17 15 (2} 76,421 78,023 1,602 
88,252 51,121 (37, 131) 139,468 101,594 (37,874) 

5,050 4,808 (242) 

70 (70) 98,032 105,810 7,778 
1,850 1,123 (727) 
4,200 4,482 282 
6,366 5,997 (369) 

21,600 18,205 (3,395) 
1,196,844 1,240,274 43,430 

30,000 (30,000) 30,000 (30,000) 
1,215 657 (558) 
2,700 4,514 1,814 

22,900 23,470 570 
8,100 8,639 539 

6,310,521 5,497,726 (812,795~ 9,852,681 9,145,320 (707,361 ~ 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances-Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) 
ALL BUDGETED FUNDS (Continued) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Expenditures: 
Legislative .............................................................. . 
Judicial. .................................................................. . 
Executive and administrative .................................. . 
Educational. ............................................................ . 
Health ..................................................................... . 
Social rehabilitation services ................................... . 
Correctional. ........................................................... . 
Conservation, natural resources, and development.. 
Regulatory .............................................................. . 
Transportation ......................................................... . 
Debt service ........................................................... . 
Miscellaneous ......................................................... . 
Highway Department. ............................................. . 
Enterprise agencies ................................................ . 

Total expenditures ............................................... 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures ..... 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in .............................................. 
Operating transfers out. ........................................... 

Total financing sources (uses) ........................... 

Excess of revenues and other sources over 
(under) expenditures and other uses .................... 
Budgetary fund balance, July 1, 1992 .................... 
Residual equity transfers in .................................... 

Budgetary fund balance, June 30, 1993 ................. 

BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND 

Final 
Budget 

$ 28,568 

$ 

28,390 
119,870 

1,861,544 
574,640 
131,761 
252,077 
117,966 

72,151 
2,643 

159,699 
234,356 

595 

3,584,260 

(42,100) 

25,000 

25,000 

(17,100) 
7,586 

(9,514) 

Actual 

$ 24,808 
28,373 

100,763 
1,826,447 

573,976 
131,624 
250,238 
116,590 

71,486 
2,545 

159,473 
234,321 

595 

3,521,239 

126,355 

25,000 

25,000 

151,355 
7,586 

$ 158,941 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 3,760 
17 

19,107 
35,097 

664 
137 

1,839 
1,376 

665 
98 

226 
35 

63,021 

168,455 

168,455 

$ 168,455 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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State of South Carolina 

OTHER BUDGETED FUNDS TOTAL BUDGETED FUNDS 

Variance Variance 
Final Favorable Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

$ 934 $ 431 $ 503 $ 29,502 $ 25,239 $ 4,263 
410 283 127 28,800 28,656 144 

406,883 193,297 213,586 526,753 294,060 232,693 
2,054,555 1,663,688 390,867 3,916,099 3,490,135 425,964 
2,099,761 2,004,092 95,669 2,674,401 2,578,068 96,333 

670,292 586,820 83,472 802,053 718,444 83,609 
144,193 116,965 27,228 396,270 367,203 29,067 
145,093 103,239 41,854 263,059 219,829 43,230 
115,067 99,806 15,261 187,218 171,292 15,926 

2,578 1,714 864 5,221 4,259 962 
159,699 159,473 226 
234,356 234,321 35 

739,223 716,774 22,449 739,818 717,369 22,449 
34,682 29,511 5,171 34,682 29,511 5,171 

6,413,671 5,516,620 897,051 9,997,931 9,037,859 960,072 

(103,150) (18,894) 84,256 (145,250) 107,461 252,711 

25,000 25,000 
(25,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) 

(25,000) (25,000) 25,000 (25,000) 

(103,150) (43,894) 59,256 (120,250) 107,461 227,711 
590,422 590,422 598,008 598,008 

12,141 12,141 12,141 12,141 

$ 487,272 $ 558,669 $ 71,397 $ 477,758 $ 717,610 $ 239,852 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Fund Equity 
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services .................................................................................... . 
Contributions ................................................................................................ . 
Interest and other investment income .......................................................... . 
Licenses, fees, and permits ......................................................................... . 

Total operating revenues ....................................................................... . 

Operating expenses: 
General operations and administration ......................................................... . 
Benefits and claims ...................................................................................... . 
Interest. ........................................................................................................ . 
Depreciation and amortization ...................................................................... . 
Other operating expenses ............................................................................ . 

Total operating expenses ........•.•.••••...........•....••................................••.... 

Operating income .•••••••••••.............••...........••••...........•............................. 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest income ............................................................................................ . 
Federal revenue ........................................................................................... . 
Costs to be recovered from future revenues ................................................ . 
Interest expense ........................................................................................... . 
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) .................................................... . 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) •..........................•.........•.•...... 

Income before operating transfers and 
extraordinary items ..•..............•••••••.••.....••.•.............................••.••........ 

Operating transfers in .................................................................................... . 
Operating transfers out .................................................................................. . 

Income before extraordinary items •••.............•...................................•. 

Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt... ..................................... . 
Extraordinary gain-other ................................................................................ . 

Net income ••••••••••.••.....•••••.......••••••••••••...........•••............•.....•...••..•••••••••.. 

Retained earnings/fund balances, July 1, 1992 ...................................... .. 
Residual equity transfers in ....••••........•..•.•.............••.•............•••••.•.•.•.•.•..•••• 
Residual equity transfers out.. .................................................................. .. 

Retained earnings/fund balances, June 30, 1993 •.•........................•........• 

Contributed capital, July 1, 1992 ............................................................... . 
Additions to contributed capital ............................................................... . 
Deductions from contributed capital ••••••..•••.•.•.•..•..•...•..•...................•••••••• 

Fund equity, June 30, 1993 ...••.•.......•...••.•...........................•.•.....•...........••... 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Enterprise 

$ 661,554 
61 

82,898 

744,513 

422,798 
8,373 

67,342 
100,191 

7,682 

606,386 

138,127 

23,268 
26,272 
24,153 

(155,177) 
(17,928) 

(99,412) 

38,715 

3,272 
(5,816) 

36,171 

(1 ,773) 
10,005 

44,403 

850,600 
45,874 

!22,514) 

918,363 

205,864 
34,590 
j1,772l 

$ 1,157,045 

Internal 

Service 

$ 610,241 
29,809 
22,753 

257 

663,060 

180,825 
453,238 

14,378 
925 

649,366 

13,694 

2,826 
294 

(7,093) 
164 

(3,809) 

9,885 

9,978 
(345) 

19,518 

19,518 

191,785 
14 

j14l 

211,303 

77,821 
1,927 

(1,510) 

$ 289,541 



State of South Carolina 

Totals 
FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES (Memorandum Only) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 
Nonexpendable Pension 

Trust Trust 1993 1992 

$ $ $ 1,271,795 $ 1,221,409 
27 652,167 682,064 663,211 
54 922,000 1,027,705 947,049 
68 325 310 

149 1,574,167 2,981,889 2,831,979 

27 603,650 587,496 
531,154 992,765 900,800 

67,342 75,050 
93 114,662 107,736 

8,607 9,642 

27 531,247 1,787,026 1,680,724 

122 1,042,920 1,194,863 1,151,255 

26,094 35,329 
26,566 25,964 
24,153 24,464 

(162,270) (168,658) 
(17,764) (17,631) 

(103,221) (100,532) 

122 1,042,920 1,091,642 1,050,723 

7,498 20,748 19,559 
(7,178) (13,339) (21 ,117) 

122 1,043,240 1,099,051 1,049,165 

(1 ,773) (2,574) 
10,005 

122 1,043,240 1,107,283 1,046,591 

1,438 9,479,991 10,523,814 9,477,223 
45,888 

!22,528} 

1,560 10,523,231 11,654,457 10,523,814 

283,685 271,414 
36,517 14,050 
p,282} p,779! 

$ 1,560 $ 10,523,231 $ 11,971,377 $ 10,807,499 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Cash Flows 
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Operating income ........................................................................... . 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 

to net cash provided by operations: 
Depreciation and amortization ................................................. . 
Provisions for loan losses and bad debts .................................. . 
Loss on disposition of property and equipment ........................ . 
Issuance of loans ...................................................................... . 
Collection of loans ..................................................................... . 
Interest payments ................................................................... . 
Interest on investments and interfund loans .............................. . 
Amounts received for payment of claims .................................. . 
Payment of claims ..................................................................... . 
Other nonoperating revenues .................................................... . 
Other nonoperating expenses ................................................... . 
Other ......................................................................................... . 

Change in assets--decreases (increases): 
Accounts receivable, net. .......................................................... . 
Due from Federal government and other grantors .................... . 
Due from other funds ................................................................ . 
Inventories ................................................................................ . 
Other restricted assets ............................................................. . 
Other current assets ................................................................. . 
Deferred charges ...................................................................... . 

Change in liabilities--increases (decreases): 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ................................... . 
Insurance claims incurred but not reported ............................... . 
Due to other funds .................................................................... . 
lnterfund payables ................................................................... . 
Deferred revenues ................................................................... . 
Deposits .................................................................................... . 
Deferred compensation ............................................................ . 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets .................................. . 
Compensated absences payable ............................................. . 
Other liabilities, including retainages payable ............................ . 

Net cash and cash equivalents provided 
by operating activities ....................................................... . 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Principal payments received from other funds .......................... . 
Proceeds from loans made by other funds ............................... . 
Principal payments made to other funds ................................... . 
Receipt of interest from other funds .......................................... . 
Interest payments made to other funds .................................... . 
Loans made to other funds ....................................................... . 
Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds ....................................... . 
Principal payments on revenue bonds ...................................... . 
Proceeds from notes payable ................................................... . 
Principal payments on notes payable ....................................... . 
Interest payments .................................................................... . 
Payment of bond issuance costs .............................................. . 
Federal revenue ....................................................................... . 
Payments from Federal grants .................................................. . 
Operating transfers in .............................................................. . 
Operating transfers out ........................................................... . 
Residual equity transfers in ..................................................... . 
Residual equity transfers out .................................................. . 

Net cash and cash equivalents provided 
by (used in) noncapital financing activities .................... . 

PROPRIETARY 

FUND TYPES 

Enterprise 

$ 138,127 

100,191 
3,602 

114 
(96,797) 
130,190 
67,188 

(16,311) 
39,229 

(48,823) 

(208) 

(4,995) 
(2,729) 

(975) 
(11 ,241) 

392 
764 
403 

(482) 
(345) 
(175) 
102 

5,356 
22 
61 

425 
166 

21,002 

324,253 

7,349 
(25) 

(483) 

34,831 
(180,368) 

2,693 
(139) 

(72,389) 
(1 ,126) 
26,273 

(14,492) 
3,272 

(5,816) 
21,594 

(18,247) 

(197,073) 

$ 

Internal 
Service 

13,694 

14,378 

192 

(21 ,487) 

422 
(258) 

94 

7,251 
(148) 

4,394 
(515) 

(444) 

22,380 
(7.142) 

100 
(3,607) 

176 
(55) 

29,425 

5,948 
2,282 

(2,571) 
4,279 

(1 ,534) 
(5,914) 

202 

9,978 
(345) 

12,325 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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FIDUCIARY 
FUND TYPE 

Nonexpendable Totals 

$ 

Trust (Memorandum Only) 

122 $ 

(54) 

(2) 

67 

151,943 

114,569 
3,602 

306 
(96,797) 
130,190 
67,188 

(37,852) 
39,229 

(48,823) 
422 

(258) 
(114) 

2,257 
(2,877) 
3,419 

(11 ,756) 
392 
320 
403 

21,896 
(7,487) 

(175) 
202 

1,749 
22 
61 

425 
342 

20,947 

353,745 

5,948 
9,631 

(2,596) 
4,279 

(2,017) 
(5,914) 
34,831 

(180,368) 
2,693 
(139) 

(72,389) 
(1 ,126) 
26,475 

(14,492) 
13,250 
(6,161) 
21,594 

(18,247) 

(184,748) 

Continued on Next Page 



State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Cash Flows 
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY 
FUND TYPES FUND TYPE 

Internal Nonexpendable Totals 

Enter~rise Service Trust (Memorandum Onl:t) 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment ........................... $ (319,807) $ (6,741) $ (23) $ (326,571) 
Proceeds from loans made by other funds ................................ 1,132 1,132 
Principal payments made to other funds .................................... (3,348) (3,348) 
Interest payments made to other funds ...................................... (2,032) (2,032) 
Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds ........................................ 546,272 546,272 
Principal payments on revenue bonds ....................................... (236,498) (236,498) 
Interest payments ..................................................................... (173,595) (3,527) (177,122) 
Payment of bond issuance costs ............................................... (7,699) (7,699) 
Increase in commercial paper notes .......................................... (2,250) (2,250) 
Proceeds from notes payable .................................................... 12,027 12,027 
Principal payments on notes payable ........................................ (9,079) (9,079) 
Principal payments on capital leases and installment 
debt obligations payable .......................................................... (3,584) (6,415) (9,999) 

Additions to deferred loan costs ................................................. (14) (14) 
Contributions of capital ............................................................. 28,849 181 29,030 
Reductions of contributed capital .............................................. (70} {70) 

Net cash and cash equivalents used in 
capital and related financing activities ............................. (165,378) (20,820) (23) (186,221) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Proceeds from sale of investments ........................................... 71,521 25,222 100 96,843 
Purchase of investments .......................................................... (253,999) (26,998) (280,997) 
Interest on investments .............................................................. 62,859 20,035 54 82,948 
Principal payments received on notes receivable ...................... 25 25 
Issuance of loans ...................................................................... (6,420) (6,420) 
Collection of loans ..................................................................... 4509 4,509 

Net cash and cash equivalents provided by 
(used in) investing activities .............................................. (121,530! 18,284 154 (103,092! 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ............. (159,728) 39,214 198 (120,316) 

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 1992 .................................... 655,607 411,586 1,322 1,068,515 

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 1993 ................................. $ 495,879 $450,800 $ 1,520 $ 948,199 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the balance 
sheet: 

Cash and cash equivalents for Fiduciary Funds ....................... $ 852,845 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents for Expendable Trust 

Funds, Pension Trust Funds, and Agency Funds ......... (851,325) 

Cash and cash equivalents Nonexpendable Trust Fund .......... $ 1,520 

Noncash capital and financing activities: 
Acquisition of property and equipment through: 

Increase in accounts payable ................................................... $ 1,142 $ $ $ 1,142 
Contributions and transfers from other funds .......................... 1,459 1,746 3,205 

Amortization and write-off of bond issue discount... ................... 55 55 

Total noncash capital and financing activities ................... $ 2,656 $ 1,746 $ $ 4,402 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Changes 
. 

Fund Balances In 
HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) CURRENT FUNDS ENDOWMENT 

LOAN AND SIMILAR 
Unrestricted Restricted FUNDS FUNDS 

Revenues and other additions: 
Unrestricted Current Fund revenues ....................... $ 986,637 $ $ $ 
Restricted student tuition and fees .......................... 
Federal grants and contracts--restricted ................. 181,565 1,093 1,000 
State grants-restricted ........................................... 8,210 1 49 
Private gifts, grants, and contracts--
restricted ............................................................... 49,807 1,490 

Investment income-restricted ................................. 2,328 166 535 
Realized investment gains--restricted ..................... 6 10 505 
Interest earned ........................................................ 949 2 
Expended for plant facilities .................................... 
Retirement of indebtedness .................................... 
Retirement of indebtedness--defeased bonds ........ 
Proceeds of bond refunding .................................... 
Capitalization of interest cost... ............................... 
Sale of property ....................................................... 
Other revenues and additions ................................. 1,952 143 289 

Total revenues and other additions .....•••.••••.. 986,637 243,868 2,362 3,870 

Expenditures and other deductions: 
Educational and general. ......................................... 995,786 217,391 
Auxiliary enterprises ................................................ 157,427 1,838 
Hospital ................................................................... 340,422 
Indirect costs recovered .......................................... 18,488 3 
Loan cancellation and bad debt write-offs ............... 490 6 
Administration and collection costs ......................... 456 60 
Expended for plant facilities .................................... 
Retirement of indebtedness .................................... 
Interest on indebtedness ......................................... 
Disposal of plant facilities ....................................... 
Refunding bonds issued ......................................... 
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent... ............. 
Refunds to grantors ................................................ 56 
Other expenditures and deductions ........................ 1,696 597 29 

Total expenditures and other deductions ....• 1,495,331 238,314 1,034 67 

Transfers in (out): 
Transfers among Higher Education Funds: 

Mandatory transfers for: 
Principal and interest. ......................................... (36,306) 
Loan fund matching grants ................................. (105) 105 
Other ................................................................... (276) 236 (9) 

Nonmandatory transfers ....................................... (8,129) (1,808) 231 1,291 
Operating transfers in ............................................. 614,956 1,989 
Operating transfers out. .......................................... (47,136! (1,096) 

Total transfers in (out) ••••••••••••.•.••.......•••••••.••••• 523,004 j679) 336 1,282 

Net increases (decrease) in fund balances •••••••••• 14,310 4,875 1,664 5,085 
Fund balances, July 1, 1992 .•................................ 115,237 22,464 41,082 39,805 
Residual equity transfers in .................................. 
Residual equity transfers out ................................ 

Fund balances, June 30, 1993 ............................... $ 129,547 $ 27,339 $ 42,746 $ 44,890 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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State of South Carolina 

PLANT FUNDS Totals for the 
Renewal Retirement Fiscal Year Ended 

and of Investment June 30 
UnexE!ended ReE!Iacements Indebtedness in Plant 1993 1992 

$ $ $ $ $ 986,637 $ 920,273 
6,093 14,164 59 20,316 20,588 

12,917 378 1 196,954 171,651 
24 8,284 5,387 

5,182 114 1,855 58,448 49,841 
2,481 3,463 8,973 9,018 

521 1,009 
365 382 1,698 1,758 

148,008 148,008 203,198 
19,718 19,718 21,010 
26,084 26,084 7,775 

28,545 28,545 7,395 
2,750 2,750 1,492 

687 
2712 2,111 533 7,740 7,393 

32,524 49,157 196,258 1,514,676 1,428,475 

1,213,177 1,146,341 
159,265 155,029 
340,422 315,343 

18,491 16,028 
496 418 
516 456 

100,594 100,594 149,077 
19,131 19,131 17,867 
20,260 20,260 17,353 

23,673 23,673 24,074 
28,545 28,545 7,395 

29,530 29,530 8,032 
56 90 

6,529 67 1,729 10,648 9,467 

107,123 68,988 53,947 1,964,804 1,866,970 

1,105 35,201 

(2,059) 2,108 
52,678 (15,677) (28,586) 
18,686 635,631 636,504 

FO~ ~48,302~ ~41 ,104~ 

70,410 21,562 j28,586) 587,329 595,400 

(4,189) 1,731 113,725 137,201 156,905 
90,419 14,195 46,576 1,859,317 2,229,095 2,072,190 
14,195 14,195 

j14, 1951 j14, 1951 

$ 100,425 $ $ 48,307 $ 1,973,042 $ 2,366,296 s 2,229,095 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Current Funds Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Other Changes 
HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Revenues: 
Tuition and fees ....................................................................... . 
Federal grants and contracts ................................................... . 
State grants and contracts ....................................................... . 
Local grants and contracts ....................................................... . 
Private gifts, grants, and contracts .......................................... . 
Endowment income ................................................................. . 
Sales and services of educational departments ....................... . 
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises .............................. . 
Sales and services of hospitals ................................................ . 
Other ........................................................................................ . 

Total current revenues ...............•••••••..•....•..•....•......•••..• 

Expenditures and mandatory transfers: 
Educational and general: 

Instruction .............................................................................. . 
Research ............................................................................... . 
Public service ......................................................................... . 
Academic support .................................................................. . 
Student services .................................................................... . 
Institutional support ................................................................ . 
Operation and maintenance of plant... ................................... . 
Scholarships and fellowships ................................................. . 

Educational and general expenditures ................................. . 

Mandatory transfers for: 
Principal and interest. .......................................................... . 
Loan fund matching grants .................................................. . 
Other .................................................................................... . 

Total educational and general. ........................................... . 

Auxiliary enterprises: 
Expenditures .......................................................................... . 
Mandatory transfers for principal and interest... ..................... . 

Total auxiliary enterprises .................................................. . 

Hospitals: 
Expenditures .......................................................................... . 
Mandatory transfers for principal and interest... ..................... . 

Total hospitals .................................................................... . 

Total expenditures and mandatory transfers .•.••.•.•••..• 

other transfers and additions (deductions): 
Excess of restricted receipts over transfers to revenues .......... . 
Operating transfers in .............................................................. . 
Operating transfers out ............................................................ . 
Other deductions ..................................................................... . 

Total operating transfers and additions ..................... . 

Net increase in fund balances ••••••••••••...•••..••............... 

Unrestricted 

$ 305,276 
27,906 

21,567 
27,765 

162 
26,431 

171,715 
383,862 

21,953 

986,637 

494,624 
53,745 
57,554 
95,869 
62,372 

115,894 
100,948 

14,780 

995,786 

10,265 
105 
276 

1,006,432 

157,427 
15,417 

172,844 

340,422 
10,624 

351,046 

1,530,322 

614,956 
(47, 136) 

(9,825) 

557,995 

$ 14,310 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Restricted 

$ 

$ 

161,929 
7,810 
1,133 

43,716 
1,704 

1,808 

218,100 

32,942 
80,380 
32,126 

7,601 
5,718 
2,214 

172 
56,238 

217,391 

(236) 

217,155 

1,838 

1,838 

218,993 

7,280 
1,989 

(1 ,096) 
(2,405) 

5,768 

4,875 

Totals for the 
Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30 
1993 

$ 305,276 
189,835 

7,810 
22,700 
71,481 

1,866 
26,431 

171,715 
383,862 

23,761 

1,204,737 

527,566 
134,125 
89,680 

103,470 
68,090 

118,108 
101,120 
71,018 

1 ,213,177 

10,265 
105 

40 

1,223,587 

159,265 
15,417 

174,682 

340,422 
10,624 

351,046 

1,749,315 

7,280 
616,945 
(48,232) 
(12,230) 

563,763 

$ 19,185 

1992 

$ 276,839 
166,506 

7,319 
21,384 
69,364 

2,139 
24,502 

167,424 
351,577 

25,822 

1,112,876 

501,759 
120,304 
88,152 

103,213 
64,029 

108,797 
97,231 
62,856 

1,146,341 

8,546 
106 

31 

1,155,024 

155,029 
13,438 

168,467 

315,343 
10,360 

325,703 

1,649,194 

949 
609,942 
(41 ,104) 

(4,349) 

565,438 

$ 29,120 



Notes to the Financial Statements 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFI
CANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

a. Scope of Reporting Entity 

These financial statements include all component 
units over which the State's elected officials exercise 
significant oversight responsibility. Financial 
interdependency is the most important element of 
oversight responsibility. However, the following_ also 
were .consid~red in aetermining the scope oT the 
reportmg entity: 

Sele.ction. of governing authority 
DesignatiOn of management 
Abihty to significantfv influence operations 
Accountability for fiscal matters 

Based on the above criteria, the following 
significant component units are included in these 
financial statements: 

Fiscal years ended June 30, 1993: 
State-supported colleges/universities 
Area tecllli.ical colleges 
The State's five retirement svstems 
State Housing Finance and Development 

Authority 
State Ports Authoritv 
State Education Assistance Authority and 

Student Loan Corporation 
South Carolina Research Authoritv 
Patriots Point Development Authority 
Jobs-Economic DeveloQment Authoritv 
The Local Government -Investment Pool 

Fiscal vears ended December 31, 1992: 
Soutb Carolina Public Service Authority 

(Santee-Cooper) 
South Carolina Deferred Compensation 

Plans 

These financial statements exclude the related 
foundations listed in Note 14 because the State does 
not significantlv influence operations of the related 
foundations nor are the related foundations 
accountable to the State for fiscal matters. 

b. Basis of Presentation-Fund Accounting 

The State uses fund accounting under which it 
segregates its resources and accounts for them in 
various individual funds. Each individual fund is an 
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of 
accounts. Individual funds that have similar 
characteristics are combined into fund types. 

State of South Carolina 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental Funds finance most of the State's 
governmental functions. The measurement focus of 
the Governmental Funds is on sources, uses, and 
balances of financial resources. 

The General Fund is the State's general operating 
fund. It accounts for resources that fund the services 
South Carolina's State government traditionally has 
provided to its citizens, except those required to be 
accounted for in another fund. 

Special Revenue Funds account for specific 
revenue sources (other than for Capital Projects. 
Trus~, and Highe~ Education Funds) that are legally 
restncted for specified pul])oses. 

Capital Projects Funds account for resources to 
acquire major capital facilities for use by the General 
Fund and Special Revenue Funds, including 
planning/construction of the State's highway system. 

Deot Service Funds are not used because the 
State does not accumulate resources to pay future 
years' general long-term obligations. Instead. the 
State finances such pa)'ments directly from the 
current year's resources. 

Proprietary Funds 

Proprietarv Funds account for activities similar 
to those found in the private sector. The Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (F ASB) and its 
predecessor organizations have issued accounting and 
reporting standards for activities in the private sector. 
ExceP.t for the Public Service Authority the State's 
Proprietary Funds have elected not to applv standards 
issued by those or!@llizatwns after 
November 30, 1989. These -Proprietarv Funds, 
however, have applied all apflicable pronouncements 
issued b_y the Governmenta Accounting Standards 
Board (UASB). The Public Service Authority has 
elected to apply all F ASB pronouncements that are 
not inconsistent with GASB pronouncements. 

The measurement focus of the Proprietary Funds 
is upon determination of net income, financial 
positiOn, and cash flows. 

Enterprise Funds account for business-like State 
activities that provide goods/services to the public 
financed primarily through user charges. 

Internal Service Funas provide goods/services to 
other funds, other component units. or other 
governments on a cost-allocation basis. -

Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary Funds account for resources the State 
holds as trustee or agent for individuals, private 
organizations or other governmental units. Both 
pnncipal and earnings ol Expendable Trust Funds 
may 5e used for P.Urposes allowed under the trust 
agreements. Only the earnings, but not the principal, 
ofNonexpendable Trust Funds mav be expended. 

Expendable Trust Funds "have the same 
measurement focus as Governmental Funds. 
Nonexpendable Trust and Pension Trust Funds have 
the same measurement focus as Proprietary Funds. 
Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do not 
involve measurement of results of operations. 
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State of South Carolina 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Account Groups 

The General Fixed Asset Account Group 
includes all fixed assets other than those accountea 
for in the Proprietary and Higher Education Funds. 

The General Long-Term Obligations Account 
Group accounts for all long-term obligations not 
accounted for in the Proprietary and Higher 
Education Funds. Significant long-term obligatiOns 
include bonds, notes, capital leases, compensated 
absences, and claims/judgments. 

c. Basis of Accounting 

The basis of accounting determines when the 
State recognizes revenues ana expenditures/expenses 
and related assets and liabilities, regardless of 
measurement focus. 

Governmental, Expendable Trust, and Agency 
Funds 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used 
in Governmental, Expendable Trust and Agency 
Funds. Under tlie modified accrual basis, revenues 
are recorded when they become susceptible to accrual 
(i.e., both measurable and available). Except for 
~ntitlements, 1;1nemployment insurance taxes, and 
mterest on mvestments, r~venue~ are . deemed 
avadable at year-end only_If received w1thin one 
month followin_g year-end. UnemJ2lOyt]lent insurance 
taxes in the Fxpendable Trust Funds are deemed 
available at year-end on!Y if received within forty-five 
days followmg year-end. Interest on investments is 
recorded as earned because it is deemed available 
when earned. Deferred revenue is recorded for 
receivables that are measurable but not available at 
year-end. 

Individual income taxes in the hands of 
employ~rs, sales and similar taxes (including gasoline 
taxes) m the hands of merchants or other State 
coll~ction agents, d~li_nquent ~xes, c~arges for 
services and commodities, and mterest mcome are 
accrued at year-end. Corporate income taxes fines 
forfeitures, 1icenses and fees, and other miscellaneous 
taxes and revenues are recorded as revenues when 
received in cash because they are generally not 
measurable until actuallY. received. 

Exp~nditures gene.rally are recorded ~vhe~ goods 
or. s~rvtces are received. . ~ exceptiOn Is that 
J2nncipal and mterest on obhgat10ns reflected in the 
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group are 
recorded as expenditures when due. Additional 
exceptions ar~ that expenditures for compensated 
absences clatms, and Judgments reflected in the 
General long-Term Obhgat10ns Account Group are 
recorded when paid. 

ProQ.rieta_ry, Nonex_pendable Trust, and 
Pens1on Trust Funds 

The State uses the accrual basis of accounting to 
report activity pf the Proprietary,_ Nonexpendable 
Trust, and PensiOn Trust Funds. ·under the accrual 
basis of accounting, the State recognizes revenues 
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whe11 earne~ and expenses when il}curred. The 
Pubhc Servtce Authonty, an Enterpnse Fund is a 
re~lated utility which uses accounting_principles 
establi~h~d by the Federal Energy Kegulatory 
CommissiOn. 

Grant/Entitlement Revenues 

The State recognizes grants, including non-cash 
support, as revenue when tlie State has incurred grant 
costs and pas met <;tll related grant requirements {such 
as match!ng reqmrements). Food stamps totaling 
$307.0 mdhon and food commodities oT 
$17.2 million represent the largest sources of 
non-cash support for the year ended June 30 1993. 
In contras!, the State recognizes entitlements as 
revenue at me beginning of the entitlement period 

Pending determinatiOn of which funds are to be 
financed, grant/entitlement monies to be distributed to 
other State agencies are accounted for in Agency 
Funds.. At June_39, 1993, assets totaling 
approxtmate!Y $4.4 mdhon were being held in 
Agency Funds pending such determination. 

d. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The amounts shO\m on the Combined Balance 
Sheet as Cash and ~a~h Equivalents repr~sent petty 
cas~, cas.h on deposit m bailks, and cash mvested in 
vanous mstruments as a part of the State's cash 
management pool. Because the cash management 
pool operates as a demand de12osit account amounts 
mve~ted in the _12ool are classified as Cash 'and Cash 
Eqmvalents. The State Treasurer administers the 
cash management pool. The pool includes some 
long-term mvestments such as obligations of the 
Umted S~tes. and certain agencies of the United 
State~, obhgat10ns of the State of South Carolina and 
certam of Its political subdivisions, certificates of 
deposit, and collateralized repurchase agreements. 

Most State agencies .P-articipate in the cash 
management pool. Significant component units 
exc;:luaed from the pool, however, are the State's 
retuement and deferred compensation plans the 
South Carolina Public Service Authonty Ports 
Authoritv, and the Local Government Investment 
Pool. Certain activities of the Higher Education 
Funds and the Housing Authority Funa, an Entemrise 
Fund, also are excluded from the _pool. For activities 
~xcluded from the pool, Cash Equivalents include 
mv~stment.s. i!l short-~erm, highly liquid securities 
havmg an Imttal matunty of three months or less. 

e. Cash Management Pool-Allocation of Interest 

The State'.s cash management pool consists of a 
general deposit account and several special deposit 
accounts. The State records each fund's equity 
interest in the general deposit account. All earnmgs 
on that account, however, are recorded in the General 
Fun~. . In contras~, each special deposit account 
retams Its own earnmgs. 



Notes to the Financial Statements 

f. Investments and Deferred Yield Adjustment 
for Security Exchanges 

Investments are stated at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method to amortize bond 
premiums/discounts over the time from purchase to 
maturity, excep~ for deferred compensation P.lans' 
investments wfuch are valued at the value of the 
underl~g insurance contracts. 

AdditiOnally, gains and losses on bond exchanges 
in the Pension Trust Funds are accounted for unoer 
the deferral and amortization method. Net gains and 
losses on bond exchanges are deferred and amortized 
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the life of 
the bond sold or purchased. Gains or losses arising 
from non-exchail.ge bond transactions are not 
deferred; they are recognized in the current year. The 
unamortized amount of the deferred yield agjustment 
is reported as a part of Investments on the Combined 
Balance Sheet. 

g. Receivables 

Receivables are stated net of allowances for 
uncollectible amounts. Uncollectible amounts are 
estimated based upon past collection experience. 

h. Inventories 

Inventories of the Governmental Funds are 
valued at cost using predominantly the moving 
average cost methodology while inventories of the 
Propnetary Funds are valued at cost using the 
average cost methodology. The Governmental Funds 
use the purchases method while the Proprietary 
Funds use the consumption method. 

i. Fixed Assets and Depreciation 

Fixed assets are valued at historical cost or at 
estimated historical cost if actual historical cost data 
are not available. Donated fixed assets are recorded 
at fair market value on the donation date. 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental Funds record expenditures when 
theY. acquire fixed assets and capita1ize those assets 
in The General Fixed Assets Account Group. The 
General Fixed Assets Account Group records neither 
depreciation nor capitalization of interest 
expenditures during construction. The State does not 
record its public domain (infrastructure) assets in the 
General Fixed Assets Account Group. 

Proprietary and Similar Trust Funds 

Proprieta_ry Funds, Nonexpendable Trust Funds, 
and Pension Trust Funds capitalize fixed assets when 
acquired. Net interest costs are ca.Qitalized on 
projects during the construction period. Depreciation 
IS provided using the straight-Ime method over the 
foliowing estimated useful hves: 

State of South Carolina 

Asset Years 
Wando River channel dredging project.................. 50 
Other land improvements....................................... 20-30 
Residential buildings.............................................. 20-30 
Office and other buildings...................................... 20-40 
Hydro-electric utility plants . . ..... .. .. .......................... 55 
Other utility plants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22-37 
Automobiles, vans, light trucks . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5-8 
Heavy trucks and buses......................................... 8-15 
Airplanes and helicopters....................................... 3-8 
Other furnishings and equipment........................... 5-15 

Depreciation on fixed assets ac~uired from 
Contril5uted Capital is closed to Retained Earnings. 

j. Restricted Assets and Liabilities Payable from 
Restricted Assets 

Most of the amounts reported as Restricted 
Assets represent Enterprise Fund assets required to 
be held and/or used as specified in bond indentures 
and bond resolutions. Restricted Assets also include 
amounts collected by the Second Injurv Fund an 
Enterprise Fund, to pay claims for which the Fund 
has no risk. The amounts held by the Second Injury 
Fund are offset by Liabilities Pavable from 
Restricted Assets to demonstrate that tfie Fund has 
not assumed any risk for the payment of claims. 

Restricted assets are classified into four 
categories: Cash and Cash Equivalents, Investments

1 Loans Receivable, and Other. The State's restricteo 
assets consist primarily of United States government 
securities, repurcha~e agreements, and student and 
mortgage loans receivable. 

k. Deferred Charges 

Unamortized loss on refunded debt and deferred 
costs to be recovered from future revenues of the 
South Carolina Public Service Authoritv (a regulated 
utility) are recorded as Deferred Cliarges m the 
Enterprise Funds. The Authority amortizes 
sign,ificant gains/losses on refunding deot issues over 
the life of the new issues rather than recognizing the 
gain/loss as an extraordinary item at tfie date of 
refunding. The recovery of outstanding amounts 
associatea with costs to be recovered !rom future 
revenue will coincide with the retirement of the 
outstanding long-term debt of the Authority. 

I. Tax Refunds Payable 

During the calendar year, the State collects 
employee. withholdings and taxpayers' payments for 
P.ersonal mcome taxes. Taxpayers fife returns by 
April 15 for the pre~eding calendar year. At 
June 30, the State estimates the amount It owes 
taxpayers for ovewayments during the precedin~ix 
montlis. This estimated P.ayable IS recorded as -Tax 
Refunds Payable and a reouction of Tax Revenues. 
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State of South Carolina 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

m. Compensated Absences 

During their first ten years of service full-time 
permanent State employees annually earn is days of 
vacation leave and 15 Clays of sick leave. After ten 
years, employees earn an additional 1.25 days of 
vacation leave for each year of service over ten until 
they reach the maximum of 30 days per year. 
Empl9yees may cam forward up to 45 davs of 
vacatiOn leave and 18"0 days of sick leave from one 
calendar year to the next. Upon termination of 
employt}lent the . State pays employees for 
accumulated vacatiOn leave at the pay rate then in 
effect. Employees do not receive pay for 
accumulated sick leave when they terminate. 

Th~ General and Special Revenue Funds record 
expen~hn.n:es when they pay employees for leave, and 
the habihcy for accumulated vacation leave is 
recorded m the General Long-Term Obligations 
Accm,mt Group .. For Proprietary Funds, the cost of 
vacatiOn leave IS recorded as an expense and a 
liability when earned by the employee. 

n. lnterfund Transactions 

The State accounts for the following types of 
interfund transactions: 

Interfund loans may occur between two State 
funds. Short-term interfund loans outstanding at 
year-end are recorded as Interfund Receiv
ables/Payables. Advances To/From Other Funds 
represent long-term interfund loans receivable and 
payable. 

Reimbursements result when one fund makes an 
expenditure on behalf of another fund. Reim
b~rsement transactions reduce expenditure in the 
reimbursed fund and increase expenditure in the 
reimbursing fund. 

Quasi-ext~rnal transactions inv9lve charges for 
goods or services that one fund dehvers or provides 
fo another. These transactions may result in the 
recording_ of short-term receivables or pavables (Due 
From o(To Other Funds) atyear-end. • 

Residual equi!}' transfers are nonroutine or 
nonrecurri~g transfers betwe~n funds. 

Operatmg transfers mclude all interfund 
transactions that are not loans reimbursements 
quasi-external transactions, or' residual equity 
transfers. 

The State eliminates material intrafund 
transactions and interfund transactions that occur 
within a single combined financial statement fund 
type. 

o. Risk Management 

Several funds accumulate assets to cover risks 
that the State incurs in its normal operations 
Spe<;ifically, the State itself (rather than an msurance 
c~mer) assumes substantially all risks associated 
wtth: 
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Claims of St_ate employees for unemployment 
compensatiOn benefits 

Claims of ~overed employees for workers' 
compensatiOn benefits 

Claims of covered public employees for 
health insurance, dental insurance lon_g
term disability insur~ce, and group lite 
msurance benefits (msurance carriers 
how~ver, provide claims administration 
services) 

In addition, the State maintains an Insurance 
Reserve Fund to cover risks associated with: 

Real property including public buildings 
local public schools, ano their contents ' 

Motor vehicles and school buses 
General tort claims that parties mav file 
agan~s~ . the State or its po1itical 
subdiVISIOnS 

Medical m~lpractice claims that parties mav 
file agamst covered hospitals ana 
emplovees 

Business interruptions 

The Insurance Reserve Fund purchases insurance 
coverage for a portion of these risks. 

The State lias recorded liabilities both for claims 
known but not paid and for claims incurred but not 
repprted at June 30 in .its Ijsk management funds, 
wliich are reported pnmanlv as Internal Service 
Funds. · 

The ~tate also administers the Patients' 
Compensat!o~ Fund a public entitv risk pool 
repo~ed Withm the State's Enterprise Funds which 
provides medical malpractice insurance. ' 

p. Discrete Presentation-Higher Education 
Funds 

. .F~ancial activities ofthe State's higher education 
mstitutwns are reported in the Higlier Education 
Funds. . Tht?se. funds use _generally accepted 
ac<;oun~Il).g pnnciple.s that appl)' to colleges and 
umversities as contamed in Auarts cif Colleges and 
Univ_ersities P.ublished by the Amencan Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants. The Higher Education 
Funds. are _presented in a separate column on the 
Combmed ~alance Sheet as a discrete presentation. 
The Combmed Statement of Changes in Fund 
Balan~es-Higher Education Funds presents the 
followmg fund types: 

C~rren~ F 1,1nd~ account for resources that higher 
educ~tiOn mstitu~IOns .may use. fo~ any purpose in 
carrymg out t):leu pnmary obJectives. Restricted 
Current Funds mclude resources that donors or other 
outsid~ agencies have restricted for specific current 
gperati~g J!U!POSes. All other current funds are 
Unrestncte<l Current Funds. 

Loan Funds account for resources available for 
!o~s tq students, faculty, or staff of higher education 
mstitutiOns. 

Endowment and Similar Funds account for 
endowment and quasi-endO\\ment transactions 
These funds are simtlar to trust funds. The State 
must comply with the terms of any applicable 
agreements. 
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Plant Funds account for transactions involving 
physical properties of the higher education 
mstitutions. The Unexpended Plant subgroup 
accounts for monies that institutions have available to 
finance the acquisition, construction, or improvement 
of physical properties. Resources that institutions 
have set aside for the renewal and replacement of 
institutional properties are also recorded in this fund. 
The Retirement of Indebtedness subgrouP. includes 
monies to pay debt service and to retire inaebtedness 
on institutiOnal properties. The Investment in Plant 
subgrouP. accounts for funds that institutions have 
expendea for (and thus have invested in) their 
properties and any: related outstanding debt. 

Agency Funds within the H@1,er Education 
Funds account for amounts that nigher education 
institutions hold as custodians or fiscal agents for 
others. 

The Combined Statement of Current Funds 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Other Changes-Higher 
Education Funds is a statement of financial activities 
related to the current reporting period. It does not 
purport to present the results oT operations or the net 
mcome or foss for the period as would a statement of 
income or a statement of revenues and expenses. 

Cash transfers between the higher education 
institutions and the General Fund and Special 
Revenue Funds appear as revenues and exQenditures 
on the Combmed Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures.._ and Changes in Fund Balances-Budget 
and Actual (nudgetary Basis)-All Budgeted Funos. 
On all other comBined operatmg statements, however, 
such transfers to (from) the institutions @pear in the 
Higher Education Funds as Operating Transfers In 
(Out). Accordil}gly, on the Combined Statement of 
Current Funds Revenues, E:JWenditures, and Other 
Changes-Higher EducatiOn Funds, the sum of the 
Current Restncted Funds' Revenues and Operating 
Transfers In equals the sum of E'fl)enditures and 
Mandatory Transfers and OP,erating_Transfers Out. 

The measurement focus in the Higher Education 
Funds is upon determination of resources received 
and used. The Higher Education Funds use the 
accrual basis. Howeverd depreciation of fixed assets 
is not recorded. In ad ition, revenues from tuition 
and student fees of a summer session are reP.orted 
totally within the fiscal vear in which the session is 
Qredominantly conducted. Current Funds used to 
finance P.lant assets are accounted for as 
(1) expenditures for normal replacement of movable 
equipment and library books, {2) mandatory transfers 
for reguired provisions for debt amortization/interest

1 and (3) transfers of a nonmandatory nature for al 
other cases. 

Higher Education Funds record expenditures 
when they acquire fixed assets and cam~lize those 
assets Within their Plant Funds. These funds 
capitalize interest expenditures during construction 
but do not record depreciation. 

Inventories of the Higher Education Funds are 
valued at the lower of cost or market using the first
in, first-out method. These funds use the 
consumption method of recording inventories. 

The State's colleges and universities record an 
expenditure and liabiflty in the Current Unrestricted 
Fund when employees earn credits toward future 
compensated absences. 

State of South Carolina 

q. Totals (Memorandum Only) Columns 

Amounts in the "Totals-Memorandum Only" 
colunms represent an aggregation of the combined 
financial statement line-Items to facilitate financial 
analvsis. Amounts in the "Totals-Memorandum 
Onl~" colunms are not comparable to a consolidation. 

'Memorandum Only" colunms for 1992 are 
included to provide a summarized comparison with 
comparable 1993 amounts. The 1992 totals are not 
intended to present all information necessarv for a 
fair presentation of financial position and results of 
operatio.ns in. a~cordance with generally accepted 
accountmg pnnciples. 

To erihance comparability, some 1992 amounts 
have been reclassified to conform with the 
presentation used in the 1993 financial statements. 

NOTE 2: BUDGETARY ACCOUNT
ING AND REPORTING 

a. Budgetary Funds 

South Carolina's AQpropriation Act does not 
present budgets by GAAP fund. Instead, it presents 
bud~ts for: 

Ueneral Funds. These funds are general 
operating funds. The resources in these funds are 
primarily taxes. The State expends General Funds to 
I!_fOvide traditional State government services. The 
{jenera! Funds colunm m the ApproP.riation Act 
differs somewhat from the GAAP General Fund. 

Total Funds. The Total Funds colunm in the 
Appropriation Act includes all budgeted resources. 
Airiounts in this colunm include General Funds as 
well as most Federal and department -generated 
resources. Total Funds include some Propnetary and 
Capital Project Fund activities but exclude Pension 
Tf4s~ funds and most other Trust and Agency Fund 
activities. 

The accompanying financial statements include a 
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances-Budge and Actual 
(Budgetary Basis)-All Budgeted Funds. The 
Budgetary General Fund categ_ory on that statement 
corresponds to the General ~Funds colunm in the 
Appropriation Act. The Other Budgeted Funds 
category represents the difference between the Total 
Funds and the General Funds colunms in the 
Appropriation Act. 

b. Budgetary Basis of Accounting 

Current legislation states that the General 
Assembly intends to appropriate all monies to operate 
State government for the current fiscal year. 
Unexpended Budgetary General Fund appropriations 
l~pse on J~lY 31 unl~ss ~he department or agency is 
given specific authonzat10n to carry them forwaro to 
the next fiscal year. Cash-basis accounting for 
payroll expenditures is required. 
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State law does not_precisely define the budgetary 
basis of accounting~ fu practice, however, it IS the 
cash basis with the Tollowmg exceptions: 

(i) Departments. and agencies charge . certain 
vendor and mterfund pa~ents agamst the 
}:?receding fiscal years appropriations 
through July 20. 

(ii) Several types of revenues collected in 
advance are recorded as liabilities (deferred 
revenues) rather than as revenues. 

(iii) Sales Taxes (includin_g the Education 
Improvement Act-1% Sales Tax

1 
Excise 

Tax--Casual Sales and Retai Sales 
Tax-4%) in the Combined Statement of 
Revenues..... Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund valances-Budget and Actual 
(Budgetary Basis) have oeen recorded on the 
modified accrual basis since 1990-91. 

(iv) In accordance with the 1992-93 
Appropriation Act, the State recorded the 
folfowmg taxes in the Combined Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances-Budget and Actual 
(Budgetary Basis) on the modified accrual 
basis this year for the first time: Admissions 
Tax, Alcoholic Liquors Tax, Beer and Wine 
Tax, Business License Tax, Electric Power 
Tax, Gasoline Tax--Counties, and Soft 
Dririks Tax. The resulting one-time increase 
in resources on the budgetary basis is 
budgeted and reported \\itfiin revenues as 
Nonrecurring (Low-Level Radioactive Waste 
Access Fee and Other). 

(v) All other revenues are recorded only when 
the State receives the related cash. 

c. Budgetary Policies 

State law does not require the use of 
encumbrance accounting. Neither the General Fund 
nor the Budgetary General Fund,. therefore, records 
encumbrances or a reserve ror encumbrances. 
Instead, the General Fund records the authorized 
~ppropriations to be carried forward as a reserve of 
filnd oalance. 

The State maintains budgetarv control at the 
level of major object class of expenditure \\ithin each 
P.rogram of each department or agencY.. All budgeted 
oepartments and agencies except The li!gher education 
institutions and the Department of Highways and 
Public Transportation process their disbursement 
vouchers throu_gh a central budgetary accountin~ 
~stem maintamed by the Comptroller General s 
Office. (As a result of le!@l changes, the Department 
of Highways and Public Transportation is no longer 
an excepti~n effective on July 1, 1993.) Departmen~s 
and Mencies may process disbursement vouchers m 
the State's budgetary accounting system only if 
enough cash and aP.propriations exist. The State's 
1992-93. Appr9pri11tion Act has apprqximately 5,350 
<~;ppropnated lme Items. These hne Items constitute 
the level of legal control over expenditures. The level 
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of legal control for all agencies is reported in a 
publication of the State Comptroller General's Office 
titled "A Detailed Report of ApQI"opriations and 
Expenditures," not included herein. Departments and 
agencies ~ay r!!quest transfers of appropriations 
among maJor obJect classes and/or among programs 
\\ithin the same budgetary fund. No sucli transfer 
request, however, may exceed twenty _percent of the 
program budget. Tlie Budget and Control Board, 
comP.osed or five key executive and legislative 
officials, has the authonty to apP.rove such requests. 

Eacn year, the General Assembly enacts an 
AppropriatiOn Act that includes initial estimated 
revenue and a_ppro_Q_riation fi~res for the Budgetary 
General Fund. The 1992-93 Appropriation Act 
directed the Budget and Control Board to reduce the 
Budgetary General Fund's appro)lriations during the 
year if necessarv to J>revent a deTicit. Likewise, the 
Budget and Control Board may approve increases or 
decreases in the Budgetary Genera Fund's estimated 
revenues during_ the year when recommended bv the 
State Board ofEconomic Advisors. • 

For Other Budgeted Funds, the annual 
Appropriation Act presents estimated revenue 
amounts only for Education Improvement Act and 
highway revenues. The Budget and Control Board, 
however, provides estimated revenue amounts for the 
other resources in these funds. The Appropriation 
Act includes all appropriation amounts for these 
funds. 

A~ operating conditi~n~ change, ~epartments and 
agencies may request revisiOns or estimated revenues 
and expenditures in Other Budgeted Funds. Such 
changes reguire the Governor's approval, the Joint 
ApP.ropriation Review Committee's concurrence, and 
the Buaget and Control Board's review. Departments 
and agencies also may req1,1e~t revisions of estimated 
revenues and appropnat10ns for permanent 
imrrovement projects that the General Assembly did 
no specificalfv authorize. The Budget and Control 
Board and the Joint Bond Review Committee must 
approve and review these changes. During the 
current fiscal vear, the State's budget was amended in 
accordance wi'th the_Qrocedures outlined above. 

During June 1993, the General Assembly enacted 
a Supplemental AQpropriation Act. The Act required 
that the first $3 3 .¥million of available funds on the 
budgetary basis of accountiWe at year-end be reserved 
(in the General Reserve and that the next 
$32.5 million be recor ed as supP.lemental 
~ppropriations. The Act further authorized the carry
forward of the suQplemental appropriations to 
1993-94. Because sufficient funds were available on 
the budgetarv basis, the supplemental appropriations 
were recordea and carried rorward to 1993-94. 

d. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations 

For the fiscal vear ended June 30, 1993 the 
Educational function within Other Budgeted Funds 
had $15.973 million of expenditures in excess of 
appropriations at the level of legal control. These 
overexpenditures were associatea with the State's 
Technical Colleges, the College of Charleston. and 
the DeP.artment of Education. The State's colleges 
and universities are among those component umts 
which have the authority under the State law to 
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maintain their own accounting SY.Stems. The 
Department of Education's overexpenditures resulted 
from 1992-93 pa}1llents which the Department 
initially char_.ged against its 1993-94 appropriations; 
by the time tliey discovered their error, It was too late 
to process a request for increased appropriations. In 
all cases, the agencies involved had sufficient 
budgetary-basis revenue and cash to provide for their 
budgetary-basis expenditures. 

e. Legal Limit On Appropriations 

State law imposes a ceiling on appropriations for 
general, school, and highway purooses. The limit 
equals the greater of : U) the hmit for the last fiscal 
year increased by the average percentage rate of 
gro\\'th in State personal income for the _previous 
three completed calendar years, or (2) 9.5'7o of the 
total personal income of the State for the last 
comQ.!eted calendar year. 

The 1992-93 Appropriation Act included 
appropriations of $4.190 billion for general, school, 
ana h~g~way purposes-$996.9 million less than the 
legal hmit. 

f. Legal Limit on Number of State Employees 

The State's Constitution and statutes limit the 
number of emplQYees that the Budgetary General 
Fund may fund. The number of these employees may 
not increase faster than the State's poRulatwn. On 
June 30.,1993, 36,580 emQloyees were funded by the 
State's nudgetary Generalrund-7,887 fewer than the 
legal limit. 

g. Inequality of Residual Equity Transfers 

The Residual E_guity Transfers In recorded in the 
Other Budgeted Funds resulted from budgeting 
certain _previouslY. unbudgeted activities for the first 
time. Corresponaing Residual Equity Transfers Out 
were recordea in unbudgeted funds which are not 
displayed on the Combined Statement of Revenues, 
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Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balances-Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis). 

h. Resources Budgeted As Nonrecurring 

For the fiscal year ended June 30. 1993, the 
State's final budget categorized $122.962 million of 
Budgetary General Fund resources as being of a 
nonrecurring nature. This amount included 
$97.962 million reported within Revenues as 
Nonrecurring (Low-Level Radioactive Waste Access 
Fee and Other) and $25.000 million reported as 
Operating Transfers In. In addition to low-level 
radioactive waste access fee increases and the 
transfer from Other Budgeted Funds, these items 
include amounts associated with changes in the 
legally-established collection schedules lor certain 
licenses, certain Medicaid revenues, and initial 
accruals of certain taxes as explained above in part b, 
"Budgetary Basis of Accounting." 

i. Reconciliation of Budget/GAAP Reporting 
Differences 

The Combined Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures( and Changes in Fund Balances-Budget 
and Actual Budgetary Basis)-All Budgeted Funds 
presents comparisons of the State's legally adopted 
budget with actual data on the budgetary basis of 
accounting. Budgetarv accountmg_ principles, 
however, oiffer significantly from GAA.P accounting 
principl~s. T_hese differe~t acco~nting P.rin~iples 
r~sult m b_ast~, perspective,. entity, ana timmg 
differences m me excess or revenues and other 
sources of financial resources over (under) 
expenditures and other uses of financial resources. 
Tliese differences (expressed in thousands) for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 1993, were: 
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Special Capital Entar-
General Revenue Projects prise 

Classification of budgetary 
excess of revenues and 
other sources over (under) 
expenditures and other uses 
into GAAP fund structure: 

Budgetary General Fund ... $ 151,355 $ $ $ 
Other Budgeted Funds ....... {10,229) (51,780) 1198 {3,577) 

Totals ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••.•• 141,126 (51,780) 1,198 (3,577) 

Timing Differences .. ·················· 
Basis Differences ........ (29,481) 72,342 1,789 19,979 
To record excess of revenues 

and other sources over 
(under) expenditures/expenses 
and other uses for 
unbudgeted accounts ....... 4 523 (17 456) 4 245 28 001 

GAAP financial statement 
excess of revenues and 
other sources over 
expenditures/expenses 
and other uses ....................... s 116,168 s 3,106 s 7,232 s 44,403 

NOTE 3: DEPOSITS AND INVEST
MENTS 

By law, all de"R_osits and investments are under 
the control of the -state Treasurer except for those 
which by specific authority are under tne control of 
other cpmponent units, pnmarily the Public Service 
Authontv. 

The· following disP-lay reconciles the details 
included within this Tootnote to the Combined 
Balance Sheet at June 30, 1993 (expressed in 
thousands): 

Combined Balance Sheet 

Cash and cash equivalents ... .................................. $ 

Investments ....................................... . 

Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents ........................... . 

2,574,889 

11,091,339 

372,620 

Investments............................... 654,446 

Total •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• =$==14"",69=.:3~,294""""' 

Disclosure regarding deposits and investments pius 

reconciling items 

Carrying value a deposits ..... $ 278,216 

Carrying value a investments... 14,413,681 

Cash on hand...................................... .. .. . .. .. .. .... .. .. 1 , 397 

Total •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• =$==14"",69==3~,294== 
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Financial Statement Fund T~ees 

$ 

s 

Non- Totals 
Expend- expend- Higher (Memo-

lntarnal able able Pension Educa- randum 
Service Trust ......!!!!!!... Trust ~ tion Only) 

$ $ - $ $ - $ $ 151,355 
1 314 30 68 ~ 17 822 {43,894) 
1,314 30 --68- 1,260 17,822 107,461 

1,344 1,344 
957 7 (1,260) 1,910 66,243 

17 247 23 303 54 1 043.240 116125 1.219 282 

19,518 s 23,340 ~ s 1,043,240 ~ s 137,201 s 1,394,330 

a. Deposits 

Deposits include cash and cash equivalents on 
deposit in banks and non-negotiable certificates of 
deposit. At June 30, 1993, the carrving amount of 
the State's deposits was $278.2 million with 
corresponding bank balances of $383.0 million. Of 
the bank balance, $292.4 million was covered by 
Federal depository insurance or bv collateral held bv 
the State or by its agent in "the State's name, 
$7.0 million was collatenilized with securities held by 
the pledging financial institution's trust department or 
agent in tfie State's name, and $83.6 million was 
uncollateralized. All deposits under the control of the 
State Treasurer are fully insured or collateralized. 

b. Investments 

Legally authorized investments vary by fund, but 
generally include obligations of the Umted States and 
certain agencies of tfie United States, obligations of 
the State of South Carolina and certain of its political 
subdivisions, certificates of deposit, collateralized 
repurchase a_greements, and certam corporate bonds. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1993; the State 
has classified its investments into tnree risk 
categories. Category 1 includes investments that 
were insured or registered or for which the securities 
were held by the State or its agent in the State's name 
and investments for which the State has safekeeping 
responsibilities but no equicy or ownership interest or 
control. Category 2 includes uninsured and 
unregistered investments for which the securities 
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were held by the counterparty's trust department or 
agent in the State's name. Category 3 includes 
uninsured and unregistered investments for which the 
securities are held oy the counterparty, or by its trust 

department or agent but not in the State's name. The 
State's investments by risk category (expressed in 
thousands) at June 30, 1993, were: 

Category Carrying Market 
1 

U.S. government securities ............... $ 6,057,735 $ 
Corporate bonds ................................ 4,085,904 
Repurchase agreements ................... 1,482,910 
Commercial paper ............................. 147,671 
Other ................................................. 10,956 

Totals and subtotals ..................... $ 11,785,176 $ 

Deferred compensation 
plans-annuity contracts ................ 

Securities loan program-- U.S. 
government securities ................... 

Unsettled investment 
transactions ................................... 

Mutual funds ..................................... 
Totals ............................................. 

c. Securities Loan Program 

Through a safekeeping agent, the State lends 
securities for a fee from its investment portfolio on a 
collateralized basis to third parties, primarily 
financial institutions. The mafket value of the 
required collateral must meet or exceed 102% of the 
market value of the securities loaned, providing a 
margin against a decline in the market value of the 
collateral. Securities loaned and securities taken as 
collateral are all book-entry securities which are 
substantially similar in type, rate, and maturity for 
each transaction. Under tliis program, the State may 
demand return within twenty-four hours of any 
security previously loaned. At June 39.. 1993, the 
State had the following amounts or securities 
(expressed in thousands) on loan under this program: 

Description 
Pooled account ................................................ . 
South Carolina Retirement System .................. . 
Police Officers' Retirement System .................. . 
Total ..••••••••••••••••••••••••••.....••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••.• 

Carrying 
Value 

$ 25,942 
1,238,114 

176,100 
$1,440,156 

2 3 Value Value 

170,769 $ 24,458 $ 6,252,962 $ 7,285,001 
13,354 4,099,258 4,538,647 

13,352 1,496,262 1,496,262 
147,671 147,906 

20,448 6,311 37,715 45,499 
204,571 $ 44,121 12,033,868 13,513,315 

588,655 588,655 

1,440,156 1,806,301 

338,995 338,995 
12,007 13,351 

$ 14,413,681 $ 16,260,617 

NOTE 4: TAXES RECEIVABLE 

Taxes receivable (expressed in thousands) at 
June 30, 1993, were: 

Special Trust and 
General Revenue Agency 

Fund Funds Funds 
Retail sales and use ................ . $ 117,464 $ 36,248 $ 
Individual income ..................... . 94,692 
Corporate income .................... . 1,877 
Unemployment ......................... . 41,585 
Gasoline and motor vehicle ...... . 2,269 32,284 
Alcoholic beverages and 

tobacco.................................. 13,1 03 
Other........................................ 8,102 1,540 
Gross taxes receivable.......... 237,507 70,072 41,585 
Less: Allowance for uncollect-

ible taxes............................... 23,729 1,545 201 
Net taxes receivable ............... $ 213,778 $ 68,527 $ 41,384 

Approximately $24 7 million of net taxes 
receivable 12ertaimng to the General Fund and Special 
Revenue Funds were current receivables as of 
June 30, 1993, and were collected within thirty days 
after that date. 
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NOTE 5: FIXED ASSETS 

ProP.e[t)', plant, and equipment (expressed in 
thousanas) at June 30, 1993, consisted of: 

Land and im-
prOIIe!Tlents ..... $ 

Buildings, im-
prOIIe!Tlents, 
and utility plant. 

Machinery, 
equipment, and 
other .................. 

Construction in 
progress .... 

Property, plant, 
and equipment 
before accum-
ulated de-
preciation ........ 

Less: accum-
ulated de· 
preciation ••.••••• 

Total property, 
plant, and 
equipment, 

Enter- Internal 
erise Service 

175,119 $ 4,791 

2,676,171 119,028 

47,171 92,205 

330 352 8 478 

3,228,813 224,502 

8n,990 99,520 

Trust General Higher 
and Fixed Educa-

~ Assets tion 

$ 583 $ 150,549 $ 95,088 

4,576 746,323 1,363,724 

23 748,103 721,258 

139.824 138 671 

5,182 1,784,799 2,318,741 

94 

net •••••••••••••••••••• S 2,350,823 S 124,982 S 5,088 S 1,784,799 S 2,318,741 

Changes in general fixed assets (expressed in 
thousands) for the year ended June 30, f993, were: 

Land and improve-
ments ........................ $ 

Buildings, improve-
ments, and utility 

plant .......................... 
Machinery, equip-

ment, and other ......... 
Construction in prog-

ress .......................... 

Total General Fixed 

Balance 
July 1, 
1992 

147,687 

722,032 

716,518 

87,351 

$ 

Addl· 
tlons 

2,923 

25,053 

60,653 

80,089 

Balance 
Retire- June 30, 
ments 1993 

$ 61 $ 150,549 

762 746,323 

29,068 748,103 

27,616 139,824 

Assets ...................... $ 1,673,588 $ 168,718 $ 57,507 $ 1, 784,799 

Construction in progress retirements are recorded 
as additions to other categories of assets. 

Outstanding construction commitments at 
June 30, 1993, totaled $484.0 million. 

NOTE 6: RETIREMENT PLANS 

a. Plan Descriptions 

The Retirement Division of the State Budget and 
Control Board maintains four defmed benefit 
retirement svstems: the South Carolina Retirement 
System (SCR.S), the South Carolina Police Officers' 
Retirement System (PORS), the Retirement System 
for Members of the General Assembly of the State of 
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South Carolina (GARS), and the Retirement Svstem 
for Judges and Solicitors of the State of South 
Carolina (JSRS). These systems publish their own 
Component Unit Financial Repgrt. In addition, the 
State Ad.i.!ltant General's Ofilce administers the 
National yuard Pension System (NGPS), a defined 
benefit retuement system. 

The svstems provide retirement, death, and 
disability lienefits to State employees; pu~li~ s~h.ool 
employee~; employees of c.o~mtles, l11Ul'\l~tpahttes1 and certam oilier State pohtlcal subdtvtswns~ ana 
National Guard members who served in ;:)Outh 
Carolina. Each system is independent. Assets mav 
not be transferred from one system to another or usea 
for ~y purpose other than to benefit each system's 
parttctpants. 

The number of participating employers, the 
average number of contributing members, and annual 
payroll amounts (dollars expressed in thousands) for 
each system for the year ended June 30, 1993, were: 

SCRS PORS GARS JSRS NGPS ------
Number of employers: 

State and schools ... 106 
Other ..... 455 234 

Average number of con-
tributing members: 

State employees ... 66,745 8,793 170 113 
School employees ... 77,540 
Other employees ... 37,475 9,253 

Covered payroll: 
State ...... $1,653,072 $195,179 $2,380 $9,420 $ -
Schools ..... 1,721,526 
National Guard ...... 48,385 
Other ... 702,649 215,102 

Total payroll (cowred and 
noncovered): 

State ..... 1,882,698 197,174 2,380 9,420 
National Guard ... 48,385 

Information regarding membership in the systems 
at July 1, 1992 (latest available data), was: 

Retirees and beneficiaries 
currently receiving benefits 
and terminated employees 
entitled to benefits but not 
yet receiving them. .. 

SCRS PORS GARS JSRS NGPS 

Fully vested active employees .. 103,753 7,926 51 52 2,464 
Nonvested active employees... 64,999 9,540 ~ ~ 10,603 

Total active employees ............ 168,752 17 466 ...2.S.... .....!.!£... 13 067 

Total participants... 325,025 25,741 468 185 15,643 

b. Funding and Benefit Policies 

Article X, Section 16 of the South Carolina 
Constitution requires that all State-operated 
retirement svstems be funded on a sound actuarial 
basis. Title '9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws of 
1976 (as amended) prescribes requirements relating 
to 111em~ership,., benefits, and employee/employer 
contnbutwns ror each system. The folfowmg 
paragra_phs summarize those requirements. 

SCRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
pension system that benefits employees of puolic 
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schools, the State, and its political subdivisions. 
Membership is required as a condition of 
employment. Both employers and employees must 
contribute. Benefits vest after five years of service. 
Vested members who retire at age sixty-five or with 
thirty years of service at any age receive an annual 
benefit, payable monthly for life. The benefit is 
based on length of service and average final 
compensation, an annualized average of the 
employee's lii~st twelve consecutive quarters' 
compensation. -The annual benefit amount is 1.82% 
of average fmal compensation times years of service. 
Reduced benefits are payable as early as age fifty
five. 

PORS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
12_ension system that benefits 12_olice officers and fire 
lighters emploved by the ~tate or its political 
subdivisions. Membership is required as a condition 
of employment. Both employers and employees must 
contribute. Benefits vest atter five years of service. 
Vested members who retire with twenty-five years of 
service receive an annual benefit, payable monthly 
for life. The benefit is based on length of service ana 
average final compensation, an annualized average of 
the employee's h!ghest twelve consecutive quarters' 
compensatiOn. Tlie annual benefit amount is 2.14% 
of average final compensation times years of service. 

GARS is a smgle-employer defined benefit 
12_ension svstem that benefits members of the South 
Carolina General Assembly. Membership is required 
as a condition of taking office as a member of the 
General Assembly. Botli the members of the General 
Assembly and tlie State must contribute. Benefits 
vest after eight years of service. Vested members 
who retire at age sixty or at any age with thirty years 
of service receive an annual benefit, payable monthly 
for life. The annual benefit amount is 4.82% of 
earnable compensation times years of service. 
Earnable compensation is defined as fo~ davs' pav 
at the rate currently paid to members of the General 
Assemblv plus $3,600. 

JSRS is a single-employer defined benefit 
12_ension system that benefits the judges of the State's 
Supreme Court, Court of ApJ;>eals, circuit courts, 
family courts, and the States Circuit solicitors. 
Membership is required as a condition of taking 
office as a Judge in these courts. Both judges and the 
State must contribute. Benefits vest after twelve 
vears of service in a position as a judge or solicitor. 
Members may retire ~t age seve~ty with fifteen years 
of s~TVIce, at age Sixty-fiye with twenty years of 
service, or at any age with twenty-five years of 
service. Members receive a retirement benefit equal 
to 71)% of ~e current active salary of the position 
OCCl!P.Ied at retirement. 

NGPS is a single-employer defined benefit 
12_ension system that provides benefits to National 
Guard members who served in South Carolina. 
National Guard members are considered to be 
Federal government employees. The Federal 
government pays Guard members' drill pay and 
summer camp pay. In accordance with State law the 
State's Genera[ Fund pays Guard members only it the 
governor activates the National Guard for service to 
the State. The pension benefit that the State rrovides 
is intended only to supplement the retiremen benefit 
that Guard members receive from the Federal 
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government. Members who retire at age sixty with 
twenty years of military service, incluoing at least 
fifteen years ten of which immediatelY precede 
retirement,. of South Carolina National Uuard duty 
and who nave received an honorable discharge, are 
entitled to monthly pension benefits. The pension 
amount is equal to $50 per month for twenty years of 
creditable service with an additional $5 per month for 
each additional year of servic~ provided that the total 
P.ension shall not exceed $1 Ou per month. Members 
oo not contribute to the system, and the State does 
not fund the svstem on an actuarial basis. Instead, 
the State pays benefits to retirees from currently 
available resources on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

c. Funding Status and Progress 

The pension benefit obligation is a standardized 
disclosure measure of the present value of pension 
benefits (adjusted for the effects of projected salary 
increases and step-rate benefits) estimated to be 
payable in the future as a result of employee service 
to date. The State discloses this measure to help 
users of these financial statements to: (1) assess the 
svstems' funding status on a going-concern basis, 
(2) assess progress toward accumulating_ sufficient 
assets to pav oenefits when due, and p) compare 
various public employee retirement systems and 
employers. The measure is the actuarial present 
value of credited projected benefits. This method is 
independent of tne funding methods the State's 
consulting actuary uses to determine contributions to 
the systems. 

Significant actuarial assumptions used to 
compute the pension benefit obligation at 
July 1, 1992 (latest available data), were: 

SCRS PORS GARS JSRS NGPS ----------
Annual interest rate (compounded 

annually} ... 8.0% 8.0% 8.0% 8.0% 8.0% 
Inflation ... 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 
Merit or seniority increases .. 1.5% 2.5% 1.0% 1.5% 
Post-retirement benefit increases ... 4.0% 4.0% 0.0% 4.0% 

* Not applicable 

The annual interest rate assum12_tion for all plans 
is 8.0%. Salary scales for SCRS and PORS are 
graded based on age. The above figures are 
representative of those scales. Projected rates of 
separation due to withdrawal, oeath, service 
retirement, and disability are based on experience of 
the ~stems. 

Neither SCRS nor PORS separatelv measures 
assets and pension benefit obligatiOns for individual 
em_ployers. The total unfunoed pension benefit 
obligation for each system ( expresseo in thousands) 
at July 1, 1992 (latest available data), was: 
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SCRS 
Pension benefit obligation: 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving 
benefits and terminated employees not yet 
receiving benefits ................................................ $4,838,900 

Current employees-
Accumulated employee contributions including 

allocated investment earnings ......................... 2,108,900 
Employer-financed vested .................................. 1,107,300 
Employer-financed nonvested ............................ 3,496,400 

Total pension benefit obligation ••••••••••••••••••••••...• 11,551,500 
Net assets available for benefits, at cost... ............... 8,472,300 
Unfunded pension benefit obligation .................. $3,079,200 

Net assets available for benefits, at market ........ $9,412,000 

d. Contributions Required and Contributions 
Made 

For the fiscal year ended June 30. 1993, the 
State's consulting actuarv determined required 
employer contributions for· all five systems. The 
systems use the projected benefit metliod with entry 
age normal cost and OP.en-end unfunded accruea 
liability for this purpose. The actuary determines the 
actuanal present value of total benefits and allocates 
pension cost to each year as a level percentage of 
salary. In determining fu~ding reqmrements, the 
actuary uses the same actuanal assumptiOns as those 
used to calculate the pension benefit obligation, with 
the following exceptions: (1) Post-retirement benefit 
increases were projected only: for retired members 
and members eligible to retire under SCRS and 
PORS. (2) Net assets attributable to the SCRS and 
PORS group life insurance and the PORS accidental 
death programs were excluded. At Julv 1, 1992 

f'at~st ayailabl.e data_), the unfunded accrued liability 
tqmdatwn penods m years were: 

SCRS 
29 

PORS 
10 

GARS 
14 

JSRS 
23 

NGPS 
30 

The actuarially determined contribution 
requirements, as P.ercentages of compensation, for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 1993, were: 

Acci-
Unfunded dental Group Life 

Normal Accrued Death Insurance 
Cost Llabilit:t Pros ram Prosram Total 

SCRS--State and 
schools .............. 9.93% 3.62% 0.15% 13.70% 

SCRS--other .. 9.93% 2.77% 0.15% 12.85% 
PORS .............. 14.09% 2.71% 0.20% 0.20% 17.20% 
GARS .... 41.25% 20.57% 0.24% 62.06% 
JSRS ... 30.46% 17.19% 0.86% 48.51% 
NGPS ........ 0.81% 4.35% 5.16% 

The State's contribution requirements represented 
41% of contributions required of all employers 
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PORS GARS JSRS NGPS Totals 

$ 411,400 $14,300 $37,100 $15,581 $ 5,317,281 

164,700 5,100 7,100 2,285,800 
125,100 3,700 12,300 5,460 1,253,860 
318,700 5,500 4,600 2,259 3,827,459 

1,019,900 28,600 61,100 23,300 12,684,400 
870,600 24,800 41,400 9,409,100 

$ 149,300 $ 3,800 $ 19,700 $23,300 $ 3,275,300 

$ 963,300 $26,400 $44,600 $ - $ 10,446,300 

participating in SCRS and 48% of contributions 
required of all emplovers participating in PORS. 

The State's acttiarially determined contribution 
requirements (expressed in thousands) for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 1993, were: 

Acci-
Unfunded dental Group Life 

Normal Accrued Death Insurance 
Cost Liability Program Program Total 

SCRS--State and 
schools ············ $335,098 $ 122,160 $ $ 5,181 $462,439 
SCRS--other ... 69,773 19,463 967 90,203 
PORS ... 57,809 11,119 777 796 70,501 
GARS ... 982 490 6 1,478 
JSRS ... 2,869 1,619 81 4,569 
NGPS ... 394 2,105 2,499 

Employees do not contribute to NGPS. By law, 
emplovee contribution requirements for the other 
systems for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1993, 
were: 

SCRS 
PORS 
GARS 
JSRS 

6% of salary 
6.5% of salary 
1 0% of earnable compensation 
7% of salary 

Actual contributions (e~pressed in thousands) for 
the fiscal year ended June 3u-, 1993, were: 

Pen:ent of Pen:ent of 
Employer Covered Employee Covered 

Contributions Payroll Contributions Payroll 
SCRS--State .... $ 130,603 7.9% $ 104,593 6.3% 
SCRS--schods 133,028 7.7% 109,027 6.3% 
SCRS--other ..... 49,150 70% 44,113 6.3% 
PORS--State ... 21,360 10.9% 14,087 7.2% 
PORS--other .... 23,393 10.9% 15,096 7.0% 
GARS ... 1,239 52.1% 375 15.7% 
JSRS ... 3,910 41.5% 1,023 10.9% 
NGPS ... 1,170 2.4% 

Totals ........... S 363,853 s 288,314 

The actuarially determined contribution 
requirement for the NGPS was $2.499 million 



Notes to the Financial Statements 

whereas actual contributions were $1.170 million. 
As a result the State has recorded an additional 
liability of $1.329 million in the General Long-Term 
Obligation Account Group. 

e. Trend Information 

Trend information gives an indication of the 
progress made in accumulatin_g_ sufficient assets to 
Qay benefits when due. The South Carolina 
Retirement Systems' Component Unit Financial 
Report for tlie fiscal year ended June 30, 1993 
presents ten-year historical trend information for all 
systems except NGPS. For NGPS, this information 
is presented at the end of the Financial Section of this 
report. An analysis ~f funding progress for the three 
latest available years Is: 

SCRS PORS GARS JSRS NGPS ----------Net assets available for benefits 
as a percentage rl the pen-
sion benefit obligation 

July 1, 1992 ....................... 73.3% 85.4% 86.9% 67.8% 0.0% 
July 1, 1991 ....................... 71.8% 83.2% 85.0% 63.8% 0.0% 
July 1, 1990 ....................... 71.7% 82.4% 81.0% 58.7% 0.0% 

Unfunded pension bene!~ 
obligation as a percentage rl 
annual covered payroll 

July 1, 1992 ....................... 81.2% 38.2% 126.7% 221.0% 48.2% 
July 1, 1991 ....................... 81.4% 41.3% 145.6% 248.0% 39.6% 
July 1, 1990 ....................... 77.0% 40.0% 178.9% 280.0% 38.5% 

state employer contributions as 
a percentage rl annual cav-
ered payroll 

June 30, 1993 .................... 7.7% 10.9% 52.1% 41.5% 2.4% 
June 30, 1992 .................... 7.7% 10.9% 48.2% 41.5% 2.1% 
June 30, 1991 .................... 7.7% 11.6% 43.1% 40.9% 1.9% 

For the _years shown above and for all systems 
except the NGPS, the State's contributions to the 
§)'stems met the actuarially determined requirements. 
Employer contributions lor NGPS are equal to 
benefits paid during th~ year. The NGPS operates on 
a paY.-as-you-go -basis and does not meet the 
actuarially determined requirements. The State _plans 
to begin funding the pfan on an actuarial oasis, 
however, as ofJUly 1, 1993. 

f. Supplemental Benefits Funded by General 
Fund 

The State General Assembly has directed the 
9eneral Fund t<;> pay supQlemental (cost-of-liv~ng) 
mcreases to retirees and fully funds the r~qUired 
amount annually on a pay-as-you-:,go basis. Uurin~ 
the fiscal year ended June 30, IY93, the States 
General Fund transferred $7.5 million to the South 
Carolina Retirement System and the Police Officers' 
Retirement System for retiree supplemental benefits. 

g. Defined Contribution Plan 

Certain State employees may elect to partici_pate 
in the Optional Retirement Program (ORP), a defined 
contribution plan. The ORP was established in 1987 
under Title 9, Chapter 17 of the South Carolina Code 
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of Laws. The ORP provides retirement and death 
benefits through the purchase of individual fixed or 
variable annUity confracts which are issued to, and 
become the propercy o~ the participants. The State 
assumes no liaoil~cy ror this plan other than for 
paymen~ of contrioutions to designated insurance 
comQanies. 

ORP participation is limited to faculty and 
administrative staff of the State's four-year nigher 
education institutions who meet all eli.gioility 
requirements for membership in the SCRS. To elect 
participation in the ORP, eligible employees must 
Irrevocably waive SCRS membership Within their 
first ninety days of employment. 

Under State law, contributions to the ORP are 
re_quired at the same rates as for the SCRS (see 
"Contributions Required and Contributions Made," 
Section d of this note). For the fiscal year ended 
June 30 1993, the State's total payroll was 
$2.092 billion, and the covered pa_yroll for the ORP 
was $79.2 million. For the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1993_, emploY.er and employee contributions 
of $6.0 milhon ana $4.8 million, resQectivelv, 
represepted 7.55% and 6.0% of total covered payroll, 
respectively. 

h. Retirement Incentive 

Recent legislation allows (but does not require) 
el!l_ployers part~cipating in the SCR~ and/or roRS. to 
offer a one-time lump-sum retirement mcentive 
paytp.ent to certain emplovees. Employees of 
partic;ipating employers are e1igiple .for the ,payment 
only If they: ( 1) meet normal cntena to retire under 
the SCRS or PORS, (2) execute a voluntarv 
irrevocable election during the period Augl}s(f 
through November 11993, and (3) retire no later 
than July 1, 1994. 1ne incentive payment is 25% of 
the employee's budgeted base annual salary or 
$7,500, wliichever is greater at the time of retirement. 
The employer must pay the incentive by the end of 
the fiscal quarter following the quarter during which 
the employee retired. 

Subsequent to June 30, 1993. some State 
::tgencies elected to participate in· this program. 
Participating State agencies must adopt resolutions 
agreeing to .be liaple for funding any cost~ associated 
With tlie mcentives. The 'State estimates that 
ultimatelY. it will disburse approximately $18 million 
to its retiring employees in the form of lump-sum 
payments under this program. 

NOTE 7: POST-EMPLOYMENT 
BENEFITS OTHER THAN 
PENSIONS 

In accordance with the South Carolina Code of 
Laws and the annual Appropriation Act, the State 
provides post-employment health and dental benefits 
to its emplqyees who retire with 30 vears of service 
or at age 6G with at least 20 years of service and to 
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certain surviving dependents of retirees. Currently, 
apprpximately 15,800 retirees meet these eligibility 
reqmrements. 

Eligible retirees choose between two health 
insurance plans underwritten by the State. the 
Economy Plan and the Standard Plan. In accordance 
with contractual provisions of the plans, participants 
must meet specified annual deductible requirements. 
Thereafter the Standard Plan pays 85% of allowable 
claims, and the Economy Pia~! pays 80% of allowable 
claims. The State pays 100% oi allowable claims

1 however, after the participant has paid the annua 
out-of-pocket limit prescnbed by each plan. Both 
plans disallow claims in excess of specified annual 
and lifetime maximums. In addition, State health 
benefits are reduced if the participant receives or 
qualifies to receive Medicare 15enefits. 

The State also underwrites a dental care plan. 
Contractual provisions of the plan specify deductible 
requ~rements as well as annual and lifetime 
maximums. 

Both health plans and the dental plan are 
financed on a pay-as-you-~go basis. During the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 1993, the State reco~·zed 
ex enses (net of partici ant contributions of 
$~.9 million to proviae heafth and dental bene Its to 
State participants in post-employment status. 

NOTE 8: DEFERRED COMPENSA
TION PLANS 

Several OI?tional deferred compensation plans are 
available to State emp!Qyees and employees of its 
political subdivisions. The multi{?le-em_ployer plans, 
created under Internal Revenue Code SectiOns 457, 
40l(k), and 403(b), are accounted for as Agency 
Funds. Employees may ·withdraw the current value 
of their contributions when they terminate 
employment. With approval of the State's Deferred 
Compensation Commission, employees may also 

withdraw the current value of their contributions 
prior. to terrp.ination of employment if they tpeet 
certam reqmrements. These re~mrements differ 
among the three plans. Compensation deferred under 
the Section 401(k) and 403(o) plans is placed in trust 
for the contributmg employees. The State has no 
liability for losses under the tJlans. 

Under the Section 457 plan, all deferred 
compensatio11, all property or rights of p~operty 
purcbased With amounts deferred, and any mcome 
earned on propertv purchased remain assets of the 
emplovers SUDJec( to the claims of the emplovers' 
genera1 creditors, one of whom is the emplovee 
participant. It is unlikely, however. that the Sfate 
would ever use plan assets to satisfy claims of the 
State's general creditors. State law hmits the State's 
financial liability to participants. The State. 
however, does have the outy oi due care that would 
be required of an ordinary prudent investor. Of the 
$460.) million assets in the Section 457 plan at 
December 31, 1992, $246.7 million was ar•plicable to 
the State while the remaining $2 3.8 million 
represented assets of other participating jurisdictions. 

NOTE 9: LEASES AND INSTALL
MENT PURCHASES 

a. Lease and Installment Purchase 
Commitments 

The State leases landboffice facilities, equipment, 
and other assets under oth capital and operating 
leases. In addition, the State purchases some assets 
on the installment plan. The present value of future 
minimum capital lease and installment purchase 
payments and minimum annual lease pa\-ments for 
operating leases, capital leases. and installment 
purchases (expressed m thousands) follow: 

Caf!ital Leases and Installment Purchases 
Long-Term 

Internal Obligations Higher 
Enterprise Service Account Education Operating 

Fiscal Year End in!! June 30 Funds Funds Groul! Funds Leases 
1994 $ 6,622 $ 7,158 $ 1,770 $ 2,652 $ 22,669 
1995 5,299 4,464 1,382 2,540 18,448 
1996 5,297 4,481 1,151 1,867 15,616 
1997 5,299 4,498 362 1,425 12,173 
1998 5,601 4,507 164 1,195 5,389 

1999 and after 51,608 39,727 12,122 19,236 
Total minimum payments .............................................. 79,726 64,835 4,829 21,801 $ 93,531 

Less: interest and executory costs ................................... 21,982 24,860 898 8,633 
Present value of net minimum payments .................... $ 57,744 $ 39,975 $ 3,931 $ 13,168 
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0Qerating lease paYll).ents during the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 1993, totaled $45.3 million. 

b. Facilities Leased to Others 

Non-State :P-arties lease certain land and facilities 
from the South Carolina Ports Authority (Ports 
Authority), an Entet::Rrise Fund, under o:Rerating 
leases. At June 30, f993, the Ports Authority had 
leased to others land and facilities costing 
aP-proximately $130.3 million with $54.3 million oT 
refated accumulated deP.reciation. Future minimum 
P.a)'ments and rent receipts at June 30, 1993, under 
these operating leases (expressed in thousands} were: 

Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30 Amount 

1994 $ 7,824 
1995 7,389 
1996 4,432 
1997 3,324 
1998 1,845 

1999 and after 1,924 
Total $ 26,738 

NOTE 10: BONDS, NOTES, AND 
CERTIFICATES OF 
PARTICIPATION 
PAYABLE 

a. General Obligation Bonds 

General obligation bonds are backed by the full 
faith, credit, and taxing power of the State. General 
obligation bonds ~expressed in thousands) 
outstanding at June 30, 1993, were: 

State of South Carolina 

General Long-Term Obligations Account 
Group 

Capital improvement bonds, 4.63% to 8.50% ............... $840,795 

Higher Education Funds 
State institution bonds, 4.10°,{, to 7.50%....................... 43,230 
Totals-1Jeneral obligation bonds payable ............ $ 884,025 

At June 30, 1993, $254.1 million of capital 
improvement bonds were authorized but unissued. 

The State must pay the debt service on 
$7.0 million of its capital improvement bonds 
outstanding at June 30, 1993, from State income tax 
revenuesih which revenues are deemed sufficient to 
p~y bo principal and interest on the bonds. 
Unspecified General Fund revenues secure all other 
general obligation bonds outstanding. 

At June 30, 1993 future debt service 
req!Jire~ents (expressed in thousands) for general 
obhgat10n bonds were: 

Fiscal Year 
Ending 
June 30 Princi~al Interest Totals 

1994 $ 83,395 $ 54,600 $ 137,995 
1995 82,735 49,096 131,831 
1996 74,165 43,728 117,893 
1997 79,425 38,833 118,258 
1998 82,450 33,815 116,265 

1999 and after 481,855 132,492 614,347 
Totals $884,025 $352,564 $1,236,589 

The General Fund pays all debt service for 
general obligation bonds recorded in the General 
Long-Term Obli!@tions Account Group. The Higher 
Education Plant runds (Retirement of Indebtedriess) 
pay the debt service for general obligation bonds 
recorded in the Higher Education Funds. 

The State's legal debt margin at June 30, 1993d 
was $150.0 milhon for highway bonds an 
$16.8 million for institution bonds. 

Rather than directry limiting the amount of 
outstandin_g debt, State raw imposes a limitation on 
annual deot service expenditures. The legal annual 
debt service margin at June 30, 1993, for other 
general obligation 5onds was $14.4 million. 
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b. Revenue Bonds, Notes, and Certificates of 
Participation 

~~ve~ue bonds, notes and certificates of 
participatiOn are not backed by_ the full faith credit 
and taxing ~ower of the State. "Revenue bonds, notes: 
and certilicates of particiQation outstanding 
(expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1993, were: 

Bonds 
Enterprise Funds 

Public Service Authority priority 
obligations, 2. 70% to 4.1 0%..... $ 47,245 

Public Service Authority electric sys. 
tern expansion revenue bonds, 
5.00% to 9.10% .......... . 

Public Service Authority electric rev
enue bonds, 5.00% to 7.75% ..... 

Housing Authority bonds, 3.50% to 
1~25% ..................................... . 

Education Assistance Authority 
bonds, 4.75% to 8.60% ... 

Ports Authority bonds, 5.00% to 
6.75% 

Research Authority notes, 5. 1 0% to 
7.70% ....................................... . 

Other Enterprise notes, 6.00% to 
7.00% ... 

Totals-Enterprise Funds ....... 

Higher Education Funds 
Various bonds and notes, 2.60% to 

10.50%..... .. ............... .. 
Certificates of participation, 5.60% to 

7.50% ....................... . 

Totals-Higher Education 
Funds .................................. .. 

Totals--revenue bonds, notes, 
and certificates of participa-

1,496,997 

982,230 

589,360 

268.455 

64,693 

3,448,980 

231,000 

231,000 

Notes 

$ -

10,146 

_]J@_ 

14,066 

19.484 

19,484 

Certificates 
of 

Participation 

$ 

19 335 

19,335 

tion.................................... $3,679,980 $33,550 =$=~19~,3~35~ 

The State has recorded its revenue bonds payable 
net of $50.825 million in unamortized premi
ums/discounts. 

Certain revenue bonds require the individual 
entef}Jrises to P.rovide sufficient revenue to pay debt 
service. and to fund all necessary expenses to run the 
enterpnses. 

At June 30, 1993, there was no revenue debt 
authorized but unissued. 

At June 30, 1993 the State also owed the United 
States _government $10.076 million for construction 
of the Trotters Shoals Lake Project. This obligation 
is included in Other Liabilities m the General Long
Term Obligations Account Group. During the fiscal 
year ended June 30

1 
1993, retirements on this debt 

totaled $32 thousano. 
The funds that receive the proceeds of bonds 

notes, and certificates of participation have pledged 
revenues for payment of debt service as follows: 
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Enterprise Funds 
Public Service Authority obligations: Public Service Authority 

Fund revenues 
State Housing Authority bonds: State Housing Authority Fund 

revenues 
Education Assistance Authority bonds: loan repayments and 

United States Commissioner of Education funds (State 
Education Assistance Authority and Student Loan 
Corporation Fund) 

State Ports Authority bonds: State Ports Authority Fund 
revenues 

Higher Education Funds 
Various higher education bonds, notes, and certificates of 

participation: various specific higher education revenues 

Th~ Research Authority notes included in the 
Ent~rpnse Funds are collateralized by buildings and 
equipment. 

At June 30, 1993 future debt service 
requirements (expressed in thousands) for revenue 
bonds, notes, and certificates of participation were: 

Fiscal Year 
Ending 
June 30 Princi~al Interest Totals 

1994 $ 124,856 $ 213,508 $ 338,364 
1995 91,672 207,730 299,402 
1996 106,437 212,914 319,351 
1997 91,976 217,979 309,955 
1998 98,556 223,242 321,798 

1 999 and after 3,270,193 3,367,558 6,637,751 
Totals s 3,783,690 s 4,442,931 s 8,226,621 

The Public Service Authority is reported in the 
State's Enterprise Funds. The Authoritv's fiscal year 
ends December 31. At December 31 1992 the 
canyi~g. valu~ of t~e Authority's ' debt ' was 
$2.) b!ll!on while th~ fair value was approximately 
$2.8 bilhon. The fair value was estimated based on 
the quoted market prices for the same or similar 
Issues or on the current rates offered to the Authoritv 
for debt with the same remaining maturities. • 

c. Defeased Bonds 

Durirg its fj.scal year ~nded December 31, 1992, 
the Pubhc ~ervice Authontv, an agencv reP,orted in 
the En~erpnse Funds, issuec,l $168.545 million in 
Refundmg Revenue Bonds with an aver<J:ge interest 
rate of 5.'38% to advance refund $158.79) million in 
Electric _System Expansion Revenue Bonds with an 
average mterest rate of 7. 90%. The net Qroceeds of 
$158."845 million (after pa)'ment of $2.00U million in 
original issue discount and $7.700 million in issuance 
costs and reserve requirements) plus an additional 
$11.400 million were used to purchase United States 
government securities. The Authority advance 
refunded these bonds to reduce its total debt service 
payrne~ts over the next . twenty-nine Y.ears by 
approXImately $28.597 milhon and to obtain an 
economic gain (difference between the present values 
of the debt service pa\'ments on the old and new debt) 
of approximately $10.268 million. Because the 
Authority is a regulated utility, it amortizes _.gains or 
losses on refundmg debt issues over the lite of the 
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new issues rather than recognizing such gains or 
losses as extraordinary items at the date of refunding. 

During August 1992, the Coll~ge of Charleston, 
an institution reported in the Higl;ler Education 
Funds, issued $8.535 million in Facilities 
Improvement Refunding Bonds with an average 
interest rate of 5.54% to advance refund 
$7.800 million in Facilities Improvement Bonds with 
an average interest rate of 7.93%. The net proceeds 
of $7.507 million (after payment of $1.028 million in 
issuance costs and reserve requirements) plus an 
additional $1.340 million in excess debt service funds 
were used to purchase United States government 
securities. The College advance refunded these 
bonds to reduce its totaf debt service payments over 
the next fifteen years by approximately 
$1.013 million and to obtain an economic gain 
(difference between the present values of the debt 
service payments on tlie old and new debt) of 
$379 thousand. 

During October 1992, the College of Charleston 
also issued $20.010 million in Housing and Auxiliary 
Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds with an average 
interest rate of 5. 61% to advance refund 
$18.284 million in Student and Faculty Housin_g 
Bond~ Parking Facilities Bonds, Cafeteria Bonds 
and uormitory Revenue Bonds with an average 
interest rate of 7.24%. The net proceeds of 
$19.358 million (after pavment of $0.300 million in 
original issue discount and $0.352 million in issuance 
costs) plus an additional $1.325 million in excess 
debt service funds were used to QUrchase United 
States government securities. The College advance 
refundcii these bonds to reduce its total cfebt service 
payments over the next fifteen years by 
approximately $2.854 million and to obtain an 
economic gain (difference between the present values 
of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) 
of$1.461 million. 

In addition, during the current and prior years the 
State defeased certam general obligatiOn and other 
bonds. For those defeasances involving advance 
refundings, the proceeds of the new bonds were 
J?laced in mevocable trusts to _provide for all future 
aebt service pavments on tfie old bonds. At 
June 30, 1993, the following outstanding bonds 
(expressed in thousands) are considered defeased: 

Capital improvement 

Enterprise 
Funds 

bonds ......................... $ 
Public Service Authority 

bonds......................... 477,695 
Ports Authority bonds.... 22,470 

General 
Long-Term 
Obligations 

Account 
Group 

Higher 
Education 

Funds 

$ 56,000 $ 

Other.............................. 99,669 
Totals ••.••••••••••••••••••••••• $ 500,165 $ 56,000 $ 99,669 

Since adequate funds have been placed with a 
trustee to paY. fully the principal and interest of these 
bonds, the liabilities are not recorded in these 
financial statements. 
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d. No-Commitment Debt 

State law authorizes issuance of certain bonds for 
which the State assumes no responsibility for 
repayn:1ent. These bonds, therefore, do not appear as 
liaoilities in the accompanying financial statements. 
These bonds P._rovide low-cost capital financing for 
construction oT private facilities deemed to be m the 
public interest. The State's no-commitment debt 
mcludes industrial develoP.ment bonds, QOllution 
control bonds~ aiTP.ort bonas, educational facilities 
bonds, certam State Housing Finance and 
Develo)Jment AuthoritY. Multi-Family Bonds issued 
since 1985, bonds of the South Carolina Resources 
Authority, an~ debt issued by certain other State 
component uruts. 

e. Commercial Paper Notes 

The $121.75 million of Commercial Paper Notes 
in the EnteqJrise Funds was issued bY. the Public 
Service Authority. The Authority has a $150 million 
revolving. credit agreement to support the issuance of 
commercial paper. 

f. Patriots Point Development Authority Bonds 

In _past years, the State's Entef)Jrise Funds 
includecf $21.0 milhon of Patriots Point Development 
Authoritv Bonds on which the Authority had 
defaulted. The bonds were secured by the revenue of 
a planned hotel and marina complex, but construction 
had been halted, and the developer was in 
bankruptcy. 

As a result, the AuthoritY. was a codefendant in 
several lawsuits. The plaintiffs included holders of 
the Authority's bonds and contractors associated with 
the suspended construction project. In 
November 1992, the parties readied a final 
settlement agreement, and in December 1992, the 
court authonzed distribution of settlement funds. 
The Authoritv's disbursements in December 1992 
satisfied $29.7 56 million of its liabilities, including 
the remaining balance of the bonds and related 
accrued interest payable. Also as a result of the 
settlement, the Construction In Progress account was 
reduced to reflect the project assets at $5 million, 
their estimated net realizabfe value. These settlement 
transactions resulted in the extraordinary gain 
described in Note 16. 

In December 1992, the Authority received 
$6 million under an unsecured, interest-free interfund 
note. The PU!POSe of this note, which matures in 
December 1995, was to facilitate the Authoricy's 
participation in the court-approved settlement and to 
allow adequate protection and maintenance of the 
construction project's facilities. 

Current raw prohibits the Authority from issuing 
revenue bonds, but it may issue negotiable notes. 

g. Issues Subsequent to June 30, 1993 

Since July 1 1993 the State has issued 
approximatelv $l.46 billion of bonds. Of this 
amount, $1.'30 billion of bonds were issued to 
advance refund prior issues. The State also P.lans to 
issue bonds and notes totaling approximately 
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$22 million in December 1993. Of this amount 
$17 million of bonds will be issued to advance refund 
prior issues. 

NOTE 11: CHANGES IN GENERAL 
LONG-TERM OBLIGA
TIONS 

Changes in general long-term obligations 
(expressed in thousands) for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1993, were: 

Balances Balances 
at July 1, 1992 Increases Decreases at June 30, 1993 

Accounts payable 
and accrued lia-
bilities .................. $ 6,110 $ 2,109 $ (6,551) $ 1,668 

Insurance claims 
incurred but not 
reported ............ 3,308 2,836 (1,842) 4,302 

Notes payable ....... 31,350 (31,350) 
General obligation 

bonds payable ..... 800,385 110,000 (69,590) 840,795 
Capital lease and 

installment debt 
obligations pay-
able ........... ..... 2,932 4,358 (3,359) 3,931 

Compensated ab-
sences payable ... 116,682 66,309 (62,365) 120,626 

Other liabil~ies ...... 21,034 16,914 (5,854) 32,094 
Totals ................. $ 981,801 $ 202,526 $ !180,9111 $ 1,003,416 

Fund Tl~e/Fund Due From 
General 

General Fund .............................................................. $ 18,503 
Less: eliminations ...................................................... {17,062} 
Adjusted General Funct ......................................... 1,441 

Special Revenue 
Departmental General Operating Fund ....................... 19,851 
Education Improvement Act Fund ............................... 870 
Repair, Maintenance, and Renovation Fund ............... 1,830 
Waste Management Fund .......................................... 1,767 
Highway Department Special Revenue Fund .............. 32,123 
Water Recreation Resources Fund ............................ 96 
Employment Security Assessment Fund .................... 
Accommodations and Local Option Sales Tax Fund .. 81 
Energy Settlement Fund ............................................. 18 
Omnibus Crime Fund ................................................. 
Medicaid Expansion Fund ........................................... 26 
Other Special Revenue Funds .................................... 1,026 
Less: eliminations ...................................................... {20,411} 
Adjusted Special Revenue Funds ........................ 37,277 
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The Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities, 
Insurance Claims Incurred but not Reported, and the 
majority of the Other Liabilities consist of claims and 
judgments payable. Other Liabilities also includes 
the excess of the actuarially reguired contributions 
over actual contributions for tlie National Guard 
Pension System. 

NOTE 12: INTERFUND 
BALANCES 

a. lnterfund Assets and Liabilities 

Interfund assets and liabilities (expressed in 
thousands) for each individual fund at June 30, 1993, 
were: 

lnterfund lnterfund Advances Advances 
Due To Receivables Palables To From 

$51,611 $ 4,084 $ 737 $ 13,548 $ 8,131 
{17,062} 
34,549 4,084 737 13,548 8,131 

18,493 360 302 281 
1,230 426 

14 500 
148 

10,596 6,988 
5 

793 
69 
24 

416 
48 
45 49 70 478 

{20,411} {75} {75) 
11,470 334 1,223 7,466 281 
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lnterfund lnterfund Advances Advances 
Fund T:t~e/Fund Due From Due To Receivables Pa:tables To From 

Capital Projects 
Capital Projects Fund ................................................. $ 6,473 $ 1,440 $ $ $ $ 988 
Less: eliminations ...................................................... !51 !51 
Adjusted Capital Projects Fund ••••••••••••••••.••••••••••• 6,468 1,435 988 

Enterprise 
Housing Authority ....................................................... 18 
Jobs-Economic Development Authority ...................... 11 64 
Patriots Point Development Authority .......................... 40 6,080 
Patients' Compensation Fund ..................................... 2 
Second Injury Fund ..................................................... 232 
Other Enterprise Funds .............................................. 1,048 153 7,356 
Less: eliminations ...................................................... !681 !681 
Adjusted Enterprise Funds •••••••••••••••••••••••.••••••••••• 991 441 13,436 

Internal Service 
Insurance Reserve Fund ............................................. 187 12 3,035 34,497 
Health and Disability Insurance Fund ......................... 12,410 150 
Workers' Compensation Fund .................................... 5,065 2,360 
State Employee Unemployment Compensation Fund. 5 1,142 
General Services Fund ............................................... 1,229 307 2,397 4,748 22,193 38,234 
Central Supplies and Equipment Fund ....................... 1,263 10 1,100 
Information Resources Management Fund ................. 3,272 183 274 705 11,042 
Motor Pool Fund ......................................................... 921 130 52 115 
Pension Administration Fund ...................................... 103 
Prison Industries Fund ................................................ 344 167 
Other Internal Service Funds ...................................... 2 23 
Less: eliminations ...................................................... !4,5871 !4,5871 p,7411 p,7411 !38,1831 !J8,1831 
Adjusted Internal Service Funds ••••••••••••••.••••••••••• 20,111 1,965 2,864 18,507 11,208 

Trust and Agency 
Expendable Trust: 

Unemployment Compensation Benefits Fund ............. 2 85 
Pension Trust: 

South Carolina Retirement System ............................. 12,951 11,512 
Police Officers' Retirement System ............................ 2,230 613 
Judges' and Solicitors' Retirement System ................. 27 

Agency Funds: 
Federallnterfund Activity Fund ................................... 4,301 4,149 285 
Payroll Clearing Fund .................................................. 32,204 6,536 18 
Other Agency Funds ................................................... 2 49,816 80 

Less: eliminations ........................................................... !38,7091 !38,7091 
Adjusted Trust and Agency Funds ....................... 13,008 34,002 303 80 

Higher Education 
Unrestricted Current Funds ........................................ 5,999 5,767 
Restricted Current Funds ........................................... 1,775 818 
Unexpended Plant Funds ........................................... 1,193 5 
Retirement of Indebtedness Funds ............................. 1,389 1,286 
Investment in Plant Funds .......................................... 1,256 5,557 
Agency Funds ............................................................. 121 
Less: eliminations ...................................................... !1,6301 !1,6301 
Adjusted Higher Education Funds ....................... 8,847 6,246 1,256 5,557 

Totals-all funds .................................................. $ 88,143 $88,143 $ 6,383 $ 6,383 $ 39,601 $ 39,601 
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b. Inequality of Operating Transfers In and Out 

Operating Transfers In exceed Operating 
Transfers Out by $182 thousand because the Public 
Service Authority, a component unit, reports using a 
December 31 fiscal Y.ear-end. The $182 thousand 
difference represents Operating Transfers In for the 
General Fund for the fiscal__year ended June 30,. 1993, 
less OP.erating Transfers Out for the Public ~ervice 
Authority for its fiscal year ended 
December 31, 1992. 

c. Inequality of Residual Equity Transfers In 
and Out 

Residual Equity Transfers Out exceed Residual 
Equity Transfers 1ti by $30.8 million. This resulted 
Q_nmarilY. because the Special Revenue Funds and 
Capital PrQjects Funds recorded Residual Eftuity 
Transfers Out of $18.5 million and $14.0 mil ion 
respectively, while the Entergrise Funds recorded 
additions to Contributed Capital. The remaining 
difference resulted from transfers of previously 
existing Governmental Funds to newly establisheo 
Enterprise Funds in response to legislative changes. 
In these instances, certain fixed assets previously 
recorded in the General Fixed Assets Account Group 
were transferred to the new Enterprise Funds as 
Residual Equity Transfers In. 

NOTE 13: RESERVATIONS AND 
DESIGNATIONS OF 
FUND EQUITY 

Reservations represent legally segregated fund 
equity and amounts that cannot tie appropriated for 
future expenditure. Designations of unreserved fund 
equicy reflect tentative plans for future use of 
available financial resources. 

a. Retained Earnings Reserved for Special 
Purposes 

Retained Earnings Reserved for Special Pur~Joses 
in the Enterprise Funds primarily consist of balances 
reserved as required oy bond indentures of the 
Housing Authority and the Education Assistance 
Authonty. 

b. Reserve for Pensions and Other Benefits 

This account includes amounts reserved for 
pensiqn, ~roup life, and accidental .death benefit~. It 
also mcludes reserves to reco~1ze the restncted 
nature of the fund balances in the Unemployment 
Compensation Fund. 
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c. Reserves in the Higher Education Funds 

Outside sources may restrict certain Higher 
Education Funds' resources. The financial statements 
present restricted fund balances as reserves. These 
reserves include reserves for endowments and other 
higher education restricted funds to be used for 
special purposes. 

Grant monies received from the United States 
government under certain student loan programs are 
recorded as Reserved for Federal Government Grants 
Refundable. The purpose of this reserve is to 
indicate that these amounts can neither be 
appropriated nor expended and to reflect the State's 
ongoing responsibility to lend the resources only in 
ac9orqance with applicable Federal program 
gmdelmes. 

d. General Fund Reserve 

The South Carolina Constitution reguires that the 
State maintain a reserve to prevent <feficits in the 
Budgetary General Fund. The reserve is fully funded 
whenever it equals three percent of the Budgetary 
General Fund's revenue (budgetary basis) of the-latest 
completed fiscal year. 

1f the State withdraws funds from the reserve to 
cover a year-end deficit, it must replace the funds 
within three years. The Constitution re_guires that at 
least one percent of the Budgetarv General Fund 
revenue (buqgetary basis) of the latest completed 
fiscal vear, irso much is necessarv, be restored each 
year following the deficit until full funding is 
achieved. 

During the fiscal vear ended June 30, 1992, the 
State withorew the entire reserve balance to cover a 
year-end negative unreserved fund balance on the 
budgetary oasis. During the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1993, the reserve balance increased to 
$66.8 million. This brought the reserve to 
$33.4 million below the full-funding amount of 
$100.2 million. 

e. Reserve for Inventories 

The Governmental Funds reserve a portion of 
fund balance equal to year-end inventory balances to 
indicate that the fUnds are not available for 
appropriation. 

f. Reserves for Loans, Notes Receivable, and 
Advances to Other Funds 

Long-Term Loans, Notes Receivable, and 
Advances to Other Funds are assets that do not 
represent exrendable available resources. The 
Governmenta Funds). therefore, reserve a 
corresponding portion or fund balance. 
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g. Reserve for Appropriations to be Carried 
Forward 

The General Fund does not use encumbrance 
accountin_g. The Reserve for Appropriations to be 
Carried Forward, however, is used in situations 
where the General Assembly has authorized 
Budgetary General Fund appropnations to be carried 
forward to the next fiscal year. 

h. Reserve for Endowment and Similar Funds 

This reserve recognizes restrictions Qlaced on 
donated resources. In the Fiduciary Fund Types, the 
reserve represents amounts donated to State-o\\<ned 
secondary schools and to certain other State 
departments. 

i. Reserve for School Building Aid 

Amounts in the General Fund and in the 
Education Improvement Act Fund, a Special Revenue 
Fund, are reserved if committed to State school 
districts to build school buildings or to retire debt on 
such bujld~gs. Such amounts are not available for 
appropnatwn. 

j. Reserve for Encumbrances 

Although not required by State law some 
component units reported in the Higher Education 
Funds use encumbrance accountmg. These 
component units record a reserve for encumbrances. 

k. Reserve for Other Special Purposes-special 
Revenue Funds 

The Reserve for Other Special Purposes within 
the Special Revenue Funds primarilY consists of 
preP.~Ia items of t)le Department of Highways and 
Puohc Transportation. 

I. Designation for Special Purposes 

Amounts Designated for Special Purposes in the 
Special Revenue Funds consist __generally of 
Department of HighwaY.S and Public Transportation 
resources which are designated for subsequent years' 
expenditures, primarily for highway maintenance. 

m. Designated for Capital Expenditures 

The State reports the fund balance in the Capital 
Project~ Fund as Designated for Capital 
Expenditures. 
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n. Designation for Quasi-Endowments 

The Desig11ation for Quasi-Endowments includes 
resources thaf the State's nigher education institutions 
intend to use in a manner similar to endowments in 
future years. 

NOTE 14: RELATED ORGANIZA
TIONS 

These financial statements exclude certain related 
foundations and other organizations. (See also 
Note la, Scope ofReQ.orting Entity.) 

The most sigt1il:icant of these organizations 
include: the Universitv of South Carolina 
Development Foundation; the University of South 
Carolina Educational Foundation,; the University of 
South Carolina Business Partnersnip Foundation; the 
Coastal Educational Foundation, Inc., of the 
University of South Carolina; South Carolina 
Universities Research and Education Foundation; 
Greater Universitv of South Carolina Alumm 
Association; the Universitv of South Carolina School 
of Medicine Educational Trust; the Carolina 
Piedmont Foundation. Inc.; the Clinical Faculty 
Practice Plan of the UniversitY. of South Carolina; 
Lancaster County Educational Foundation, Inc.; the 
Clemson University Foundation· the Clemson 
University Research Foundatio~i University Medical 
Associates of the Medical universi):y of South 
Carolina; the Health Sciences Foundation of the 
Medical Universitv of South Carolina; the 
Educational Television EndO\vment of South 
Carolina; the College of Charleston Foundation; the 
Lander Foundation; the Winthrop University 
Foundation; the Francis Marion University 
Foundation; the Citadel Development Foundation; the 
Association of Citadel Men· the Citadel's Brigadier 
Club; South Carolina State Educational Founcfation; 
Greenville Technical Foundation, Inc.; Tri-County 
Technical College Foundation, Inc.; and the Friends 
of the State Museum. 

Those organizations above that are related to 
hig_her educatiOn r~ort total assets of approximatelY. 
$314 million. During the fiscal year endeo 
June 30, 1993, the State entered into various 
transactions with these organizations. Approximate 
amounts within the State's Higher EducatiOn Funds 
that represented transactions with these organizations 
include: receivable from foundations-$7.5 million; 
donations of cash and other assets from 
foundations-$42.8 million; expenditures (rental of 
fo~ndation-owned propertyf-$11.9 million; and 
reimbursements to the State for 
expenses/expenditures the State incurred on behalf of 
foundations-$!. 0 million. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1993 the 
Educational Television Endo\\ment of S'outh 
Carolina disbursed approximately $8.9 million on 
behalf. pf the State for programs, development, 
advertismg, and other costs. 
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NOTE 15: SEGMENT INFORMA
TION-ENTERPRISE 
FUNDS 

The State groups its Enterprise Funds into 
several ~ents which are included in the following 
table. Tlie Public Service Authority produces and 
sells electric power. The State Housmg Finance and 
Development Authority (Housing Authority) provides 
low-cost housin_g to the State's citizens by issuing 
bonds/notes and~ by administering Federal contracts 
and grants. The Ports Authority develops and 

Public 
Service Housing 

Authoritl Authoritl 
Operating revenues ........................... $ 546,878 $ 64,465 
Depreciation and amortization 
expense ........................................... 85,602 134 

Operating income (loss) .................... 136,192 9,090 
Federal revenue ................................. 14,491 
Operating transfers: 

ln .................................................. 442 
Out. .............................................. (5,816) (3,455) 

Extraordinary gains (losses) .............. (1 ,557) 
Net income ........................................ 23,901 4,461 
Current capital contributions and 
transfers .......................................... 

Property, plant, and equipment: 
Additions ...................................... 235,279 110 
Retirements .................................. 14,685 70 

Net working capital.. .......................... (133,289) 5,021 
Total assets ....................................... 3,515,461 721,808 
Bonds and other long-term liabilities 
payable from operating revenues ..... 2,480,186 613,968 

Total fund equity ................................ 624,536 106,745 

The Public Servi~e Authority's sale o( electric 
power to two maJor customers constttutes a 
concentration of credit risk for the State's Enterprise 
Funds. Revenue and accounts receivable (expressed 
in thousands) of the State's Enterprise Funds at 
June 30, 199:J, attributable to those customers for the 
Authority's fiscal year ended December 31, 1992, 
were: 

%of Total %of Total 
Operating Accounts Accounts 

Customer Revenue Revenue Receivable Receivable 
Central Electric Power 
Cooperatiw, Inc ........... $236,000 31.70% $21,946 31.81% 

Alumax cl South 
Carolina, Inc ................. 82,000 11.01% 7,097 10.29% 
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maintains State harbors and seaports and handles the 
commerce through these ports. The Education 
Assistance Autliority (including both the State 
Education Assistance Authority and the South 
Carolina Student Loan Co!Poratwn) makes loans to 
eligible students. The Otlier segment includes the 
Jo5s-Economic DeveloP.ment Authority, the Patients' 
Compensation Fund The Research Authority, the 
Patriots Point Development Authority, the Second 
Injury Fund. and Other Enterprise Funas. 

Segt!lent financial information (expressed in 
thousands) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1993, 
follows: 

Education 
Ports Assistance Elimi-

Authoritl Authoritl Other nations Totals 
$ 45,335 $ 19,476 $68,359 $ $ 744,513 

11,639 127 2,689 100,191 
3,594 (5,134) (5,615) 138,127 

11,440 341 26,272 

4,775 1,515 (3,460) 3,272 
(5) 3,460 (5,816) 

9,789 8,232 
4,375 6,470 5,196 44,403 

27,476 7,114 34,590 

79,217 349 7,453 322,408 
1,497 66 11,327 27,645 
1,128 69,712 58,630 1,202 

351,527 340,815 181,110 (68) 5,110,653 

64,388 246,489 38,757 3,443,788 
267,389 63,319 95,056 1,157,045 

NOTE 16: EXTRAORDINARY 
GAINS AND LOSSES 

The $10.0 million Extraordinary Gain-Other in 
the Enterprise Funds arose from a debt restructuring 
as a result of a bankruptcy proceeding involving the 
Patriots Point Development Authoritv. A devefoper 
failed to complete an Authorit)· /roject and 
sub~equentlv defaulted on bonds issue to fund the 
~roJect (also see Note 10f, Patriots Point 
Development Authority Bonds). The gain represents 
the excess of liabilities settled over disbursements 
required and the reduction of Construction in 
Pro~ss to its net realizable value. 

The $1.8 million of Extraordinary Losses on the 
Early Extin_guishment of Debt in the Enterprise 
Funds was tlie sum of a $1.6 million loss on Housing 
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Authority debt extin_guishments and a $0.2 million 
loss on Research Autliority debt extinguishments. 

NOTE 17: DEFICIT FUND BAL
ANCES AND RETAINED 
EARNINGS 

Individual funds with deficit fund balances or 
deficit retained earnings (expressed in thousands) at 
June 30, 1993, were: 

Amount 
Fund Type/Fund of Deficit 

General Fund.................................................. $ 94,281 
Special Revenue Funds 
Omnibus Crime Fund..................................... 115 

Internal Service Funds 
Workers' Compensation Fund........................ 6,628 
General Services Fund................................... 8,448 
Highway Department Internal Service 
Fund............................................................. 317 

The State's General Fund is in a deficit position 
at Jun~ 30, 199~, primarily as a result of the 
econonuc recess10n of prev10us fiscal years The 
$212.1 million deficit at June 30, 1992. decreased 
during the fiscal year ended June 30, i993 as a 
result of stringent spending reductions: Dunng the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 1993 the General 
Assembly also enacted legislation th'at will have the 
effect of limiting appropriations in future years. 
Economic recovery contmues to be slow and is 
exJ?ected to remain so through much of the fiscal year 
enoirrg June 30, 1994. 

The deficit position of the Omnibus Crime Fund 
is due pfin1arily to the year-eng accrual of payroll 
an~ OP.eratmg expenses. This fund's revenues, 
pnmanly court fines and fees, are not subject to 
accrual under the modified accrual basis of 
accounting,__ 

The Workers' Compensation Fund a risk 
m~agement fund, _recorded liabilities on the accrual 
b~Is b_oth for claims known but not paid and for 
claims ~ncurred but not reported. The deficit resulted 
from differences betw~en revenues generated from 
Fund-estimated premmm rates and actuariallv 
determined ~xpenses. . • 

The pnmary funct10n of the General Services 
Fund is rental of State-owned office space to other 
State agencies. The deficit resulted oecause rental 
and otlier fees were based on projected cash flow 
needs rather than on accrual-basis expenses. 

Management of the Department of Highways and 
Public Transportation does not intend that revenues 
of its Internal Service Fund fully cover costs of the 
fund. 
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NOTE 18: PUBLIC ENTITY RISK 
POOL 

The State operates the South Carolina Medical 
Malpractice Patients' Compensation Fund (PCF) a 
Public Entity Risk Pool. ' 

a. Description of Fund 

State law created the PCF to pav that portion of 
~y medical . malpra~tice claim • settlement, or 
Judgr_nent agamst a licensed heafth care provider 
which exceeas $100,000 per incident or $300 000 in 
the ~ggregate for one_ year. Licensed health care 
providers mclude physicians and surgeons directors 
officers and trustees of hospitals, nurses oral 
surgeons, dentists, pharmacists, chiropractors 
4ospitals nursing homes, and anv similar category of 
~Icensed health care providers. All providers licensed 
m ~outh Carolina are eligible to P.articiP.ate upon 
remittance of the annual assessment fees. Currentlv 
the PCF's. participants inclu~e 5f240 in_diyidual healfli 
care provioers, 8'34 P.rofess10na associatiOns and 64 
hospitals, clinics, ana nursing homes. ' 

b. Unpaid Claims Liabilities 

The Fund actuarially establishes claims liabilities 
based on estimates of die ultimate cost of claims that 
have been reported but not settled, and of claims that 
have _been incu_rred b1._1t not reported. The Fund does 
not mcur claim adjustment expenses because it 
c_arries only _excess liability coverage. The length of 
time for which such costs must be estimated varies 
depending on the coverage involved. Because actual 
claif!lS costs depend on such complex factors as 
f!1e~Ic;al technology, changes in doctrines of legal 
liability, and damage awards, the process used in 
compu~mg claims liabilities does not necessarily 
result m an exact amount. Claims liabilities are 
recqmputed ann1._1ally using a variety of actuarial and 
statistical techniques to produce current estimates 
that reflect recent settlements, claims frequencv and 
other economic and social factors. A grovision for 
inflation in the calculation of estimated future claims 
costs is. imp_licit because reliance is placed both on 
actual histoncal data that reflect J?ast mflation and on 
other factors that are considerea to be appropriate 
f!lOqifiyrs of past experience. Adjustments to claims 
liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the 
periods in which they are made. 

c. Reconciliation of Claims Liabilities 

The Fund establishes liabilities for reported and 
uru:eported insured events. These liabilities include 
estima~es of future payments of losses. The 
followmg represents changes in those aggre_gate 
liabilities (expressed in tliousands) for tlie PCF 
during the past two fiscal years: 
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1993 1992 

Unpaid claims at beginning or year........................... $15,525 $15,750 

Incurred claims: 
Provision for insured events or the current 
year..................................................................... 6,556 2,374 

Increases (decreases) in provision for insured 
events or prior years............................................ 1,816 (140) 

Tolal incurred claims................................................. 8,372 2,234 

Payments on claims attributable to insured 
events or prior years................................................ 9,310 2,459 

Tolal unpaid claims at end or the year....................... $ 14,587 $ 15,525 

In 1992 and 1993, there were no payments of claims 
attributable to insured events of the current year. 

d. Revenue and Claims Development 
Information 

The s~arately issued audited Component Unit 
Financial Statements for the PCF include Required 
Supplementary Information regarding revenue and 
clauns development. 

NOTE 19: JOINT OPERATION 

The Summer Nuclear Station is a~· oint operation 
owned by the Public Service Authori , a regulated 
electric utility reP.orted within the Sta e's Enterprise 
Funds, and the South Carolina Electric and Gas 
Company, a non-governmental electric utility. The 
Pubbc Service Authority owns an undivided one-third 
interest in the Station while South Carolina Electric 
and Gas owns an undivided two-thirds interest. 
South Carolina Electric and Gas is solely responsible 
for. the Station's management, . b~dg~ting, operation, 
mamtenance, and decommissionmg; and the 
Authority is obligated to Q.ay its ownership share of 
all costs relating thereto. The Authority receives one
third of the net electricitY. generated. 

In accordance with regulatory accounting 
practices, the State's Enterprise Funds at 
June 30, 1993, include PropeftX, Plant, and 
Equipment of $436 million ana expenses of 
$41.21- million which reP.resent the State's interest in 
this joint operation. The State has financed its 
interest in th~ joint OQeration with long-term debt. 
The Summer Nuclear Station is not a separate legal 
entity and does not prepare separate financial 
statements. 

Under the joint ownership agreement, the 
Authority has commitments of approximately 
$3.5 million for the Qurchase, conversion, 
enrichment, and fabrication oT uranium. 

Additionally, South Carolina Electric and Gas 
has determined that the Summer Nuclear Station 
steam generators must be replaced due to stress 
corrosion cracking. Total estimated cost for the 
replacement is $136 million of which the Authority 
will be responsible for aP.proximately $52 million. 
The replacement is scheauled for 1994. South 
Carolina Electric and Gas has filed suit against the 
manufacturer of the generators. The ultimate 

76 

outcome ofthe claim, however, cannot be determined 
at this time. Accordinglv, no benefit has been 
recorded in the financial statements. 

The Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) has 
published final regulations on decommissioning of 
nuclear facilities. These regulations require a 
licensee of a nuclear reactor to provide mmimum 
financial assurance of its ability to decommission its 
nuclear facilities. A site-specific decommissionin~ 
study completed in 1991 estimated the Authority s 
share of decommissioning costs for the Summer 
Nuclear Station as approximately $76.3 million in 
1990 dollars. The Autfiority accrues for its share of 
the estimated decommiss10nillg costs over the 
remaining life of the facility. Tiiese costs are being 
recovered through the Authority's rates. 

To comply with the NRC regulations, the 
Authority estaolished an external trust fund and has 
been making deposits into this fund since 
September 19"90. In addition, the Authority 
established an internal decommissioning account in 
1983. Based on the current site-specific studv these 
funds, which totaled approximately $20.8 milfion at 
December 31, 1992, along with fiiture deposits into 
both the external and internal decommissioning 
accounts and investment earnings, are expected to 
P.rovide sufficient funds for the Authority's share of 
the estimated decommissioning costs. 

The Price-Anderson Indemnification Act has 
established the maximum liabilicy for public claims 
arising from any nuclear incident as $7.8 billion. 
This amount would be covered by nuclear liability 
insurance of up to $200 million per site, with any 
additional liability covered by retrospective 
assessments of UP. to $66.15 million per licensee for 
each nuclear inciaent occurring at any reactor in the 
United States {payable at a rate not to exceed 
$10 million per mcident per year}. Based on its one
third interest in the Summer Nuclear Station, the 
Authority would be responsible for a maximum 
assessment of $22.05 million, not to exceed 
~proximately $3) million P.er ~ncident per year. 
Tliis amount IS subject to further mcreases to reflect 
(i) inflation, (ii) increases in the licensin~ for 
!Jperation 9f additional nuclear reactors, ~d (~n _ap.y 
mcrease m the amount of commercial ha Ihtv 
insurance the NRC is required to maintain. • 

NOTE 20: CONTINGENCIES AND 
COMMITMENTS 

a. Litigation 

(i) The State is involved in several significant 
legal proceedings: 

(a) As a result of a United States 
Supreme Court ruling the State 
pass~d l~gislation to tax State retirees' 
Qension mcome to the same extent as 
Federal retirees' pension income. 
Liti_gation initiated by individual 
plamtiffs during the fiscal vear ended 
June 30, 1989, sought refunds for 
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taxes paid by Federal retirees prior to 
this legislatiOn. Since the issue of 
allowing Federal retirees to claim 
refunds was not resolved by the United 
States Supreme Court ruling, cases 
are pending in the court seekmg tax 
refunds for Federal retirees. During 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 199<J, 
the State Supreme Court ruled in favor 
of the State. The plaintiffs filed a 
Petition for Writ of Certiorari 
requesting that the United State 
Supreme Court consider this issue. 
This Petition was granted, and the 
decision of the State Supreme Court 
was vacated. The case was remanded 
to the State Supreme Court for further 
consideration in light of another 
United States Supreme Court decision. 
The State Supreme Court again ruled 
in favor of the State. The plaintiffs 
have filed a second Writ of Certiorari 
with the United States Supreme Court, 
and this Writ was granted. The State 
Supreme Court's jud!¥.llent was 
vacated, and the act10n is presently 
Qending uQ_on remand before the State 
~upreme Court. If this case were to 
have an unfavorable outcome, the 
State could incur losses up to 
$200 million. Settlement negotiations 
are ongoing and if successful, could 
result in a liability less than 
$200 million. 

(b) The State is currently appealin_g an 
adverse ruling entered by the State 
Court of Common Pleas. This action 
involves a sales tax on the sale of 
telecommunications capacity by a 
vendor to telephone companies who 
use the capacity to provide telephone 
services to the public. The trial court 
found that the transactions between 
the vendor and the telephone 
companies were who1esale 
transactions not subject to the sales 
tax. The potential liability resulting 
from this case is estimated to be 
$1.2 million. 

(c) An action is currently pending in 
the State Court of Common Pleas that 
involves an interpretation of South 
Carolina's rules concerning the filin_g 
of consolidated returns 6y multiple 
taxpayers that Cl;re allege<:fly not 
conductmg a multi-state busmess as 
required by the consolidated return 
reg_ulation. Should this case have an 
urifavorable outcom~ the State could 
incur a loss or approximately 
$4 million. 

It is presently not possible for the AttorneY. 
Genera1's Office to determine the final 
outcome ofthese pending cases. 
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(ii) In 1840, the State purchased approximate!~ 
144,000 acres of land in two of the States 
counties from the Catawba Indian Nation. 
JAe State then sold the land to private 
Citizens. 

For several years, the Catawba Indian 
Nation soug!_Jt recovery of this land through 
the courts. In October 1993, legislation was 
approved pursuant to a settlement agreement 
reached earlier. As a result, the plaintiffs 
have agreed to terminate their lawsuit. The 
State's liability as a result of the settlement is 
$12.5 million to be paid out over the next five 
Y.ears. The State's financial statements reflect 
this liability. 

(iii) The State is involved in litigation that 
challenges its Beachfront Management Act. 
The Act provides for beach protection 
through a forty-year program to restore the 
beacli and dune svstem to Its natural dynamic 
equilibrium. The Act contains certain 
prohibitions against building and against 
rebuilding in tlie event that currently existing 
structures are demolished. The Act provides 
limited remedies in those cases where it is 
determined that the rebuilding prohibition 
deprives the owner of the practtcaf use of the 
p_roperty. In Lucas v. South Carolina 
Coastal Council the courts determined that 
the Act had resuited in a "temporary taking." 
On July 2

1 
1993, the Lucas case was settled. 

The State s financial statements reflect the 
resulting liability. Counsel for the State 
believe that the aggregate of all filed and 
potential cases will not have a material 
adverse effect on the State's financial 
statements. 

(iv) The State is involved in a Federal class 
action lawsuit challenging the consti
tutionality of the conditions oi confinement at 
the State Department of Youth Services' 
long-term care facilities and its reception and 
evaluation center. The action seeks both 
damage and remedial relief. Should the court 
order significant remedial relief, the cost to 
the State is estimated to range from 
$5 million to $10 million. These costs, if 
ordered, would likely extend over several 
fiscal years. 

(v) The State's Department of Highways and 
Public Transportation is involvea in several 
legal proceedings.. At Jun.e 30, 1993, the 
Department was mvolved m seven cases 
re_g_arding condemnation rangin_g from 
$I50,000 to $3,100,000. The $3~100,000 
case was settled after June 30, and the State's 
financial statements accordmgly reflect a 
liabilitv for this amount. The Department is 
also party to several contract disputes. 
Because substantial Federal participatiOn is 
expected if the State loses these cases they 
are not expected to have a material adverse 
effect on tlie State's financial position. 
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(vi) Numerous actions have been filed against 
the State pursuant to a State law which 
prov~des _emplovment protection for reports 
of vtolattons of State or Federal laws or 
regulations. Althou~ recent statutory 
cli~ges limit the State s exposure for future 
clatms, there are numerous pendin_g actions 
filed pursuant to the former act. The State 
presently maintains an unfunded exposure 
created b¥ the operation of this former act. 
The State s legal counsel do not believe that 
any of the current actions individually will 
have a material effect on the State's financial 
statements. An estimate of the State's 
aggreg~te potential liability and cost in 
defending tliese actions is not available. 

(vii) The State is a defendant in a Federal school 
district desegreruttion claim. The Darlington 
County Scho!JrD_istrict is seeking a Fecferal 
court order dtrectmg the State to share in the 
costs of implementing a desegregation plan in 
the ~vent tliat a desegregation P-fan is ordered 
agatq.st the school distnct as The result of a 
PS!~dmg lawsuit between the district and the 
Umted States Government. The State 
defendants have filed a motion to dismiss the 
district's cross-claim. Counsel for the State 
believe that there are meritorious l~al 
defenses that should preclude the entrv oCan 
order against the State. Nevertheless the 
cost to the State of court-ordered relief could 
be significant. 

(viii) The State is involved in other legal 
proceedings pertaining to 111atters incidental 
to the performance of routme governmental 
!Jperat~ons. Such li~igation includes cases 
mvolvmg_ the legahty of certain taxes 
assesseaby the State, claims asserted against 
the State arising from alleged torts and 
p9ssible violations of State ana Federai'laws. 
Unfavorable outcomes in these matters could 
result in the State incurring losses. However, 
these losses are not expected to have a 
material, adverse impact on the financial 
position of the funds involved. 

(ix) 
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Subsequent to June 30, 1993, a case was 
brought against the State by twenty-nine 
school districts and an individual taxpayer on 
behalf of a minor student. The action 
challe~ges. the svstem 9f funding public 
educatiOn m South Carohna. The plamtiffs 
are asking for the current system to be 
amended and for funds to be appropriated to 
J?rovide remedial relief to the plainttff school 
ilistricts. 'fP.e ~tate's attorneY.S are UJ;lable to 
assess the hkehhood that the State wdl incur 
a loss; however, the relief requested bv the 
plainttffs, if awarded, could have a material 
adverse impact on the State's financial 
statements. 

b. Loan Guarantees 

The S~te. Education Assistance Authoritv 
(SEAA) withm the State's Entei"prise Fund's 
guarantees student loans. At June 30". 1993 these 
roans totaled $410.9 million. The United' States 
Department of Education (DOE) ordinarilv reinsures 
losses under these guarantees up to 100%. "If the loan 
default rate exceeds 5% of tlie loans in repayment 
status, however, the DOE decreases the reinsurance 
rate. The States default rate at June 30 1993 was 
less than 2%. ' ' 

c. Federal Grants 

. The State receives significant Federal grant and 
entttlement reven~es. _Compliance audits oT Federal 
IJr:ograms may 1dent1fy disallowed expenditures. 
Disallowances by .Federal program officials as a 
result of these audits mav oecome liabilities of the 
S~te. The S~te records a liability for pending 
dtsallowances If settlement is prooable and the 
settlement amount is reasonablv estimable 
Otherwise, the liability is recorded \vhen the State 
~d the Federal government agree upon 
reimbursement terms. It IS presently not possible for 
m~agel)lent to determine the outcome of pe~ding 
a~d1t. disallowances. Based on an analysts oi 
histone~! data, however, ~he State believes that anv 
such retmbursements relatmg to the fiscal year endea 
June ~Of _1993, or earlier vears will not have a 
matena Impact on the State's financial position. 

d. Purchase Commitments 

At. December ~ 1, 1. Q92, the Public Service 
Authoncy, an electnc utlhty company reported in the 
Ent.erp~se Funds,. _had outstanaing minimum 
obhgattons under extstmg purchase contracts totaling 
approximatelv $969.1 million for coal and 
aQproximately $139.7 million for power. The terms 
ofthe contracts range from three to forty-three years. 

e. State Underground Petroleum Environmental 
Response Bank 

The South Carolina State Underground 
Petroleum Environmental Response Bank Act of 
1988 provides funds throtmh a petroleum use tax for 
the rehabilitation of qualified sites contaminated with 
petroleum or petroleum products released from 
und~rground storag_e tanks. The State's DeP.artment 
of ti~alth and Environmental Control (DHEC) 
adm1~1~ters the Act. Any responsible party who 
rehabthtates a qualified site is entitle~ to pa}ment of 
allowable costs. As a result of this program the 
State had $15 millioJ;l of Accounts Payable at 
June 30, 1993, for: which funds were not available. 
The ~tate's fin~9al statements reflect this liability. 
C9ntmgent habthttes at June 30, 1993, resulting from 
tl:us . program cannot be estimated but could be 
stgmficant. 
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f. Economic Development 

During the fiscal year endeq June 30, 19~2, the 
State committed to purchase and unprove certa,m land 
in Greer South Carolina, at a cost o(~pproxm!_al~ly 
$45.2 million so that B~varian Motor .Works.(BM\YJ 
could build an automobile manufactunng facthty. As 
of June 30 1993, the State haa expended 
approximatefy $41.8 million to purchase the land and 
begin the improvements. 

The State has committed to lease the land to 
BMW for 50 years at $1 per year. Under the 
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proP.osed lease BMW must build an ;:tuto111obile 
proCluction facility on the_p_rc:m_~rty. If it dtsco~tmued 
operation of the facility, BMW would be reqmred to 
purchase the site from the State at original cost. In 
addition BMW could elect to purchase all or part of 
the site 'at any time during, or at the conclusiOn of, 
the lease term for an amount equal to the State's 
original cost. State ~fficials intend tJlat the Ports 
AuThority an Ent_er:p_f_lse Fund, enter mto the lease 
agreement with BMW during the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 1994. 
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in web version of CAFR 

In 1920 Columbia, long before the days of mobile phones and fax machines, telephone switchboards and operators 
asking, "Number, please?" were the nerve centers of communications. Columbia was one of the first three cities in 
the nation to test dial telephone service in 1922. 
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It was considered an architectural marvel of its time and even today, the Cooper River bridge attracts special 
interest and attention from drivers crossing between Charleston and Mount Pleasant. Opened in the 1930s, it 
replaced ferryboat crossings and was a major link in the North-to-Florida motorcar routes. 
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Special Revenue Funds 
Special Revenue Funds account for specific 

revenue sources (other than for Capital Projects, 
Trust and Higher Education Funds) that are legally 
restricted for specified pui'I!_oses. The State uses the 
following Special Revenue runds: 

Departmental General Operating Fund. This 
fund accounts for resources that are P.art of a 
Qarticular State component unit's or agency's General 
:Fund but are not part of the State's General Fund. 
These resources mclude significant amounts of 
Federal grant receipts. 

Education Improvement Act Fund. This fund 
accounts for the special ad~itional ~ne-percent sal~s 
tax levied to be used exclusively for 1mprovements m 
elementary and secondary education. 

Repair, Maintenance, and Renovation Fund. 
This fund accounts for State bond proceeds and other 
permanent improvement project . resourc~s to be 
expend~d for app~oved . repair, mamtenance, 
renovatiOn, and alteratiOn proJects. 

Waste Management Fund. This fund accounts 
for fees collected from consumers, generators of solid 
and hazardous wastes, and owners and operators of 
solid waste and hazardous waste storage facilities. 
These fees must be used for the purpqses set forth in 
the State's Solid Waste Policy and Management Act 
of 1991 and to cover the State's costs in 
governmental actions involving uncontrolled 
liazardous waste sites. 

Hi_ghway Department Special Revenue Fund. 
This fund accounts for the various gasoline taxes, 
fees, fmes, and Federal grant resources used by the 
Department of Highways and Public Transportation 
for its general operations. These OP.erations include 
highway maintenance and repair, highway safecy, and 
law enforcement, and licensing/registration of drivers 
and vehicles. 

Water Recreation Resources Fund. The 
revenues in this fund come from watercraft gasoline 
taxes. These revenues must be used for water 
recreational resources and are allocated to counties 
for this purpose. 

State of South Carolina 

Employment Security Assessment Fund. 
This fund accounts for assessments made on 
employers to cover the administrative costs of the 
EmploY.Jllent Security Commission. These revenues 
must be used bv the EmP.loyment Security 
Commission in assisting with re-employment. 
supp~e!llenting basic employment services, and 
proVIding employment services. 

Accommodations and Local Option Sales 
Tax Fund. This fund accounts for: (1) a special 
additional two-Qercent sales tax on the gross proceeds 
on the rental oi transient accommodatiOns and (2) a 
special one-p~rcent sales tax ~plicable in some 
localities within the State. The State allocates these 
revenues to counties and municipalities in accordance 
with State law. 

Energy Settlement Fund. Revenues received 
from court-ordered settlements resulting from oil 
overcharges by various oil companies are accounted 
for in this fund. These resources must be used for 
energy-related programs designed to benefit all 
categories of the State's petroleum product 
consumers. 

Omnibus Crime Fund. This fund accounts for 
court fees remitted to the State by local court systems 
under the Onmibus Crime Act of 1984. These fees 
must be used for certain _programs administered by 
the Department of Varo1e and Community 
Corrections. 

Medicaid Expansion Fund. Resources of this 
fund include county assessments for incligent medical 
care and a tax on 1icensed hospitals. The fund was 
established to provide Medicaio coverage to persons 
formerly ineligtble for such coverage_ and to provide 
additional Stafe matching funds for Medicaid. 

Other Special Revenue Funds. These funds, 
aggregated for reporting purposes, account for 
vanous other revenues whtch must be used for 
specific purposes. These include operations of 
various agricultural boards, forest renewal programs. 
certain housing programs, and medical and dental 
scholarships. 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

High-tech in South Carolina in 1900 meant a well-equipped college physics laboratory. These military cadets were 
among the early students at Clemson College, now Clemson University, which was established in 1888. The 
institution discontinued its military status in 1955, at which time it also became co-educational. 
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Combining Balance Sheet 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Repair, 
Depart- Education Mainte- Highway 
mental Improve- nance, Waste Department Water 
General ment and Manage- Special Recreation 
O~erating Act Renovation ment Revenue Resources 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents ........................ $108,428 $ 12,530 $ 3,589 $40,715 $ 282,419 $ 3,399 
Investments ............................................... 202 
Receivables, net: 
Accounts .................................................. 51' 198 84 199 2,241 
Taxes ....................................................... 248 28,546 31,725 106 
Loans and notes ...................................... 51,641 

Due from Federal government 
and other grantors ................................... 210,402 570 1,964 

Due from other funds ................................. 19,851 870 1,830 1,767 32,123 96 
lnterfund receivables .................................. 360 
Advances to other funds ............................. 6,988 
Inventories ................................................. 9,523 14,390 
Other assets .............................................. 408 

Total assets •........................................ $451,853 $ 42,030 $ 5,989 $42,681 $ 372,258 $ 3,601 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued 

liabilities ................................................ $155,845 $ 2,215 $ 597 $21,645 $ 50,951 $ 10 
Tax refunds payable ................................. 62 636 
Intergovernmental payables ..................... 63,394 6,360 727 7 
Due to other funds ................................... 18,493 1,230 14 148 10,596 5 
lnterfund payables ................................... 302 426 500 
Advances from other funds ...................... 281 
Deferred revenues .................................... 44,807 1,012 4 
Other liabilities, including retainages 

payable .................................................. 6 204 8,605 

Total liabilities ................................... 283,128 11,305 1,319 22,520 70,788 22 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for: 

Inventories ............................................. 9,523 14,390 
Advances to other funds ......................... 6,988 
Long-term loans and notes receivable .... 51,641 
School building aid ................................. 10,106 
Other special purposes .......................... 408 

Unreserved: 
Designated for special purposes ............. 237,559 
Undesignated ......................................... 107,561 20,619 4,670 20,161 42,125 3,579 

Total fund balances ........................... 168,725 30,725 4,670 20,161 301,470 3,579 

Total liabilities and fund balances .. $451,853 $ 42,030 $ 5,989 $42,681 $ 372,258 $ 3,601 
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Accommoda-
Employment tions and Other 

Security Local Option Energy Omnibus Medicaid Special Elimina-
Assessment Sales Tax Settlement Crime Expansion Revenue tions Totals 

$ 3,416 $ 12,603 $ 26,777 $ 769 $ 4,238 $ 12,814 $ $ 511,697 
202 

290 31 58 54,101 
1,291 6,611 68,527 

1,696 53,337 

1,296 214,232 
81 18 26 1,026 (20,411) 37,277 

49 (75) 334 
478 7,466 

23,913 
408 

$ 4,707 $ 19,295 $ 27,085 $ 769 $ 4,295 $ 17,417 $ (20,4861 $ 971,494 

$ 156 $ 4,165 $ 2,734 $ 468 $ 107 $ 714 $ $ 239,607 
15 713 

7,403 109 101 78,101 
793 69 24 416 48 45 (20,411) 11,470 

70 (75) 1,223 
281 

23 288 46,134 

8,815 

972 11,940 2,867 884 155 930 (20,4861 386,344 

23,913 
478 7,466 

1,394 53,035 
10,106 

408 

237,559 
3 735 7,355 24,218 {1151 4,140 14,615 252,663 

3l35 7,355 24,218 (1151 4,140 16,487 585,150 

$ 4,707 $ 19,295 $ 27,085 $ 769 $ 4,295 $ 17,417 $ (20,4861 $ 971,494 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Repair, 
Depart- Education Mainte- Highway 
mental Improve- nance, Waste Department Water 
General ment and Manage- Special Recreation 
O~erating Act Renovation ment Revenue Resources 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Retail sales and use ............................... $ $312,446 $ $ 1,810 $ $ 
Other ..................................................... 3,471 19 345,155 1,050 

Licenses, fees, and permits ...................... 23,955 23,132 91,238 
Interest and other investment income ....... 2,731 473 1,745 
Federal. ................................................... 1,929,692 682 10,199 
Departmental services ............................. 128,133 180 7,605 2 
Contributions ........................................... 93,213 3 
Fines and penalties .................................. 12,314 4 192 2,226 
Other ....................................................... 38,647 143 164 1,192 

Total revenues ................................... 2,232,156 313,062 869 27,062 457,615 1,053 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General governmental. ........................... 14,780 463 1,279 
Education .............................................. 91,587 9,579 230 
Individual and family services ................ 1,735,619 8,024 3,817 39,658 
Administration of justice ......................... 20,126 865 2,035 
Resources and economic development.. 55,637 2,039 233 
Transportation ....................................... 288 5 287,905 

Capital outlay ........................................... 24,572 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement. ............................... 1,182 
Interest and fiscal charges ..................... 42 

Intergovernmental.. .................................. 363,179 280,467 3,733 813 

Total expenditures ............................. 2,282,440 299,398 9,405 43,391 312,477 1,046 

Revenues over (under) expenditures ...... (50,284) 13,664 (8,536) (16,329) 145,138 7 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Lease and installment debt proceeds ....... 2,774 
Operating transfers in .............................. 108,150 10,774 876 
Operating transfers out. ........................... {37,400) {8,465) (746) (7,860) {158,663) (105) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 73,524 (8,465) 10,028 (7,860) {157,787) {105) 

Revenues and other sources over 
(under) expenditures and other uses .... 23,240 5,199 1,492 (24,189) (12,649) (98) 

Fund balances (deficit), July 1, 1992 ...... 166,687 25,526 3,178 44,350 329,069 3,677 
Increases in reserve for inventories ....... 2,164 50 
Residual equity transfers out .................. {23,366} (15,000) 

Fund balances (deficit), June 30, 1993 .... $ 168,725 $ 30,725 $ 4,670 $20,161 $301,470 $ 3,579 
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State of South Carolina 

Accommoda-
Employment tions and Other 

Security Local Option Energy Omnibus Medicaid Special Elimina-
Assessment Sales Tax Settlement Crime Expansion Revenue tions Totals 

$ $ 63,098 $ $ $ $ $ $ 377,354 
5,320 25,547 2,692 383,254 

4,010 142,335 
1,238 149 340 6,676 

815 1,941,388 
542 136,462 

7,535 480 101,231 
1,738 10,350 437 27,261 

2 589 40,738 

5,320 63,098 2,976 10,350 33,233 9,905 3,156,699 

5,447 4,166 845 7,969 34,949 
101,396 

1,100 29,730 2,938 1,820,886 
10,145 213 33,384 

1,820 59,729 
288,198 

24,572 

1,182 
42 

52,224 5,141 1,108 706,665 

5,447 56,390 7,086 10,145 29,730 14,048 3,071,003 

(127) 6,708 (4,110) 205 3,503 (4,143) 85,696 

2,774 
9,826 (85,563) 44,063 

{404} {989} {358} 85,563 {129,427} 

(404) (989) 9,468 (82,590) 

(531) 6,708 (5,099) 205 3,503 5,325 3,106 
4,266 647 29,317 (320) 637 11,162 618,196 

2,214 
(38,366} 

$ 3,735 $ 7,355 $ 24,218 $ {115} $ 4,140 $ 16,487 $ $ 585,150 
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Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Fashionable Columbians could choose from a variety of carriages and buggies in 1910 at this Hampton Street 
dealership. A decade later, the arrival of the automobile would make most of these vehicles collectors' items. 
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Enterprise Funds 
Enterprise Funds account for business-like State 

activities that provide goods and/or services to the 
public. These funds are financed primarily through 
user char~s. The State maintams the following 
Enterprise-Funds: 

Public Service Authority. The Public Service 
Authority produces and sells electric power to 
individuals, businesses, electric cooperatives, and 
municipal power departments. 

Housing Authority. The State Housing Finance 
and Development Authority facilitates medium
income and low-income housing op_portunities by 
Q!Oviding reasonable financing to the State's citizens. 
To proVIde such financing, the Authority issues 
bonds and notes and admimsters Federal grants and 
contracts .. The Authority is supported pnmarily by 
mortgage mterest. 

Ports Authority. The Ports Authority develops 
and maintains State-owned harbors and seaports. It 
handles the commerce through these harbors and is 
responsible for the operation of six ocean terminals. 
The Authority operates on fees charged to users of 
the facilities and services of the Ports Authority. 

Jobs-Economic Development Authority. 
The Jobs-Economic Development Authority acts m 
conjunction with other organizations in the promotion 
and advancement oC industrial commercial, 
(!gricultural, and recreational devefopment in the 
State. The Authority's emphasis is on those areas of 
the State with the greatest economic need and to those 
proj_ect~ pr~widing the gre<~:test ~conoll}ic benefit. The 
A.uthm.1ty IS supported pnmanly by mterest charges 
on proJect loans. 

Patriots Point Development Authority. The 
Patriots Point Development Authoritv is responsible 
for developing and operating the Patriots Point area 

State of South Carolina 

near Charleston, including a Naval Museum. The 
Authority is supported by user fees. 

Patients' Compensation Fund. This fund 
provides medical malpractice insurance to any public 
or private health care provider within the State. This 
fund is reported as a public entity risk pool. 

Second lnjurv Fund. This fund serves as a 
claims processor for insurance carriers, self-insurers

3 and the Workers' Compensation Fund. The funa 
processes claims of employees with existing 
permanent physical impairment who are further 
mjured in the course of tlieir subsequent employment. 

Education Assistance Authority. This fund 
includes the operations of the State Education 
Assistance Authority and the South Carolina Student 
Loan Corporation. The Authority issues bonds and 
makes loans to students of the State to enable them to 
attend higher education institutions. Resources 
include interest cha~s, subsidies from the United 
States Department of-E9u<?ation, investment earnings, 
and some State appropnatwns. 

Research Authority. The South Carolina 
Research Authority is developin_g and marketing a 
system of research parks as weir as developing and 
managing research and development contracts. The 
Authority's purpose is to foster research capabilities 
in the State's puolic and private universities. 

Other Enter~rise Funds. Other enterprise 
activities of the State include: the Carolina Cup 
Racing Association, Inc.; the Carolina Capital 
Investment Corporation'v· Enterprise Develop
ment. Inc.; Savannah alley Authorizy; and 
Savaimah Lakes Regional Loan Fund. During_fiscal 
year 1992-93, the -canteens Fund and the -Public 
Railw'!)'s Commission also were made a part of the 
Other Enterprise Funds. 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Until the twentieth century most towns and cities relied on volunteer fire fighting 
companies such as Greenville's Neptune Volunteer Fire Company, circa 1894. The first 
such company was organized in Charleston in 1784. 

89 



State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Jobs- Patriots 
Public Economic Point 

Service Housing Ports Development Development 
Authority Authority Authority Authority Authority 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents ............................................ $ 18,204 $ 6,045 $ 11,356 $ 4,940 $ 1,195 
Investments ................................................................... 28,332 
Receivables, net: 
Accounts ..................................................................... 53,617 71 7,751 702 46 
Student loans ............................................................... 
Loans and notes .......................................................... 

Due from Federal government and other 
grantors ........................................................................ 

Due from other funds ..................................................... 11 
Inventories ..................................................................... 77,106 897 123 
Restricted assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents .......................................... 70,560 1,046 
Investments ................................................................. 28,645 
Other ............................................................................ 

Other current assets ...................................................... 986 874 21 

Total current assets ................................................... 277,450 6,116 20,878 5,653 2,431 

Long-term assets: 
Receivables, net: 
Student loans ............................................................... 
Loans and notes ......................................................... 573 23,931 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents .......................................... 99,732 137,073 10,976 
Investments ................................................................. 507,380 45,636 28,628 
Loans receivable .......................................................... 523,181 
Other ............................................................................ 8,695 

Other long-term assets .................................................. 
Deferred charges ........................................................... 613,876 1,523 

Total long-term assets ............................................... 1,220,988 715,158 41,127 23,931 

Property, plant, and equipment: 
Land and improvements ................................................. 160,866 2,917 
Buildings and improvements .......................................... 163,840 1,549 
Utility plant. .................................................................... 2,494,864 
Machinery, equipment, and other ................................... 1,694 805 27,402 7,137 
Construction in progress ................................................ 267,411 55,073 5,000 
Less: accumulated depreciation .................................... (746,946) (271) (117,659) (4,490) 

Total property, plant, and equipment, net... ................ 2,017,023 534 289,522 12,113 

Total assets .......................................................... $3,515,461 $ 721,808 $ 351,527 $ 29,584 $ 14,544 
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Patients' 
Compensation 

$ 34,369 

158 

34,527 

34 

(23~ 

11 

$ 34,638 

$ 

$ 

Second 
Injury 

2,570 

22,440 

61 

25,071 

190 

(85~ 

105 

25,176 

Education 
Assistance 
Authority 

$ 22,066 

4,823 
41,270 

2,441 

29,176 

933 
10 

100,719 

191,197 

43,657 

116 
4,040 

239,010 

1,566 

(480~ 

1,086 

$ 340,816 

$ 

$ 

Research 
Authority 

3,219 
1,660 

370 

7,199 

12,448 

12 

12 

3,833 
14,226 

7,070 

(5,579) 

19,550 

32,010 

Other 
Enterprise 

$ 19,295 
140 

1,463 

256 

718 
1,048 

1 '191 

1,617 

69 

25,797 

8,082 

500 

8,582 

7,503 
1,692 

1,273 
2,868 

(2,457) 

10,879 

$ 45,258 

$ 

$ 

State of South Carolina 

Elimina
tions 

(68) 

(68~ 

{68) 

Totals 

$ 123,259 
30,132 

69,001 
41,270 

256 

10,358 
991 

79,317 

124,839 
28,645 

994 
1,960 

511,022 

191 '197 
32,586 

247,781 
625,801 
523,181 

8,695 
116 

619,451 

2,248,808 

175,119 
181,307 

2,494,864 
47,171 

330,352 

(877,990) 

2,350,823 

$ 6,110,653 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued) 

June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Jobs- Patriots 
Public Economic Point 

Service Housing Ports Development Development 
Authority Authority Authority Authority Authority 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 
Liabilities: 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ...................... $ 108,635 $ 904 $ 14,120 $ 14 $ 496 

Due to other funds ....................................................... 18 64 40 
Deferred revenues ....................................................... 
Deposits ....................................................................... 17 
Deferred compensation ................................................ 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets ...................... 
Notes payable .............................................................. 
Revenue bonds payable ............................................... 154,915 870 
Capital lease and installment debt 

obligations payable ..................................................... 3,146 1,180 
Commercial paper notes .............................................. 121,750 
Compensated absences payable ................................. 173 18 
Other current liabilities, including retainages payable .. 22,293 3,580 

Total current liabilities ................................................ 410,739 1,095 19,750 113 536 

Long-term liabilities: 
Accrued liabilities ......................................................... 21,448 
Insurance claims incurred but not reported .................. 
Advances from other funds .......................................... 6,080 
Deferred revenues and deferred credits ....................... 24,362 
Notes payable .............................................................. 
Revenue bonds payable ............................................... 2,371,557 589,360 63,823 
Capital lease and installment debt 
obligations payable ..................................................... 52,673 565 

Other long-term liabilities ............................................. 31,594 3,160 

Total long-term liabilities ............................................ 2,480,186 613,968 64,388 6,080 

Total liabilities ••••••••.••••••••••••••••••.••••••••••••••••..•.••••••• 2,890,925 615,063 84,138 113 6,616 

Fund Equity: 
Contributed capital.. ....................................................... 34,438 176,244 3,491 6,628 
Retained earnings: 

Reserved for special purposes .................................... 100,622 
Unreserved .................................................................. 590,098 6,123 91 '145 25,980 1,300 

Total fund equity ................................................... 624,536 106,745 267,389 29,471 7,928 

Total liabilities and fund equity ••••••••••••••••••••••••• $ 3,515,461 $ 721,808 $ 351,527 $ 29,584 $ 14,544 
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Patients' 
Compensation 

$ 5,261 
2 

1,000 

13 

6,276 

11,232 
3,355 

14,587 

20,863 

13,675 

13,675 

$ 34,538 

$ 

$ 

Second 
Injury 

2,513 
232 

22,275 

51 

25,071 

25,071 

105 

105 

25,176 

Education 
Assistance 
Authority 

$ 6,022 

18 

24,895 

72 

31,007 

243,560 

2,929 

246,489 

277,496 

56,516 
6,803 

63,319 

$ 340,815 

$ 

Research 
Authority 

4,670 

470 

273 

1,973 

178 

7,564 

8,173 

2 

8,175 

15,739 

11,783 

4,488 

16,271 

$ 32,010 

Other 
Enterprise 

$ 5,201 
153 
102 

2 

425 
1,361 

391 
102 

7,737 

7,356 

2,559 

9,915 

17,652 

6,098 

1,841 
19,667 

27,606 

$ 45,258 

$ 

$ 

State of South Carolina 

Elimina
tions 

(68) 

(68) 

(68) 

!68) 

$ 

$ 

Totals 

147,836 
441 

1,590 
19 

273 
22,700 

3,334 
180,680 

4,504 
121,750 

718 
25,975 

509,820 

32,680 
3,355 

13,436 
24,362 
10,732 

3,268,300 

53,240 
37,683 

3,443,788 

3,953,608 

238,682 

158,979 
759,384 

1,157,045 

5,110,653 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes . Fund Equity In 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Jobs- Patriots 
Economic Point 

Public Develop- Develop- Patients' 
Service Housing Ports ment ment Com pen-

Authorit;t Authorit;t Authorit;t Authorit;t Authorit;t sation 
Operating revenues: 

Charges for services ................................................... $ 546,878 $ 1,962 $ 45,335 $ 94 $ 3,638 $ 2,257 
Contributions ............................................................... 
Interest and other investment income ......................... 62,503 1,807 1 ,181 

Total operating revenues ......•..•.•..••.•.................... 546,878 64,465 45,335 1,901 3,638 3,438 

Operating expenses: 
General operations and administration ........................ 321,441 3,385 30,102 4,869 3,101 225 
Benefrts and claims ..................................................... 8,373 
Interest. ....................................................................... 49,503 
Depreciation and amortization ..................................... 85,602 134 11,639 424 5 
Other operating expenses ........................................... 3,643 2,353 32 550 

Total operating expenses ...................................... 410,686 55,375 41,741 4,869 3,557 9,153 

Operating income (loss) ...................................... 136,192 9,090 3,594 j2,968} 81 j5,715! 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest income ........................................................... 21,980 643 71 
Federal revenue .......................................................... 14,491 341 
Costs to be recovered from future revenues ............... 24,153 
Interest expense .......................................................... (153,250) (115) 
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) ................... 642 ~14,550) 253 ~481 149 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) ....•....... po6,475! j59) 781 293 220 

Income (loss) before operating transfers 
and extraordinary items .......•••..........•........•....•• 29,717 9,031 4,375 (2,675) 301 (5,715) 

Operating transfers in ................................................... 442 380 
Operating transfers out ................................................. ~5,816) p,455) ~51 

Income (loss) before extraordinary items ......... 23,901 6,018 4,375 (2,300) 301 (5,715) 

Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt.. ..... (1,557) 
Extraordinary gain-other ............................................... 10,005 

Net income (loss) •••••••••••....................................... 23,901 4,461 4,375 (2,300) 10,306 (5,715) 

Retained earnings (deficit), July 1, 1992 .................. 566,197 102,284 86,770 (9,006) 19,390 
Residual equity transfers in ..............................•......• 28,337 
Residual equity transfers out. .....••••.••••••................... j57! 

Retained earnings, June 30, 1993 ..•.••.•..................... 590,098 106,745 91,145 25,980 1,300 13,675 

Contributed capital, July 1, 1992 ...................•.••.....•• 34,438 148,768 6,628 
Additions to contributed capital. .......••••................... 27,476 3,491 
Deductions from contributed capital •••••......•••••....... 

Fund equity, June 30, 1993 •......•••••..........••.......•....••.. $ 624,536 $ 106,745 $ 267,389 $ 29,471 $ 7,928 $ 13,675 
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State of South Carolina 

Education Public 
Second Assistance Research Railways Other Elimina-
lnju!1 Authority Authorit~ Canteens Commission Enteq~rise tions Totals 

$ 1,097 $ 2,946 $ 36,714 $ $ $ 20,633 $ $ 661,554 
61 61 

16,530 877 82,898 

1,097 19,476 36,714 21,571 744,513 

1,033 5,972 33,233 19,437 422,798 
8,373 

17,800 39 67,342 
29 127 1,868 363 100,191 
55 711 290 48 7,682 

1,117 24,610 35,391 19,887 606,386 

(20) (5,134) 1,323 1,684 138,127 

175 399 23,268 
11,440 26,272 

24,153 
(892} (920} (155,177) 

(4,611 ~ (18) 255 (17,928) 

6,829 (735) (266) (99,412) 

(20) 1,696 688 1,418 38,715 

4,775 1,135 (3,460) 3,272 
3,460 ~5.816) 

(20) 6,470 588 2,553 36,171 

(216} (1 ,773) 
10,005 

(20) 6,470 372 2,553 44,403 

126 56,849 4,116 5,572 7,728 10,575 850,600 
17,537 45,874 

j5.572l j7,728l j9,157) !22,514) 

106 63,319 4,488 21,508 918,363 

11,783 12 1,760 2,475 205,864 
3,623 34,590 

j12l p,760l p,772! 

$ 105 $ 63,319 $ 16,271 $ $ $ 27,606 s s 1,157,045 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Public 

Service Housing Ports 
Authority Authority Authority 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Operating income (loss)............................................................. $ 136,192 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 

(loss) to net cash provided by operations: 
Depreciation and amortization .............................................. 85,602 
Provisions for loan losses and bad debts .............................. . 
loss on disposition of property and equipment .................... . 
Issuance of loans ................................................................. . 
Collection of loans ............................................................... . 
Interest payments ................................................................. . 
Interest on investments ......................................................... . 
Amounts received for payment of claims .............................. . 
Payment of claims ................................................................ . 
Other .................................................................................... . 540 

Change in assets~ecreases (increases): 
Accounts receivable, net. ...................................................... . (3,931) 
Due from Federal government and other grantors ................ . 
Due from other funds ............................................................ . 
Inventories ............................................................................ . (11 ,437) 
Other restricted assets ......................................................... . 
Other current assets ........................................................... .. 70 
Deferred charges .................................................................. . 

Change in liabilities-increases (decreases): 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ............................... . 6,348 
Insurance claims incurred but not reported ........................... . 
Due to other funds ................................................................ . 
fnterfund payabfes ................................................................ . 
Deferred revenues ............................................................... . 7,355 
Deposits ................................................................................ . 
Deferred compensation ........................................................ . 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets .............................. .. 
Compensated absences payable ......................................... . 
Other liabilities, including retainages payable ........................ . 18,815 

Net cash and cash equivalents provided 
by (used in) operating activities ••••••••••••••.•..•••••••••.•••••••• 239,554 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Proceeds from loans made by other funds .......................... .. 
Principal payments made to other funds ............................... . 
Interest payments made to other funds.... . ............... . 
Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds ................................... . 
Principal payments on revenue bonds ................................. .. 
Proceeds from notes payable ............................................... .. 
Principal payments on notes payable ................................... .. 
Interest payments ................................................................. . 
Payment of bond issuance costs .......................................... . 
Federal revenue .................................................................... . 
Payments from Federal grants .............................................. . 
Operating transfers in .......................................................... . 
Operating transfers out ....................................................... . (5,816) 
Residual equity transfers in ................................................. .. 
Residual equity transfers out ............................................... . 

Net cash and cash equivalents provided 
by (used in) noncapital financing activities ............... .. (5,816) 

96 

$ 9,090 $ 3,594 

134 11,639 

29 
(24,992) 
94,666 
49,503 

(1 0, 122) 

(599) 

6 

573 

118,288 

34,831 
(157,888) 

(54,882) 
(1 '116) 
14,492 

(14,492) 
442 

(3,455) 

(182,068) 

(66) 

(143) 

59 

(1) 

(1 ,421) 

2,312 

15,973 

Jobs- Patriots 
Economic Point 

Development Development 

$ 

Authority Authority 

(2,968) $ 

3,529 

(152) 

(202) 

(45) 

53 

(8) 
17 

224 

341 

380 
(5) 

5,911 

6,627 

81 

424 

277 

28 

(22) 

4 

(868) 

16 

(60) 

6,000 
(25) 

5,975 



State of South Carolina 

Education Public 
Patients' Second Assistance Research Railways Other Elimina-

Com~nsation lnju~ Authorit~ Authorit~ Canteens Commission Enter~rise tions Totals 

$ (5,715) $ (20) $ (5,134) $ 1,323 $ $ $ 1,684 $ - $ 138,127 

5 29 127 1,868 363 100,191 
73 3,602 

1 84 114 
(69,930) (1 ,875) (96,797) 
35,319 205 130,190 
17,685 67,188 

(1 '180) (5,009) (16,311) 
39,229 39,229 

(48,823) (48,823) 
5 (347) (18) 152 (208) 

(967) 63 151 (4,995) 
(121) (2,352) (256) (2,729) 

(1 ,023) 48 (975) 
159 (11,241) 

392 392 
(6) 735 (38) 764 

399 4 403 

(5,851) (1 ,717) 70 960 1,469 (482) 
(345) (345) 

(99) (97) (48) (175) 
102 102 

2 (1 ,961) (32) 5,356 
5 22 

61 61 
425 425 

2 (2) 6 160 166 
(125) 21,002 

(13,084) (11,398) (27,513) 679 1,590 324,253 

1,349 7,349 
(25) 

(483) (483) 
34,831 

(22,480) (180,368) 
2,155 538 2,693 

(139) (139) 
(17,507) (72,389) 

(10) (1,126) 
11,440 26,273 

(14,492) 
4,775 1,135 (3,460) 3,272 

3,460 (5,816) 
15,683 21,594 

(4,291) (8,083) (5,873) (18,247) 

(21,627) (4,291) (8,083) 12,210 (197,073) 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) Jobs- Patriots 

Public Economic Point 
Service Housing Ports Development Development 
Authorit~ Authorit~ Authorit~ Authorit~ Authorit~ 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment... ..................... $(235,279) $ (110) $ (78,228) $ $ (243) 
Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds .................................... 544,843 1,429 
Principal payments on revenue bonds ................................... (228,003) (300) (8,195) 
Interest payments ................................................................. (167,613) (4,919) 
Payment of bond issuance costs ........................................... (7,699) 
Increase in commercial paper notes ..................................... (2,250) 
Proceeds from notes payable ................................................ 
Principal payments on notes payable ................................... 
Principal payments on capital leases and installment 
debt obligations payable ...................................................... (3,052) (6) (248) 

Additions to deferred loan costs ............................................ 
Contributions of capital ......................................................... 27,476 

Net cash and cash equivalents used in 
capital and related financing activities ........................•• ~99,0531 ~1161 ~54,7901 ~8.438) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Proceeds from sale of investments ........................................ 157 61,628 3,926 
Purchase of investments ...................................................... (215,041) (33,610) 
Interest on investments .......................................................... 39,769 10,752 3,557 71 
Issuance of loans .................................................................. (6,420) 
Collection of loans ································································ 4,509 

Net cash and cash equivalents provided 
by (used in) investing activities .•.•...••••.•.....................••• ~175,2721 10,909 31,575 p,911) 3,997 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .•.....•• (40,587) (52,987) (7,242) 4,940 1,474 

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 1992 ..••••••••••••••••.............. 229,083 196,105 29,574 767 

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 1993 •••••••••••••.•.•••.......... $ 188,496 $ 143,118 $ 22,332 $ 4,940 $ 2,241 

Noncash capital and financing activities: 
Acquisition of property and equipment through: 

Increase in accounts payable ............................................... $ $ $ 989 $ $ 
Contributions and transfers .................................................. 53 149 

Amortization and write-off of bond issue discount... ............... 55 

Total noncash capital and financing activities ••.•..•.••..... $ $ $ 1,044 $ 53 $ 149 
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Education 
Patients' Second Assistance Research 

ComJ:!ensation lnju~ Authorit~ Authorit~ 

$ $ (9) $ (349) $ (3,285) 

(892) 

11,600 
(9,079) 

(278) 
(14) 

(9) (349) (1,948) 

5,110 
(4,974) 

1,216 1,955 4,983 175 

1,216 1,956 6,119 176 

(11,868) (9,452) (44,370) (1,094) 

46,237 34,462 95,612 4,313 

$ 34,369 $25,010 $ 51,242 $ 3,219 

$ $ $ $ 

$ $ $ $ 

Public 
Railways 

Canteens Commission 

$ $ 

(4,291) (8,083) 

4,291 8,083 

$ $ 

$ $ 

$ $ 

State of South Carolina 

Other Elimina-
EnterJ:!rise tions 

$ (2,304) $ 

(171) 

427 

1,373 

(675) 

700 
(374) 
381 

707 

13,832 

7,080 

$ 20,912 $ 

$ 153 $ 
1,257 

$ 1,410 =$== 

Totals 

$ (319,807) 
546,272 

(236,498) 
(173,595) 

(7,699) 
(2,250) 
12,027 
(9,079) 

(3,584) 
(14) 

28,849 

(165,378) 

71,521 
(253,999) 

62,859 
(6,420) 
4,509 

1121,630! 

(159,728) 

655,607 

$ 495,879 

$ 1,142 
1,459 

55 

$ 2,656 
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Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Before radio, television and movies, public entertainment came largely from touring companies. This vaudeville 
troupe found Columbia's Main Street in the 1890s to be a bumpy and unpaved thoroughfare. 
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Internal Service Funds 
Internal Service Funds provide goods/services to 

other funds, other component unitsb qr other 
governments on a cost-retmbursement asts. The 
State uses the follov.ing Internal Service Funds: 

Insurance Reserve Fund. This is a risk 
management/reinsurance fund. It underwrites 
insurance risks on public buildings and their contents 
and tort liability, medical malP.ractice, and 
automobile liability for public employees. The 
Fund's customers are limited by raw to certain 
gove~enta~ persons(entities within the State and 
certam associated parties. 

Health and Disability Insurance Fund. This is 
a risk management fund which underwrites the group 
health, dental, and related benefits provided to -state 
and public school employees and retirees. 

Workers' Compensation Fund. This is a risk 
management fund which provides workers' 
compensation benefits to State employees. Premiums 
are collected from State agencies. 

State Em~loyee Unemployment Compen
sation Fund. Thts is a risk management fund that 
provides unemplo}ment benefits to P.rior State 
employees. Premiums are collected from State 
agencies. 

General Services Fund. This fund accounts 
for various services provided to State and local 
governmental units for which user fees are charged. 
These services include rental of office buildings

1 janitorial servic.es, building maintenance, ana 
procurement services. 

Central Supplies and Eguipment Fund. This 
fund sells office supplies and equipment, food, and 

State of South Carolina 

paper products to other governmental units. It also 
stores fOOd and paper prooucts for State agencies. 

Information Resources Management Fund. 
This fund provides telecommunication services and 
equipment, computer services, information 
techil.ology pl~ing and assistapc~ in equipty1ent and 
system select10p~, and prmtmg services to 
governmental entities. 

Motor Pool Fund. This fund provides daily and 
permanent lease assignments of vehicles to State 
agencies. It also maintains an inventory of 
automotive parts to provide maintenance of these 
vehicles. 

Highway Department Internal Service Fund. 
This fiind accounts for various service activities of 
the Department of Highways and Public 
Transportation. The fund provides data processing 
and prin~ing ~ervices, equipment rental~, . apd office 
and engmeenng suQPhes to other diVISions and 
county offices oTthe Department. 

Pension Administration Fund. This fund 
administers the public employee retirement systems. 
Revenues of the fund primarily consist of 
assessments charged to the Pension Trust Funds. 

Prison Industries Fund. This fund accounts 
for go~s produced by inmat~ labor. These goods are 
sola pnmanly to State agencies. 

Other Internal Service Funds. These funds, 
aggregated for reP.ort~ng j?urposes, account f<;>I: other 
miscellaneous activities that meet the defirutton of 
Internal Service Funds. · Such activities include 
provision of training programs for State employees 
and work activitv centers of the Department of 
Vocational Rehabilitation. 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

The War Between the States 
began at South Carolina's Fort 
Sumter in 1861, and for all 
purposes it ended in the State 
also. The Stark House in 
Abbeville was the site of the 
last meeting of the Confederate 
Cabinet on May 2, 1865, as its 
members fled south after the 
fall of Richmond. It was at this 
meeting that President Jeffer
son Davis met with the War 
Council of the Confederate 
Forces and formally disbanded 
the Confederate armies. 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) State Central 

Health and Employee Supplies 
Insurance Disability Workers' Unemployment General and 
Reserve Insurance Coml!ensation Coml!ensation Services Egui(!ment 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents ........................................... $ 244,078 $ 117,678 $ 44,854 $ 3,137 $ 6,283 $ 1,144 
Accounts receivable, net. .............................................. 22,740 452 2,496 181 51 
Loans and notes receivable, net... ................................. 332 
Due from Federal government and other grantors ........ 148 
Due from other funds ..................................................... 187 12,410 5,065 5 1,229 1,263 
lnterfund receivables ..................................................... 3,035 2,397 
Inventories ..................................................................... 185 3,325 
Other current assets ...................................................... 870 

Total current assets ..................................................... 271,242 130,540 52,415 3,142 10,423 5,783 

Long-term assets: 
Long-term investments .................................................. 13,759 
Advances to other funds ................................................ 34,497 22,193 

Total long-term assets ................................................ 34,497 13,759 22,193 

Property, plant, and equipment: 
Land and improvements ................................................ 4,571 
Buildings and improvements ......................................... 118,563 
Machinery, equipment, and other ................................. 828 548 443 2,211 33 
Construction in progress ............................................... 8,301 
Less: accumulated depreciation ................................... (492) (194) (223) (31,280) (24) 

Total property, plant, and equipment, net... ................. 336 354 220 102,366 9 

Total assets •••••••.•.•..•.......•..•...........•..•.••••••••••.......... $ 306,075 $ 144,653 $ 52,635 $ 3,142 $134,982 $ 5,792 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 
Liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .................... $ 109,832 $ 8,915 $ 24,043 $ $ 1,561 $ 909 
Insurance claims incurred but not reported ................. 56,650 56,346 721 
Due to other funds ....................................................... 12 150 2,360 1,142 307 10 
lnterfund payables ....................................................... 4,748 1,100 
Deferred revenues ....................................................... 11,616 1,593 
Capital lease and installment debt 

obligations payable .................................................... 1,475 
Compensated absences payable ................................ 174 190 154 658 13 
Other current liabilities, including retainages payable 85 

Total current liabilities ............................................... 178,284 65,601 28,871 1,142 8,834 2,032 

Long-term liabilities: 
Accrued liabilities ........................................................ 10,613 29,322 
Insurance claims incurred but not reported ................. 1,070 
Advances from other funds .......................................... 38,234 
Capital lease and installment debt 

obligations payable ......•............................................. 35,879 

Total long-term liabilities ........................................... 10,613 30,392 74,113 

Total liabilities •••••••••••••••..•••••••.......................•..••••.• 178,284 76,214 59,263 1,142 82,947 2,032 

Fund Equity: 
Contributed capital ........................................................ 11 11 60,483 
Retained earnings (deficits) .......................................... 127,780 68,428 (6,628) 2,000 (8,448) 3,760 

Total fund equity (deficit) ..................................... 127,791 68,439 !6,628! 2,000 52,035 3,760 

Total liabilities and fund equity .••••••••••.••••••••••••• $ 306,075 $ 144,653 $ 52,635 $ 3,142 $134,982 $ 5,792 
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State of South Carolina 

Highway 
Information Department Pension Other 
Resources Motor Internal Admin is- Prison Internal Elimina-

Management Pool Service tration Industries Service tions Totals 

$ 10,193 $ 3,112 $ 9,308 $ 1,294 $ 3,051 $ 6,668 $ $ 450,800 
55 551 67 26,593 

332 
148 

3,272 921 344 2 (4,587) 20,111 
274 (3,741) 1,965 

1,176 9 1,344 6,039 
870 

14,970 4,042 9,308 1,294 5,290 6,737 (8,328) 506,858 

13,759 
(38,183~ 18,507 

(38,183) 32,266 

220 4,791 
465 119,028 

58,090 12,689 8,928 1,683 6,521 231 92,205 
177 8,478 

~50.129) (7,169) (4,585) (833) (4,524) (67). ~99,520) 

7,961 6,382 4,343 850 1,997 164 124,982 

$ 22,931 $ 10,424 $ 13,651 $ 2,144 $ 7,287 $ 6,901 $ !46,511) $ 664,106 

$ 2,556 $ 173 $ $ 443 $ 674 $ 662 $ $ 149,769 
113,717 

183 130 103 167 23 (4,587) 
705 52 (3,741) 2,864 

13,209 

2,620 1 4,096 
690 103 428 276 47 2,733 

85 

6,754 458 974 1,118 732 (8,328) 286,473 

39,935 
1,070 

11,042 115 {38,183) 11,208 

35,879 

11,042 115 ~38,183) 88,092 

17,796 573 974 1,118 732 !46,511) 374,565 

313 37 13,967 8 3,280 128 78,238 
4,822 9,814 (317) 1,162 2,889 6,041 211,303 

5,135 9,851 13,650 1,170 6,169 6,169 289,641 

$ 22,931 $ 10,424 $ 13,651 $ 2,144 $ 7,287 $ 6,901 $ !46,5111 $ 664,106 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Fund Equity 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

State 

Employee 
Health Unem- Central 

and Workers' ployrnent Supplies 
Insurance Disability Compen- Compen- General and 
Reserve Insurance sation sation Services Egui~ment 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services ............................................... $ 42,880 $ 478,717 $ $ $ 23,974 $ 15,331 
Contributions ........................................................... 26,126 3,678 1 
Interest and other investment income ...................... 17,652 3,917 1,184 
Licenses, fees, and permits .................................... 

Total operating revenues .•................................. 60,532 482,634 27,310 3,678 23,975 15,331 

Operating expenses: 
General operations and administration .................... 42,587 59,216 3,558 68 18,464 15,295 
Benefits and claims ................................................. 27,766 391,819 31,183 2,470 
Depreciation ........................................................... 107 69 46 2,599 3 
Other operating expenses ....................................... 57 565 1 

Total operating expenses ..................•.......•....•.. 70,460 451,104 34,844 2,538 21,628 15,299 

Operating income (loss) ...................•..•............ (9,928) 31,530 (7,534) 1,140 2,347 32 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest income ........................................................ 454 1,963 
Federal revenue ....................................................... 224 
Interest expense ...................................................... (5,720} 
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses} ............... ~45l 5 110 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) ........ 409 j3,5281 110 

Income (loss) before operating transfers .....• (9,928) 31,530 (7,125) 1,140 (1, 181) 142 

Operating transfers in ............................................... 1,140 2,730 
Operating transfers out. ............................................ (625l (407l (1 ,140l (578l (78l 

Net income (loss) .............................................. (10,553) 31,123 (5,985) 971 64 

Retained earnings (deficits), July 1, 1992 ••......•••• 138,319 37,319 (643) 2,000 (9,419) 3,696 
Residual equity transfers in .................................. 14 
Residual equity transfers out ••••••••••••.•..•....•..••..••.. j141 

Retained earnings (deficits), June 30, 1993 ......... 127,780 68,428 (6,628) 2,000 (8,448) 3,760 

Contributed capital, July 1, 1992 •.•........................ 11 11 60,373 
Additions to contributed capital ...•....................... 180 
Deductions from contributed capital ...........•....•••. j101 

Fund equity (deficit), June 30, 1993 ........•...•......••. $ 127,791 $ 68,439 $ j6,6281 $ 2,000 $ 52,035 $ 3,760 
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State of South Carolina 

Highway 
Information Department Pension Other 
Resources Motor Internal Admin is- Prison Internal Elimina-

Management Pool Service tration Industries Service tions Totals 

$ 28,102 $ 7,091 $ 2,255 $ $ 10,879 $ 1,012 $ $ 610,241 
4 29,809 

22,753 
257 257 

28,102 7,091 2,255 10,879 1,273 663,060 

19,844 3,165 964 6,606 10,145 913 180,825 
453,238 

6,764 2,686 1,409 225 459 11 14,378 

142 8 34 86 17 15 925 

26,750 5,859 2,407 6,917 10,621 939 649,366 

1,352 1,232 {152) {6,917) 258 334 13,694 

152 257 2,826 

70 294 
(1 ,357) (15) (1) (7,093) 

17 {65) 136 6 164 

{1, 118) {80) 136 5 257 {3.809) 

234 1,152 (152) (6,781) 263 591 9,885 

1,680 7,533 7 (3,112) 9,978 

{264) {365) 3,112 {345) 

1,650 787 (152) 752 263 598 19,518 

3,172 9,027 (165) 410 2,626 5,443 191,785 
14 

j14) 

4,822 9,814 (317) 1,162 2,889 6,041 211,303 

401 173 13,518 8 3,198 128 77,821 
1 37 1,627 82 1,927 

{89) {173) p. 178) {1,510) 

$ 5,135 $ 9,851 $ 13,650 $ 1,170 $ 6,169 $ 6,169 $ $ 289,541 

105 



State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Operating income (loss) ............................................................... . 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 

(loss) to net cash provided by operations: 
Depreciation ............................................................................ . 
Loss (gain) on disposition of property and equipment.. ............ . 
Interest on investments and interfund loans ............................ .. 
Other nonoperating revenues ................................................... . 
Other nonoperating expenses .................................................. . 
Other ........................................................................................ . 

Change in assets~ecreases (increases): 
Accounts receivable, net.. ........................................................ . 
Due from Federal government and other grantors .................. . 
Due from other funds .............................................................. . 
Inventories ............................................................................... . 
Other current assets ................................................................ . 

Change in liabilities-increases (decreases): 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .................................. . 
Insurance claims incurred but not reported .............................. . 
Due to other funds .................................................................. .. 
lnterfund payables ................................................................... . 
Deferred revenues .................................................................. . 
Compensated absences payable ............................................. . 
Other liabilities, including retainages payable .......................... .. 

Net cash and cash equivalents provided 
by (used in) operating activities •••••.•••••.••••••••••••••••••••.•••••• 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Principal payments received from other funds ........................ .. 
Proceeds from loans made by other funds .............................. . 
Principal payments made to other funds .................................. . 
Receipt of interest from other funds ......................................... . 
Interest payments made to other funds .................................... . 
Loans made to other funds ...................................................... . 
Federal revenue ....................................................................... . 
Operating transfers in .............................................................. . 
Operating transfers out ............................................................ . 

Net cash and cash equivalents provided 
by (used in) noncapital financing activities .................. .. 
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Insurance 

$ 

Reserve 

(9,928) 

107 

(17,323) 

2 

6,463 

(102) 

(444) 

13,729 
2,716 

(12) 

(3,803) 
1 

(8,594) 

3,043 

2,378 

(3,632) 

(625) 

1,164 

Health 
and 

Disability 
Insurance 

$ 31,530 

69 

(2,980) 

(33) 

(1,004) 

(2,971) 
(8,237) 

101 

(559) 
32 

15,948 

(407) 

(407) 

Workers' 
Compen-

sation 

$ (7,534) 

46 

(1,184) 

(45) 

941 

4,173 

11,763 
(1,621) 
2,280 

755 
5 

9,579 

(4) 

1,140 

1,136 

State 
Employee 

Unem-
ployment 
Compen-

sat ion 

$ 1,140 

(5) 

1,117 

2,252 

(1,140) 

(1,140) 

General 
Services 

$ 2,347 

2,599 
36 

41 
(36) 
92 

(148) 
(725) 

8 

(268) 

(249) 

46 
(55) 

3,688 

2,388 
2,282 

(2,475) 
1,857 

(1,519) 
(2,282) 

132 
2,730 
(578) 

2,535 



State of South Carolina 

Central Highway 
Supplies Information Department Pension Other 

and Resources Motor Internal Adminis- Prison Internal Elimina-
Egui~ent Management Pool Service tration Industries Service tions Totals 

$ 32 $ 1,352 $ 1,232 $ (152) $ (6,917) $ 258 $ 334 $ - $ 13,694 

3 6,764 2,686 1,409 225 459 11 14,378 
104 65 (14) 192 

(21 ,487) 
110 121 136 14 422 

(104) (65) (8) (258) 
94 

(24) (2) (81) (13) 7,251 
(148) 

(200) (1 ,096) 69 4 5 3,275 4,394 
(160) (237) (9) (117) (515) 

(444) 

(115) 336 36 (1) (12) 34 (151) 22,380 
(7,142) 

(21) 9 4 (4) 57 (7) (3,275) 
100 100 

(3,607) 
(3) 55 7 19 19 (5) 176 

(55) 

{278! 7,302 4,025 1,256 {6,552! 625 174 29,425 

517 5,948 
2,282 

(92) (2,571) 
44 4,279 

(15) (1 ,534) 
(5,914) 

70 202 
1,680 7,533 7 (3,112) 9,978 

(78) (264) (365) 3,112 (345) 

{78) 2,047 {472) 7,533 7 12,325 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 

Insurance 
Reserve 

Health 
and 

Disability 
Insurance 

Workers' 
Compen

sation 

State 
Employee 

Unem
ployment 
Compen

sation 

Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment........................... $ (193) $ (31) $ (27) $ 
Proceeds from loans made by other funds .............................. . 
Principal payments made to other funds .................................. . 
Interest payments made to other funds .................................... . 
Interest payments .................................................................... . 
Principal payments on capital leases and 
installment debt obligations payable ....................................... . 

Contributions of capital. ........................................................... . 
Reductions of contributed capital.. ........................................... . 

Net cash and cash equivalents used in 
capital and related financing activities ........................... . (193) (31) (27) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Proceeds from sale of investments .......................................... . 25,222 
Purchase of investments ......................................................... . (26,998) 
Interest on investments ............................................................ . 14,946 2,980 1,638 
Principal payments received on notes receivable .................... .. 25 

Net cash and cash equivalents provided 
by investing activities ....................................................... . 14,971 1,204 1,638 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .•.•.••••••• 7,348 16,714 12,326 1,112 

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 1992 ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 236,730 100,964 32,528 2,025 

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 1993 ••••••••••••••••••.•.••••••••••• $ 244,078 $ 117,678 $ 44,854 $ 3,137 

Noncash capital and financing activities: 
Acquisition of property and equipment through 

contributions and transfers from other funds.......................... =$====== $ $ $ 
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General 
Services 

$ (449) 

$ 

$ 

240 
(2, 131) 

(1 '116) 
(3,085) 

(1 ,344) 
180 
(70) 

(7,775) 

106 

106 

(1,446) 

7,729 

6,283 



State of South Carolina 

Central Highway 
Supplies Information Department Pension Other 

and Resources Motor Internal Admin is- Prison Internal Elimina-
Egui~rnent Management Pool Service tration Industries Service tions Totals 

$ $ (2,329) $ (3, 113) $ $ (390) $ (191) $ (18) $ $ (6,741) 
892 1,132 

(1 ,217) (3,348) 
(916) (2,032) 
(441) (1) (3,527) 

(5,061) (10) (6,415) 
1 181 

(70) 

{9,071! j3.113) {390) {202) (18! {20,820) 

25,222 
(26,998) 

108 257 20,035 
25 

108 257 18,284 

(356) 386 440 1,256 591 423 420 39,214 

1,500 9,807 2,672 8,052 703 2,628 6,248 411,586 

$ 1,144 $ 10,193 $ 3,112 $ 9,308 $ 1,294 $ 3,051 $ 6,668 $ $ 450,800 

$ $ =$=:::::::::37= $ 1,627 =$=== =$==,;:82;:, =$=== $ - $ 1,746 
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Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Especially in the early 1900s, the arrival of the circus in a community was a major event. 
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Fiduciary Funds 
Fiduciary Funds account for resources the State 

holds as trustee or agent for individuals, private 
organizations, or other governmental units. 

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 

Expendable Trust Funds account for resources 
the State holds as trustee. Both the principal and 
earnings of Expendable Trust Funds may be used for 
Qurposes allowed under the trust agreements. The 
~tate uses the following Expendable Trust Funds: 

Radioactive Waste Contingenc~ Fund. A 
private company operates a low-level radioactive 
waste disposal facihty within the State. The State 
and the company have entered into a trust agreement 
with the State Treasurer as trustee. The company 
has deposited monies into the trust fund to provide 
for site cleanup in the event that there is seepage into 
the groundwater or the site is abandoned. 

Unem~loyment Compensation Benefits 
Fund. This fund accounts for the State's 
unemplo)'I!lent compensation benefits. Revenues 
consist of taxes assessed on employers to pay 
benefits to qualified unemployed persons. 

Other Expendable Trust Funds. These funds, 
aggregated for presentation purposes, account for 
oilier miscellaneous expendable trust funds. These 
are generally resources given to the State through 
trust agr~ements and provide for such items as 
scholarShip funds, mamtenance and operation of 
specific properties, and construction of monuments. 

NONEXPENDABLETRUSTFUNDS 

These funds account for resources the State holds 
as trustee. The principal of these funds must be 
preserved and only the earnings may be used for the 
J?Urposes allowed under the trust agreement. Most of 
the resources in these funds were -bequeathed to the 
State via wills of deceased persons. 

PENSION TRUST FUNDS 

Pension Trust Funds account for the following 
five p~blic employee retirement systems that the State 
admimsters: 

South Carolina Retirement System. This is a 
multiple-employer pension system that benefits 
emploY.eeS of the State, public schools, and political 
sul5divisions ofthe State. 

State of South Carolina 

Police Officers' Retirement System. This is a 
multiple-employer J?ension system tliat benefits police 
officers and fire fighters employed by the State or its 
political subdivisions. 

General Assembly Retirement System. This 
is a single-employer pension §)'Stem that benefits 
members of the South Carolina General Assembly. 

Judges' and Solicitors' Retirement System. 
This is a single-emJ?loyer pension system that l5enefits 
the judges of the State's Supreme Court, Court of 
J\.ppe_als, ~ii:cuit courts, family courts, and the State's 
circuit solicitors. 

National Guard Pension System. The State 
administers this single-employer pension system that 
J!rovides a supplemental retirement benefit to South 
t;arolina members of the National Guard. The State 
is a nonemployer contributor to the system. 

AGENCY FUNDS 

Agency Funds are custodial in nature. They 
generally represent amounts held by the State on 
oehalf of third parties. The State uses the following 
Agency Funds: 

Deferred Compensation Plans. This fund 
accounts for the Section 457, Section 40l(k) and 
Section 403(b) deferred compensation plans offered 
to ~mployees of the Statef it~ component units, and 
vanous local governmenta umts. 

Insurance Company Deposits Fund. This 
fund accounts for deposits which are required to be 
made by insurance companies in lieu of surety bonds. 

Local Government Investment Pool. Excess 
public monies are d~posited into this fund by various 
local governmentar units and other _political 
subdivisiOns of the State. The State Treasurer 
invests these monies in order to allow these 
participating gov_eflllJlental units to realize. a high~r 
!flCOme on their mvestments by poohng their 
mvestments. 
• Federal lnterfund Activity Fund. This fund 
accounts for Federal _grants and entitlements that are 
first received by one State agency and eventually will 
be distributed to another State agency. 

Payroll Clearing Fund. This fund accounts for 
employee deductions and contributions for the short 
penod of time between the iss~~ce of payroll checks 
and payment to the proper recipient. 

Other Agency Funds. Balances in these funds, 
aggregated for presentation purposes, represent 
amounts held for prisoners and patients of State 
institutions, cash bonds, unclaimed property, 
miscellaneous clearing accounts, and other deposits. 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents ............................................... . 
Cash on deposit with fiscal agents .................................... . 
Investments ...................................................................... . 
Receivables, net: 
Accounts ........................................................................ . 
Taxes ............................................................................. . 
Loans and notes ............................................................. . 

Due from Federal government and other grantors ............. . 
Due from other funds ........................................................ . 
Advances to other funds ................................................... . 
Property, plant and equipment: 

Land and improvements ................................................. . 
Buildings and improvements ........................................... . 
Machinery, equipment, and other .................................... . 
Less: accumulated depreciation ..................................... . 

Other assets ..................................................................... . 

Total assets .......•••..................................••.................. 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ......................... . 
Tax refunds payable ....................................................... . 
Intergovernmental payables ............................................ . 
Due to other funds .......................................................... . 
lnterfund payables .......................................................... . 
Deferred revenues .......................................................... . 
Deposits ......................................................................... . 
Amounts held in custody for others ................................. . 
Deferred compensation ................................................... . 
Other liabilities ................................................................ . 

Total liabilities .......................................................... . 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for: 

Pension and other benefits ............................................ . 
Endowment and similar funds ....................................... . 

Unreserved, undesignated .............................................. . 

Total fund balances ........•.••••..................................... 

Total liabilities and fund balances ..•...•.••••••............ 
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Radioactive 
Waste 

Contingency 

$ 65,991 

657 

$ 66,648 

$ 6,287 

6,287 

60,361 

60,361 

$ 66,648 

EXPENDABLE TRUST 

Unemployment 
Compensation 

Benefits 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

239 
465,298 

41,384 

2 
2 

506,925 

3,479 
884 

85 

2,111 

6,559 

500,366 

500,366 

506,925 

Other 
Expendable 

Trust 

$ 8,719 

72 

$ 8,791 

$ 299 

299 

8,492 

8,492 

$ 8,791 



State of South Carolina 

PENSION TRUST 

Judges' 
South Police General and 

Carolina Officers' Assembly Solicitors' 
NONEXPENDABLE Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement 

TRUST S~stem S~stem S~stem S~stem 

$ 1,520 $ 565,442 $ 96,328 $ 2,554 $ 2,153 

10 8,820,750 903,495 23,816 43,680 

7 186,386 29,594 411 719 

12,951 2,230 27 

524 54 2 3 
4,124 421 12 19 

23 
(84) (9) (1) 

$ 11560 $ 9,590,093 $ 1,032,113 $ 26,795 $ 46,600 

$ $ 126,175 $ 34,065 $ 5 $ 

11,512 613 

137,687 34,678 5 

9,452,406 997,435 26,790 46,600 
1,362 

198 

1,560 9,452,406 997,435 26,790 46,600 

$ 1,560 $ 9,590,093 $ 1,032,113 $ 26,795 $ 46,600 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS (Continued) 
June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents ....................................................... . 
Cash on deposit with fiscal agents ............................................ . 
Investments .............................................................................. . 
Receivables, net: 
Accounts ................................................................................ . 
Taxes ..................................................................................... . 
Loans and notes ..................................................................... . 

Due from Federal government and other grantors ..................... . 
Due from other funds ................................................................ . 
Advances to other funds ........................................................... . 
Property, plant and equipment: 

Land and improvements ......................................................... . 
Buildings and improvements ................................................... . 
Machinery, equipment, and other ............................................ . 
Less: accumulated depreciation ............................................. . 

Other assets ............................................................................. . 

Total assets •.•.•.•••.••.••••........................................................ 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ................................. . 
Tax refunds payable ................................................................ . 
Intergovernmental payables .................................................... . 
Due to other funds .................................................................. . 
lnterfund payables .................................................................. . 
Deferred revenues ................................................................... . 
Deposits ................................................................................. . 
Amounts held in custody for others ......................................... . 
Deferred compensation ........................................................... . 
Other liabilities ........................................................................ . 

Total liabilities ..•......................................................•••.•••... 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for: 

Pension and other benefits .................................................... . 
Endowment and similar funds ............................................... . 

Unreserved, undesignated ....................................................... . 

Total fund balances ••••••••••••.•••••••.•••.••••..••............••............ 

Total liabilities and fund balances ................................. . 
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Deferred 
Compensation 

Plans 

$ 200 

588,655 

1,699 

10,279 

3,842 

$ 604,675 

$ 200 

604,475 

604,675 

$ 604,675 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Insurance 
Company 
Deposits 

244,642 

244,642 

244,642 

244,642 

244,642 



AGENCY 

Local 
Government Federal 
Investment lnterfund Payroll 

Pool Activit~ Clearing 

$ 30,000 $ $ 6,732 

388,294 

743 1 

138 
4,301 32,204 

$ 419,037 $ 4,439 $38,937 

$ 30,000 $ - $ 152 

4,149 6,536 
285 18 

389,037 5 32,231 

4191037 4,439 38,937 

$ 419,037 $ 4,439 $38,937 

Other 
Agenc~ 

$72,967 

1,086 

2 
80 

400 

$74,535 

$ 2,535 

4 
49,816 

3,704 
18,311 

165 

74,535 

$74,535 

State of South Carolina 

Eliminations 

$ 

(38,709) 

$ (38,709} 

$ 

(38,709) 

{38,709} 

$ (38,709} 

Totals 

$ 852,845 
465,298 

11,013,342 

221,375 
41,384 
10,279 

140 
13,008 

80 

583 
4,576 

23 
(94) 

4,242 

$ 12,627,081 

$ 203,197 
884 

4 
34,002 

303 
2,111 
3,704 

684,226 
604,475 

165 

1,533,071 

11,023,597 
1,362 

69,051 

11,094,010 

$ 12,627,081 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 
EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Radioactive Unemployment 
Waste Compensation 

Other 
Expendable 

Contingency Benefits Trust Eliminations 

Revenues: 
Taxes, other ................................................. $ $ 170,319 $ $ 
Licenses, fees, and permits .......................... 2,260 
Interest and other investment income ........... 2,623 41,949 628 
Federal. ........................................................ 97,844 
Other ........................................................... 218 36 

Total revenues ........................................ · 4,883 310,330 664 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General governmental. ............................... 292,793 458 
Individual and family services ..................... 48 
Administration of justice ............................. 17 

Intergovernmental. ....................................... 87 

Total expenditures ................................. 292,793 610 

Revenues over expenditures ....................... 4,883 17,537 54 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in ................................... 2,305 (1,100) 
Operating transfers out. ................................ (1 ,387) (52) 1,100 

Total other financing sources (uses) ...• 918 {52} 

Revenues and other sources over 
expenditures and other uses ..................... 4,883 18,455 2 

Fund balances, July 1, 1992 ......................... 55,478 481,911 8,490 

Fund balances, June 30, 1993 ...................... $ 60,361 $ 500,366 $ 8,492 $ 
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Totals 

$170,319 
2,260 

45,200 
97,844 

254 

315,877 

293,251 
48 
17 
87 

293,403 

22,474 

1,205 
(339) 

866 

23,340 
545,879 

$569,219 



State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 
NONEXPENDABLE AND PENSION TRUST FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

PENSION TRUST 

Judges' 

NON- South Police General and National 

EXPEND- Carolina Officers' Assembly Solicitors' Guard Total 

ABLE Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement Pension Pension 

TRUST System System System System System Trust 

Operating revenues: 
Contributions ......................................... $ 27 $ 570,514 $ 73,936 $ 1,614 $ 4,933 $1,170 $ 652,167 
Interest and other investment income ... 54 830,466 85,230 2,234 4,070 922,000 
Licenses, fees, and permits .................. 68 

Total operating revenues ................ 149 1,400,980 159,166 3,848 9,003 1,170 1,574,167 

Operating expenses: 
General operations and administration .. 27 
Benefits and claims ............................... 477,994 46,307 1,890 3,793 1,170 531,154 
Depreciation and amortization ............... 84 9 93 

Total operating expenses ................ 27 478,078 46,316 1,890 3,793 1,170 531,247 

Operating income ........................... 122 922,902 112,850 1,958 5,210 1,042,920 

Operating transfers: 
Operating transfers in ........................... 7,331 167 7,498 
Operating transfers out... ...................... (6,458) (670) (19) (31) (7,178) 

Net income ...................................... 122 923,775 112,347 1,939 5,179 1,043,240 

Fund balances, July 1, 1992 ................ 1,438 8,528,631 885,088 24,851 41,421 9,479,991 

Fund balances, June 30, 1993 ............. $ 1,560 $9,452,406 $ 997,435 $ 26,790 $ 46,600 $ $ 10,523,231 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Changes . Assets and Liabilities In 
AGENCY FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Balance Balance 
Jull1, 1992 Additions Deductions June 30, 1993 

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents ............................................. $ 157 $ 200 $ 157 $ 200 
Investments .................................................................... 510,407 93,720 15,472 588,655 
Accounts receivable ........................................................ 1,388 52,548 52,237 1,699 
Loans and notes receivable ............................................. 7,161 3,118 10,279 
Other assets ................................................................... 3,430 817 405 3,842 

Total assets .................................................................. $ 522,543 $ 150,403 $ 68,271 $ 604,675 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ......................... $ 157 $ 200 $ 157 $ 200 
Deferred compensation ................................................... 522,386 97,917 15,828 604,475 

Total liabilities ............................................................... $ 522,543 $ 98,117 $ 15,985 $ 604,675 

INSURANCE COMPANY DEPOSITS 
Assets 

Investments .................................................................... $ 219,278 $ 120,603 $ 95,239 $ 244,642 

Liabilities 
Amounts held in custody for others ................................. $ 219,278 $ 120,603 $ 95,239 $ 244,642 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POOL 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents ............................................. $ 52,469 $ 24,376,791 $ 24,399,260 $ 30,000 
Investments .................................................................... 327,170 23,417,150 23,356,026 388,294 
Accounts receivable ........................................................ 1,093 9,868 10,218 743 

Total assets .................................................................. $ 380,732 $ 47,803,809 $ 47,765,504 $ 419,037 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ......................... $ 50,001 $ 30,000 $ 50,001 $ 30,000 
Amounts held in custody for others ................................. 330,731 1,006,123 947,817 389,037 

Total liabilities ............................................................... $ 380,732 $ 1,036,123 $ 997,818 $ 419,037 

Continued on Next Page 

118 



State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
AGENCY FUNDS (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

FEDERAL INTERFUND ACTIVITY FUND 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents ....................... 00 00 •••••••••••••• •••• $ 
Due from Federal government and other grantors ......... . 
Due from other funds ..................................................... . 

Balance 
July 1,1992 

2,992 
493 
440 

Total assets.................................................................. =$====3·=92=5= 

Liabilities 
Intergovernmental payables.. ............... ..... .. . . . ........... .. . . . . $ 
Due to other funds ......................................................... . 
lnterfund payables ......................................................... . 
Amounts held in custody for others ................................ . 

7 
3,918 

Totalliabilities............................................................... =$=====3,=92=5= 

PAYROLL CLEARING FUND 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents............................................. $ 
Accounts receivable ....................................................... . 
Due from other funds ..................................................... . 

6,426 
1 

31,429 

Total assets.................................................................. =$===3=7=,8=5=6= 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities......................... $ 
Due to other funds ......................................................... . 
lnterfund payables ......................................................... . 
Amounts held in custody for others ................................ . 

110 
6,303 

25 
31,418 

Totalliabilities............................................................... =$===3=7=,8=5=6= 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Additions 

28,621 
138 

4,301 

33,060 

210 
4,150 

285 
31,636 

36,281 

656,175 
1 

32,205 

688,381 

171 
6,586 

18 
567,402 

574,1n 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$· 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Deductions 

31,613 
493 
440 

32,546 

217 
3,919 

31,631 

35,767 

655,869 
1 

31,430 

687,300 

129 
6,353 

25 
566,589 

573,096 

Balance 
June 30, 1993 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

138 
4,301 

4,439 

4,149 
285 

5 

4,439 

6,732 
1 

32,204 

38,937 

152 
6,536 

18 
32,231 

38,937 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Changes . Assets and Liabilities In 
AGENCY FUNDS (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Balance Balance 
JUI:£1, 1992 Additions Deductions June 30, 1993 

OTHER AGENCY FUNDS 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents ............................................. $ 72,026 $ 1,167,039 $ 1,166,098 $ 72,967 
Accounts receivable ........................................................ 816 1,087 817 1,086 
Due from other funds ...................................................... 75 672 745 2 
lnterfund receivables ....................................................... 25 25 
Advances to other funds ................................................. 80 80 
Other assets ................................................................... 399 400 

Total assets .................................................................. $ 73,421 $ 1,168,799 $ 1,167,685 $ 74,535 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ......................... $ 2,857 $ 3,932 $ 4,254 $ 2,535 
Intergovernmental payables ............................................ 971 4 971 4 
Due to other funds .......................................................... 45,992 365,978 362,154 49,816 
Deposits .......................................................................... 3,740 947 983 3,704 
Amounts held in custody for others ................................. 19,696 812,482 813,867 18,311 
Other liabilities ................................................................ 165 165 

Totalliabilities ............................................................... $ 73,421 $ 1,183,343 $ 1,182,229 $ 74,535 

TOTALS-ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents ............................................. $ 134,070 $ 26,228,826 $ 26,252,997 $ 109,899 
Investments .................................................................... 1,056,855 23,631,473 23,466,737 1,221,591 
Accounts receivable ........................................................ 3,298 63,504 63,273 3,529 
Loans and notes receivable ............................................. 7,161 3,118 10,279 
Due from Federal government and other grantors .......... 493 138 493 138 
Due from other funds ...................................................... 31,944 37,178 32,615 36,507 
lnterfund receivables ....................................................... 25 25 
Advances to other funds ................................................. 80 80 
Other assets ................................................................... 3,829 818 405 4,242 

Total assets .................................................................. $ 1,237,755 $ 49,965,055 $ 49,816,545 $ 1,386,265 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ......................... $ 53,125 $ 34,303 $ 54,541 $ 32,887 
Intergovernmental payables ............................................ 978 214 1,188 4 
Due to other funds .......................................................... 56,213 376,714 372,426 60,501 
lnterfund payables .......................................................... 25 303 25 303 
Deposits .......................................................................... 3,740 947 983 3,704 
Amounts held in custody for others ................................. 601,123 2,538,246 2,455,143 684,226 
Deferred compensation ................................................... 522,386 97,917 15,828 604,475 
Other liabilities ................................................................ 165 165 

Total liabilities ............................................................... $ 1,237,755 $ 3,048,644 $ 2,900,134 $ 1,386,265 
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State of South Carolina 

General Fixed Assets Account Group 
The General Fixed Assets Account GrouP. is 

maintained to account for fixed assets acquirea or 
constructed for use by the State for general 
governmental purposes. These include alf fixed 

assets except those accounted for in the Proprietary, 
Fiduciary, and Higher Education Funds. 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Columbia's skyline was a modest one in the late 1890s, its most notable feature being the turreted City Hall and 
Municipal Opera House at the corner of Main and Washington Streets. The building was destroyed by fire in 1899. 

121 



State of South Carolina 

Schedule of General Fixed Assets by Function 
June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Function 
Land and 

Improvements 

General governmental............................. $ 8,101 

Education ............................................... . 5,442 

Individual and family services ................. . 11,087 

Administration of justice .......................... . 5,831 

Resources and economic development.. .. 116,831 

Transportation ......................................... . 3,257 

Total general fixed assets allocated 

Buildings, 
Improvements, 
and Utility Plant 

$ 95,983 

69,041 

185,465 

283,309 

54,980 

57 545 

Machinery, 
Equipment, 
and Other 

$ 78,887 

227,440 

112,464 

41,427 

65,094 

222,791 

150,549 to functions....................................... =$======== $ ====7=4=6,=3=23= $ 748,103 

Construction in progress ......................... . 

Total general fixed assets .................. . 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Totals 

$ 182,971 

301,923 

309,016 

330,567 

236,905 

283,593 

1,644,975 

139,824 

$ 1,784,799 

South Carolina had a continental flair for architecture as the Victorian Era reached its prime. This home in 
Anderson was built in 1876 by Nick Prevost for his bride and was modeled after the German Pavilion at the 
Centennial Exposition in Philadelphia, which was held that same year. 
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State of South Carolina 

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets by Function 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Balance 
Function July 1, 1992 Additions 

General governmental.. ............................. $ 173,712 $ 15,396 

Education .................................................. 296,463 9,371 

Individual and family services ................... 298,940 14,448 

Administration of justice ............................ 319,626 12,469 

Resources and economic development. .... 233,020 7,320 

Transportation ........................................... 264,476 29,625 

Construction in progress ............................ 87,351 80,089 

Total general fixed assets ..................... $ 1,673,588 $ 168,718 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Balance 
Retirements June 30, 1993 

$ 6,137 $ 182,971 

3,911 301,923 

4,372 309,016 

1,528 330,567 

3,435 236,905 

10,508 283,593 

27,616 139,824 

$ 57,507 $ 1,784,799 

At the turn of the century, pharmacies, such as Regal's Drug Store, were a favorite gathering place for 
businessmen discussing the news of the day. 
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Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

South Carolina has always had its share of natural disasters-hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes and the like. 
During the summer of 1908, in what many call "The Great Flood," rainstorms brought the Congaree River to its 
high water mark of thirty-six feet and threatened the old Gervais Street bridge. The Columbia area suffered about 
$200,000 in damages. Bridges and telephone/telegraph lines were downed and five lives were lost. 
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Higher Education Funds 
Financial activities of the State's higher education 

institutions are reported in the Higlier Education 
Funds. The four-year institutions are: 

The Citadel 
Clemson University 
The College of Charleston (including an 

Undergraduate School, krio\\n as the 
College of Charleston, and a Graduate 
SchoOl, now known as the University of 
Charleston) 

Francis Manon University 
Lander University (formerly Lander College) 
The Medical University of South Carolina 
South Carolina State Universi_ty 
The University of South Carohna 
Winthrop University 

Area technical colleges include: 

Aiken Technical College 
Central Carolina Techiiical Collegs: 
Chesterfield-Marlboro Technicalt:ollege 
Denmark Technical College 
Florence-Darlin~on Techiiical College 
Greenville Techiiical College 
Hom-Georgeto\\n Technical College 
Midlands Technical College 
Orangeburg-Calhoun Teclinical College 
Piedriiont Technical College 
fu>artanbur..g Technical COllege 
Technical College of the Lowcountry 
Tri-Coun_ty Teclinical College 
Trident Technical College 
Williamsburg Technicar College 
York Technical College 

Higher Education Funds include the following 
individUal funds: 

CURRENT FUNDS 

Current Funds account for resources that higher 
educ~tion instiqitiOI}S may 1;1se . for any purpose in 
carrymg out thetr pnmary obJeCtives. 

Unrestricted Current Funds. These funds 
account for currently expendable resources which 
may be either completely unrestricted or designated 
by mstitution officials for specific purposes. 

State of South Carolina 

Restricted Current Funds. These funds 
account for resources that donors or other outside 
agencies have restricted for specific current operating 
purposes. 

LOAN FUNDS 

Loan Funds account for resources available for 
~Oal}S tQ students, faculty, or staff of higher education 
mst1tut10ns. 

ENDOWMENT AND SIMILAR FUNDS 

These funds account for endowments and quasi
endowments. These funds are similar to trust funds. 
The State must comply with the terms of any 
applicable agreements. 

PLANT FUNDS 

Plant Funds account for transactions involving 
phy~ic~l properties of the higher education 
mst1tut10ns. 

Unexpended Plant Funds. The Unexpended 
Plant Funds subgroup accounts for resources that 
institutions have avaifable to finance the acquisition, 
constructio~1 or ~mprov~ment of physical. properties. 
Resources mat mst1tut10ns have set astde for the 
renewal and replacement of institutional properties 
are also recoraed in this fund. Assets under 
construction may be accounted for in this fund or in 
the Investment in Plant Funds. 

Retirement of Indebtedness Funds. The 
Retirement of Indebtedness Funds subgroup includes 
amounts to pay debt service and to retire 
indebtedness on institutional properties. 

Investment in Plant Funds. The Investment in 
Plant Funds subgroup accounts for resources that the 
institution has expended for (and thus has invested in) 
its properties ancf any related outstanding debt. 

AGENCY FUNDS 

Agency Funds account for amounts that higher 
educatiOn institutions hold as custodians or fiScal 
agents for others. 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDS 
June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents ............................................. 
Investments .................................................................... 
Receivables, net: 
Accounts ....................................................................... 
Patient and student. ...................................................... 
Student loans ................................................................ 
Loans and notes ........................................................... 

Due from Federal government and other grantors .......... 
Due from other Higher Education Funds ........................ 
Due from other funds ..................................................... 
Inventories ...................................................................... 
Property, plant, and equipment. ...................................... 
Other assets ................................................................... 

Total assets •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ......................... 
Due to other Higher Education Funds ............................. 
Due to other funds .......................................................... 
lnterfund payables .......................................................... 
Advances from other funds ............................................. 
Deferred revenues .......................................................... 
Deposits .......................................................................... 
Amounts held in custody for others ................................. 
Notes payable ................................................................. 
General obligation bonds payable ................................... 
Revenue bonds payable .................................................. 
Certificates of participation payable ................................ 
Capital lease and installment debt obligations payable .... 
Compensated absences payable .................................... 
Other liabilities ................................................................ 

Total liabilities ••••••••••••••••••.•.•..••.•..••.•..••••.••.•.•••...•.•... 

Fund Balances: 
Investment in plant. ......................................................... 
Reserved for: 

Restricted fund balance ................................................ 
Federal government grants refundable ......................... 
Endowment and similar funds ....................................... 
Encumbrances .............................................................. 
Other special purposes ................................................. 

Unreserved: 
Designated for special purposes ................................... 
Designated for quasi-endowments ................................ 
Undesignated ................................................................ 

Total fund balances •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Total liabilities and fund balances •••..••................. 
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CURRENT FUNDS 

Unrestricted Restricted 

$ 144,607 $ 9,325 
7,109 1,090 

2,376 
63,785 

124 
25,135 34,264 
16,663 327 
5,999 1,775 

22,169 

12,920 368 

$ 300,763 $ 47,273 

$ 68,605 $ 5,728 
5,856 12,795 
5,767 818 

28,652 580 
4,063 

55,949 8 
2,324 5 

171,216 19,934 

27,339 

1,344 
6,776 

31,630 

89,797 

129,547 27,339 

$ 300,763 $ 47,273 

ENDOWMENT 
LOAN AND SIMILAR 

FUNDS FUNDS 

$ 3,443 $ 24,800 
553 19,385 

73 51 

39,007 

23 
64 2 

127 885 

$ 43,290 $ 45,123 

$ 501 $ 226 
42 7 

544 233 

3,507 
38,818 

20,481 

421 
24,409 

42,746 44,890 

$ 43,290 $ 45,123 



State of South Carolina 

PLANT FUNDS 
Retirement Investment 

of in AGENCY 
Unex~ended Indebtedness Plant FUNDS Eliminations Totals 

$ 93,798 $ 67,250 $ $ 4,593 $ $ 347,816 
5,605 162 33,904 

569 4,057 7,126 
63,785 
39,007 

124 
1,796 61,218 
5,604 851 31 (23,542) 
1,193 1,389 121 (1 ,630) 8,847 

22,169 
50,868 2,267,873 2,318,741 

2 136 2 58 14,498 

$ 159,435 $ 69,788 $ 2,267,875 $ 8,860 $ (25,172) $ 2,917,235 

$ 13,944 $ 17,520 $ $ 4,909 $ $ 111,433 
2,163 2,675 4 (23,542) 

5 1,286 (1 ,630) 6,246 
1,256 1,256 
5,557 5,557 

29,232 
149 4,212 

3,788 3,788 
4,782 14,702 19,484 
5,165 38,065 43,230 

28,253 202,747 231,000 
19,335 19,335 
13,168 13,168 

55,957 
4,698 3 10 7,041 

59,010 21,481 294,833 8,860 (25,172) 550,939 

1,973,042 1,973,042 

63,881 48,307 143,034 
38,818 
20,481 

1,344 
95 6,871 

36,449 68,500 
24,409 
89,797 

100,425 48,307 1,973,042 2,366,296 

$ 159,435 $ 69,788 $ 2,267,875 $ 8,860 $ !25,1721 $ 2,917,235 
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In the 1920s and 1930s, South Carolina cities abandoned their trolley lines for motorized buses. This Charleston 
bus heads south on Meeting Street in the shadow of Saint Michael's Church around 1930. 
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State of South Carolina 

Schedules--Budgetary General Fund 
The Budgeta!Y General Fund, which corresponds 

to the General Funds column in the AQPropnation 
Act is the State's _general operating lUnd. The 
Budgetary General Fund differs sigmficantly from 
the GAAP-basis General Fund. 

The schedules in this section have been prepared 

using the budgetary basis of accounting. In South 
CarOlina, the budgetary basis of accounting is the 
cash basts with certain exceptions. The Notes to the 
Financial Statements include a more detailed 
description of the budgetary basis of accounting. 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

South Carolina's county seats were busy, prosperous centers of activity in the early 1900s. Main Street in Bamberg 
was also showing signs of the State's conversion from horse and buggy to the automobile. 
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State of South Carolina 

Appropriation Activity 
BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Function 

Legislative ................................................................................ . 
Judicial. .................................................................................... . 
Executive and administrative ..................................................... . 
Educational ............................................................................... . 
Health ....................................................................................... . 
Social rehabilitation services ..................................................... . 
Correctional. ............................................................................. . 
Conservation, natural resources, and development.. ................. . 
Regulatory ................................................................................ . 
Transportation .......................................................................... . 
Debt service .............................................................................. . 
Miscellaneous ........................................................................... . 
Highway Department. ............................................................... . 
Transfer to designation for capital and nonrecurring .................. . 

Totals-appropriations for expenditures .......................•..•• 

Original 
Appropriations 

$ 24,747 
28,507 

168,291 
1,873,575 

587,504 
129,115 
256,290 
120,125 
73,863 
2,659 

159,699 
239,001 

620 
66,109 

$ 3,730,105 

Note: See Note 2 to the Financial Statements for information on budgetary accounting. 

a 

The adjustments shown above (expressed in thousands) may be summarized as follows: 

Appropriations brought forward from 1991-92 ..................... . 
Open-ended appropriations ................................................. . 
Supplemental appropriations ............................................... . 
Budget and Control Board actions ....................................... . 

Total adjustments ........................................................ . 
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a 

Adjustments 

$ 3,821 
(117) 

(48,421) 
(12,031) 
(12,864) 

2,646 
(4,213) 
(2, 159) 
(1,712) 

(16) 

(4,645) 
(25) 

(66, 109) 

$ (145,845) 

$ 7,586 
5,179 

32,500 
(191,110) 

$ (145,845) 



State of South Carolina 

Appropriations 
Adjusted To Be Lapsed 

A~~ro~riations Ex~enditures Carried Forward A~~ro~riations 

$ 

$ 

28,568 $ 
28,390 

119,870 
1,861,544 

574,640 
131,761 
252,077 
117,966 

72,151 
2,643 

159,699 
234,356 

595 

3,584,260 $ 

24,808 $ 3,562 $ 
28,373 

100,763 18,569 
1,826,447 34,944 

573,976 
131,624 9 
250,238 41 
116,590 172 

71,486 32 
2,545 64 

159,473 
234,321 

595 

3,521,239 $ 57,393 $ 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

198 
17 

538 
153 
664 
128 

1,798 
1,204 

633 
34 

226 
35 

5,628 

Sheriff John C. McCain (third from right) and members of the Richland County Sherifrs 
department are pictured in 1913. Behind them to the right is the home of Dr. James Woodrow, 
uncle of President Woodrow Wilson and one-time President of the University of South 
Carolina. His home was tom down in 1949 to make room for the Richland County Library. 
The multi-storied building is the YMCA, newly-erected in 1913 and still in use. 
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State of South Carolina 

General Fund Reserve Activity 
BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Article III, Section 36, of the South Carolina 
Constitution establishes requirements relating to the 
General Fund Reserve a reserve primarily designed 
to prevent Budgetary General Fund deficits. Prior to 
November 4, 1~84, the reserve was considered fully 
funded whenever it equaled five percent of the 
Budgetary General Fund budgetary-oasis revenue of 
the fatest completed fiscal year. On November 4, 
1984, a Constitutional amendment changed the 
funding requirement from five to four percent of the 
Budgetary General Fund revenue of the latest 
completed fiscal year. Provisions of the amendment 
also allowed the percentage rate to be reduced to 
three or increased to five percent by a special vote of 

Start-of-
Fiscal Year Ended Year 

June 30 Balance De~osits 

1984 $ 40,012 $58,485 
1985 98,497 
1986 89,128 
1987 51,n5 23,606 
1988 75,381 25,093 
1989 86,092 7,217 
1990 87,999 
1991 87,999 6,115 
1992 33,427 4,729 
1993 66,832 

the General Assembly. An act which took effect on 
March 9, 1988-tleduced the percentage rate to three 
percent. On l"'ovember 4, 1988 a Constitutional 
amendment was P.assed whtch permanently changed 
the funding r~uirement for the Reserve to tlifee 
percent of the Budgetary General Fund revenue of the 
latest completed fiscal year. 

If amounts are withdrawn from the Reserve, the 
State Constitution establishes a schedule for restoring 
the Reserve to full funding within three years. 

Key amounts (exP.ressed in thousands) for the 
General Fund Reserve for the last ten fiscal years are: 

Actual 
End-of-

End-of-Year Full-Funding Year% 
Withdrawals Balance Amount Funded d 

$ $ 98,497 $ 98,497• 100% 
(9,369) 89,128 89,128 b 100% 

(37,353) 51,775 95,735 b 54% 
75,381 100,372 b 75% 

(14,382) 86,092 80,783 c 107% 
(5,310) 87,999 87,999 c 100% 

87,999 94,114 c 94% 
(60,687) 33,427 98,843 c 34% 
(38, 156) 99,163 c 0% 

66,832 100,248 c 67% 

a Equals 5% of the Budgetary General Fund revenues for the latest completed fiscal year. 
b Equals 4% of the Budgetary General Fund revenues for the latest completed fiscal year. 
c Equals 3% of the Budgetary General Fund revenues for the latest completed fiscal year. 
d Equals (End-of-Year Balance/Full Funding Amount) x 100. 
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Funds Earmarked for Public Education 
BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Gross budgetary-basis revenues: 
Retail sales tax (4%) and excise tax--casual sales ................ . 
Alcoholic liquors tax--60% portion ......................................... . 
Beer and wine tax--penalties and fines .................................. . 
Soft drinks tax ....................................................................... . 
Commercial nuclear waste tax .............................................. . 
Gross budgetary-basis revenues ..••................••••••••......•.•••• 

Total budgetary-basis revenues earmarked for public 
education (95.5% of gross budgetary-basis revenues) •..... 

Budgetary-basis expenditures: 
Department of Education ...................................................... . 
State Board of Technical and Comprehensive Education ...... . 
Educational Television Commission ...................................... . 
Wil Lou Gray Opportunity School.. ........................................ . 
School for the Deaf and Blind ................................................ . 
John De La Howe School... ................................................... . 

Total budgetary-basis expenditures for public education .. . 
Excess of budgetary-basis expenditures over revenues 

earmarked for public education ......................................... . 

State of South Carolina 

$ 1,250,619 
17,743 

346 
23,470 

3,741 
1,295,919 

1,237,603 

1,173,762 
117,187 
17,389 
2,630 

10,101 
3,255 

1,324,324 

$ 86,721 

Part I Section 1, of the 1992-93 Appropriation 
Act and S'ections 12-21-1130;..12-33-30, ~8-~7-175, 
and 61-13-520 of the South Larolina COde of Laws 
require that the State's portion of those Budgetary 
General Fund revenues shown above be expendea 
only to support the SP.ecific _public education agencies 
listed above (incluaing aebt service on Capital 
Improvement Bonds applicable to those agencies). 
These legal requirements are considerecf to be 
satisfied if the amount of Budgetary General Funds 
expended for these particular agencies exceeds the 
State's portion of the specified revenues. 

latest completed fiscal year's total Budgetary General 
Fund revenues to local governments. Accordingly, 
the State's portion of the above revenues is ninety
five and one-half percent (95.5%) of the gross 
revenues. 

Title 6, Chapter 27 of the South Carolina Code 
of Laws is known as the State Aid to Subdivisions 
Act. That Act requires the State to apprwriate not 
less than four and one-half percent {4.5 %) of the 

Legal-basis debt service expenditures on Capital 
Improvement Bonds applicabfe to the designated 
public education agencies could not be determined. If 
available, this amount would increase both 
expenditures and the excess of expenditures over 
revenues earmarked for public educatiOn. Records of 
the State Treasurer's Office show that Capital 
Improvement Bond proceeds of $1.921 million were 
allocated to the designated public education agencies 
in 1992-93. 
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The store fronts of Charleston's historic King Street have survived hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes and modem 
urban redevelopment. It was a busy thoroughfare in 1901, and it still is. 
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State of South Carolina 

Required Supplementary Information 
Required supJ?lementary information consists of 

statements, scheoules, statistical data or other 
information which, according to the Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board, is necessary to 
supplement, although ~ot required to be a part of, the 
11:eneral nurnose fin;mc.I::~I st::~i"f'mPnt<: 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

For seventy-four years, the lighthouse on Hunting Island in Beaufort County was the beacon which protected ships 
entering Saint Helena Sound. Today it is a major coastal landmark and part of the South Carolina's extensive State 
park system. 
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State of South Carolina 

National Guard Pension System Historical Trend Information 
Last Seven Fiscal Years 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Anal~sis of Funding Progress 

Unfunded 
Net Assets Pension PBOasa 

Fiscal Year Available Benefit Annual Percentage 
Ended for Obligation Percentage Unfunded Covered of Covered 
June30 Benefits (PBO) Funded PBO Palroll Palroll 

1987 $ 0 $ b 0% $ b $ 38,293 b 
1988 0 b 0% b 40,748 b 
1989 0 b 0% b 41 ,611 b 
1990 0 b 0% b 48,818 b 
1991a 0 18,778 0% 18,778 48,827 38.5% 
1992 0 19,934 0% 19,934 50,404 39.6% 
1993 0 23,300 0% 23,300 48,385 48.2% 

aThe first actuarial valuation of the National Guard Pension System was prepared as of July 1, 1990. 

bNo actuarial valuation was prepared for these years, but all of the PBO was unfunded. 

Analysis of the dollar amounts of net assets 
available for benefits, pension benefit obligation 
{PBO), and unfunded pension benefit obligation in 
IsolatiOn can be misleading. Expressing the net 
assets available for benefits as a percentage of the 
J?ension benefit obli~tion provides one indication of 
the National Guardl'ension System's funding status 
on a going-concern basis. Analysis of this percentage 
over time indicates whether the system is becoming 
financially stronger or weaker. Generally, the greater 

this percentage, the stronger the system. Trends in 
unfunded pension benefit obJ!gation and annual 
covered paY.foll are both afiected Q)' inflation. 
Expressing the unfunded pension benefit obligation 
as a percentage of annual covered payroll 
approximately acfjusts for the effects of inflatiOn and 
atds analysis of the System's progress made in 
accumulatmg sufficient assets to pay benefits when 
due. Generally, the smaller thts percentage, the 
stronger the system. 

Revenues b~ Source and Expenses b~ T~pe 

Revenues (Employer Contributions) 

Fiscal Year Percentage d 

Ended of Covered Expenses 
June 30 Amount Palroll (Benefits) 

1987 $ 519 1.4% $ 519 
1988 581 1.4% 581 
1989 679 1.6% 679 
1990 786 1.6% 786 
1991 905 1.9% 905 
1992 1,043 2.1% 1,043 
1993 1,170 2.4% 1,170 

cNo employee contributions are required for this defined benefit retirement system. There is no investment income because there are no 
assets available. 

dThere are no refunds because there are no employee contributions. In accordance with State law, the State Adjutant General's Office 
administers the system. Costs of administering the system are inseparable from other administrative expenses of the Adjutant General's 
Office. The cost of administering the system, however, is very small. 

The above information is presented only for years available. Additional years will be added as available. 
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Turn-of-the-century South Carolina was already warming up to golf, a game that would become a major industry 
almost a century later. This early game, with its fashionable obser\'ers and knickered golfer, featured sand 
"greens" at the Kirkwood Hotel in Camden. 
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Statistical 
Section 

There were no multi-story parking garages in 
Spartanburg's Morgan Square in 1884 when 
farmers arrived from the nearby countryside by 
horse and wagon for a day of marketing and 
provisioning for the days ahead. 



State of South Carolina 

Expenditures by Function 
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 

b 

Last Six Fiscal Years 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

a 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 

Function 1988 1989 1990 1991 
c 

General governmental. ............. ·. $ 232,243 $ 261,929 $ 314,764 $ 251,692 
Education ................................ 223,623 240,491 270,237 262,697 
Individual and family services ... 1,316,828 1,417,641 1,811,417 2,097,614 
Administration of justice ............ 217,125 256,358 282,580 300,250 
Resources and economic 

development. .......................... 101,041 113,672 128,101 132,970 
Transportation .......................... 190,345 249,285 265,443 274,895 
Miscellaneous ........................... 50 70 30 
Capital outlay ........................... 466,626 412,357 369,219 402,258 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement. ................ 77,521 84,680 62,482 66,715 
Interest and fiscal charges ...... 44,684 46,077 47,902 50,878 

Intergovernmental... .................. 1,641,939 1,746,987 1,969,425 2,007,557 

Total expenditures ................ $ 4,512,025 $ 4,829,547 $ 5,521,600 $ 5,847,526 

a 

All Governmental Fund Types include General, Special Revenue, and Capital Projects Funds. 
b 

1992 

$ 234,092 
241,230 

2,489,321 
304,488 

128,059 
274,957 

429,896 

94,538 
53,943 

2,033,486 

$6,284,010 

1993 

$ 247,452 
254,464 

2,682,162 
312,961 

131,021 
290,740 

456,707 

104,316 
53,316 

2,096,679 

$6,629,818 

The fiscal year ended June 30, 1988, was the first year for which the State prepared complete financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, this schedule does not present data for 
earlier years. 

Until July 1, 1990, General Governmental expenditures included premiums for retiree health and dental insurance 
for all functional areas. Since July 1, 1990, the total premium cost has been allocated among the various functional 
areas. This resulted in a decrease in General Governmental expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991. 
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State of South Carolina 

Revenues by Source 
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 

b 

Last Six Fiscal Years 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

a 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 

Sources 1988 1989 1990 1991 

Taxes: 
Individual income .................... $1,130,898 $1,225,648 $1,361,839 $1,377,825 
Retail sales and use ................ 1,277,447 1,359,200 1,464,989 1,463,941 
Other ...................................... 904,243 958,970 918,455 914,736 

Licenses, fees, and permits ....... 134,083 150,859 163,202 198,253 
Interest and other investment 
income ................................... 72,040 80,327 83,777 78,092 

Federal. .................................... 1,316,607 1,391,309 1,821,052 2,001,490 
Departmental services .............. 104,867 107,724 113,703 120,098 
Contributions ........................... 26,324 30,717 32,056 54,424 
Rnesandpenames ................... 22,777 24,235 31,034 31,643 
Other ........................................ 26,932 45,247 37,851 33,856 

Total revenues ...................... $5,016,218 $5,374,236 $6,027,958 $6,274,358 

a 

All Governmental Fund Types include General, Special Revenue, and Capital Projects Funds. 
b 

1992 

$1,386,724 
1,515,223 

911,110 
218,726 

55,708 
2,347,896 

138,610 
81,421 
43,610 
43,853 

$6,742,881 

1993 

$1,481,592 
1,628,766 

983,586 
300,699 

44,756 
2,443,881 

155,546 
101,486 
44,182 
52,894 

$7,237,388 

The fiscal year ended June 30, 1988, was the first year for which the State prepared complete financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, this schedule does not present data for earlier 
years. 
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State of South Carolina 

Income and Sales Tax Rates 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal 

Year Individual Corporate Retail 

Ended Income Income Sales 

a 

June 30 Tax Tax 

1984 2-7% 6% 

1985 2-7% 6% 

1986 2-7% 6% 

1987 3-7% 6% 

1988 3-7% 5.5% 

1989 3-7% 5% 

1990 3-7% 5% 

1991 2.75- 7% 5% 

1992 2.50- 7% 5% 

1993 2.50-7% 5% 

Excludes the 2% accommodations tax and the local option sales tax. 

Source: The State Tax Commission 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Tax 

4% 

5% 

5% 

5% 

5% 

5% 

5% 

5% 

5% 

5% 

Steam-driven equipment was the order of the day for maintaining the unpaved streets of 
Anderson early in the 1900s. It was a job which fell to the Superintendent of City Streets and 
his crew of laborers. 
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State of South Carolina 

Net General Obligation Bonds and Notes Per Capita 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

a 

b 

c 

Debt Payable Net General 

Gross From Higher Net General Bonded 
c 

Fiscal Bonded Education Bonded Debt 
a b c 

Year Ended Population Debt Funds Debt Per 

June 30 (Thousands) (Thousands) (Thousands) (Thousands) Capita 

1984 3,262 $ 611,170 $ 36,470 $ 574,700 $ 176.18 

1985 3,293 626,645 31,620 595,025 180.69 

1986 3,332 658,515 28,270 630,245 189.15 

1987 3,369 693,270 28,030 665,240 197.46 

1988 3,400 681,425 28,185 653,240 192.13 

1989 3,444 709,165 25,925 683,240 198.39 

1990 3,498 807,911 28,071 779,840 222.94 

1991 3,544 828,650 28,560 800,090 225.76 

1992 3,590 876,305 44,570 831,735 231.68 

1993 3,636 884,025 43,230 840,795 231.24 

State Data Center, Research and Statistical Services Division, State Budget and Control Board. 

Includes general obligation bonds payable and general obligation bond anticipation notes of both the General 
Long-Term Obligations Account Group and the Higher Education Funds and notes payable in the General 
Long-Term Obligations Account Group. 

Net general bonded debt is the gross general bonded debt less the general obligation debt payable not 
expected to be repaid through general governmental resources (i.e. the debt payable from Higher Education 
Funds). 

Note: Assessed value data is not presented because the State of South Carolina does not receive property tax 
revenue. 
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State of South Carolina 

Computation of Legal Debt Margin 
June 30, 1993 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Section 57-11-240 ofthe South Carolina Code of 
Laws limits State highw'!:Y bonds outstanding to 
$150 million. LikeWise, Section 59-107-90 hmits 
State institution bonds legally outstanding to 
$60 million. 

Furthermore, Section 11-11-430 states: "The 
issuance of _general obligation bonds of the State 
must be limifed so that The maximum annual debt 
service on all general obligation bonds of the State 

(excludjng hjghway bonds, State in~ti.tuti9n bonds 
tax antiCipatiOn notes, and bond anticipation notes} 
may not exceed five percent of the general revenues 
of the State for tlie fiscal year next preceding 
(excludin_g revenues which are authorized to be 
pledged fOr State highway bonds and State institution 
bond's)." 

State highway bond limitation ....................................................................................................... . $ 150,000 
Less: State highway bonds outstanding at June 30, 1993 ........................................................... . 

Legal debt margin at June 30, 1993--highway bonds .............................................................. . $ 150,000 

State institution bond limitation ......... : ........................................................................................... . $ 60,000 
Less: State institution bonds and notes outstanding at June 30, 1993 ....................................... .. 43,230 

Legal debt margin at June 30, 1993-institution bonds .......................................................... .. $ 16,770 

1991-1992 Budgetary General Fund revenues ........................................................................... .. $ 3,341,587 
Less: 1991-1992 transfers for highway and institution bond debt service recorded as 

Budgetary General Fund revenues ............................................................................................ . 5 514 

1991-1992 net Budgetary General Fund revenues .................................................................. .. $ 3,336,073 

5% of 1991-1992 net Budgetary General Fund revenues ........................................................... .. $ 166,804 
Less: 1992-1993 net Budgetary General Fund debt service for general obligation bonds 

excluding highway and institution bonds ................................................................................... . 152,428 

Legal debt service margin at June 30, 1993--general obligation bonds excluding 
highway and institution bonds ............................................................................................... . $ 14,376 
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State of South Carolina 

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures 
for General Obligation Debt to Total 

a 

General Governmental Expenditures 
b 

Last Six Fiscal Years 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

a 

b 

Fiscal Ratio of 
Year Total General Debt Service to 

Ended Debt Governmental General Governmental 
June 30 Princi~al Interest Service Ex~enditures Ex~enditures 

1988 $ 77,521 $ 44,684 $122,205 $ 4,512,025 2.71% 
1989 84,680 46,077 130,757 4,829,547 2.71% 
1990 62,482 47,902 110,384 5,521,600 2.00% 
1991 66,715 50,878 117,593 5,847,526 2.01% 
1992 94,538 53,943 148,481 6,284,010 2.36% 
1993 104,316 53,316 157,632 6,629,818 2.38% 

General Governmental Expenditures includes the General, Special Revenue, and Capital Projects Funds. 

The State did not prepare financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
until the fiscal year ended June 30, 1988. Comparable data for earlier years is not available. 

Photograph is not available 
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With a present faculty of 226 and a student enrollment of nearly 5,000, South Carolina State 
University has experienced significant gro"th since it was established March 3, 1896. These seven 
women and two men were the school's first faculty members. 
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State of South Carolina 
a 

Revenue Bond Coverage 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

b 

SOUTH CAROLINA PUBLIC SERVICE AUTHORITY 

Fiscal 

Year Direct Net Revenue 

Ended Gross Operating Available for 
c 

June 30 Revenues Expenses Debt Service 

1984 $ 358,699 $ 238,139 $ 120,560 
1985 430,622 261,153 169,469 
1986 455,000 263,131 191,869 
1987 480,059 276,036 204,023 
1988 491,980 290,324 201,656 
1989 546,039 330,007 216,032 
1990 554,794 345,458 209,336 
1991 553,980 345,169 208,811 
1992 562,578 347,684 214,894 
1993 546,878 335,661 211,217 

SOUTH CAROLINA STATE PORTS AUTHORITY 

Fiscal 

Year Direct Net Revenue 

Ended Gross Operating Available for 
c 

June 30 Revenues Expenses Debt Service 

1984 $ 29,252 $ 20,568 $ 8,684 
1985 33,147 24,129 9,018 
1986 30,960 25,388 5,572 
1987 35,906 24,133 11,n3 
1988 43,408 25,915 17,493 
1989 43,959 27,179 16,780 
1990 45,098 27,190 17,908 
1991 46,554 29,741 16,813 
1992 46,414 28,756 17,658 
1993 45,335 30,102 15,233 

a 
Computations are based on data provided by component units. There may be classification differences between this data and data found 
elsewhere in this report. 

b 
Gross revenues for years before 1990 have been restated to exclude interest income. 

c 
Excludes depreciation and interest expense. 
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State of South Carolina 

Debt Service Reguirements 

Coverage 

Princi(!al Interest Total Ratio 

$ 7,795 $ 160,259 $ 168,054 0.72 
9,060 159,634 168,694 1.00 

10,500 150,224 160,724 1.19 
27,630 144,190 171,820 1.19 
33,995 138,675 172,670 1.17 
31,390 134,908 166,298 1.30 
33,045 133,606 166,651 1.26 
35,571 131,197 166,768 1.25 
41,004 133,619 174,623 1.23 
69,208 129,894 199,102 1.06 

Debt Service Reguirements 

Coverage 

Princi(!al Interest Total Ratio 

$ 642 $ 1,123 $ 1,765 4.92 
831 1,096 1,927 4.68 
777 1,050 1,827 3.05 
915 1,005 1,920 6.13 
974 945 1,919 9.12 
956 1,395 2,351 7.14 
514 2,207 2,721 6.58 

1,015 1,605 2,620 6.42 
1,090 1,854 2,944 6.00 

300 4,856 5,156 2.95 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 
a 

Revenue Bond Coverage (Continued) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

d e 

SOUTH CAROLINA HOUSING FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Fiscal 

Year Direct 

Ended Gross Principal Operating 
c 

June 30 Revenues Proceeds Exf!!nses 

1984 $ 51,701 $ 5,728 $ 2,961 
1985 68,728 9,474 4,124 
1986 91,597 28,588 5,215 
1987 83,269 70,526 4,323 
1988 75,642 42,642 4,472 
1989 69,673 41,888 4,758 
1990 71,017 45,028 5,853 
1991 73,984 44,896 5,265 
1992 68,431 103,495 5,314 
1993 64,465 94,666 5,797 

e 

SOUTH CAROLINA EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY 

Fiscal 

Year Direct 

Ended Gross Principal Operating 
c 

June 30 Revenues Proceeds Ex~enses 

1984 $ 12,424 $ 2,605 $ 2,106 
1985 13,741 3,563 1,348 
1986 13,179 5,209 2,053 
1987 13,916 7,086 2,328 
1988 14,387 8,954 3,436 
1989 19,541 10,677 7,477 
1990 24,312 15,249 4,663 
1991 22,969 18,087 8,320 
1992 32,411 23,163 9,025 
1993 35,697 28,402 11,299 

a 

Net Revenue 

Available for 

Debt Service 

$ 54,468 
74,078 

114,970 
149,472 
113,812 
106,803 
110,192 
113,615 
166,612 
153,334 

Net Revenue 

Available for 

Debt Service 

$ 12,923 
15,956 
16,335 
18,674 
19,905 
22,741 
34,898 
32,736 
46,549 
52,800 

Computations are based on data provided by component units. There may be classification differences between this data and data found 
elsewhere in this report. 

c 

Excludes depreciation and interest expense. 
d 

Direct operating expenses for years before 1989 have been restated to exclude housing assistance payments. 
e 

These entities use bond proceeds to make loans to non-governmental parties. Accordingly, principal proceeds received are included as a 
revenue in the calculation of Net Revenue Available for Debt Service. 
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State of South Carolina 

Debt Service Reguirements 

Coverage 

Princi~al Interest Total Ratio 

$ 7,660 $ 35,351 $ 43,011 1.27 
13,774 46,647 60,421 1.23 
24,726 63,818 88,544 1.30 
19,730 60,505 80,235 1.86 
10,075 53,435 63,510 1.79 
10,125 55,412 65,537 1.63 
10,010 56,661 66,671 1.65 
10,025 59,359 69,384 1.64 
11,325 59,468 70,793 2.35 
43,103 49,503 92,606 1.66 

Debt Service Reguirements 

Coverage 

Princi~al Interest Total Ratio 

$ 1,265 $ 7,516 $ 8,781 1.47 
1,785 7,450 9,235 1.73 
2,530 7,974 10,504 1.56 

20,650 6,965 27,615 0.68 
9,815 5,655 15,470 1.29 
7,330 7,477 14,807 1.54 

11,440 11,864 23,304 1.50 
17,665 12,419 30,084 1.09 
21,320 14,284 35,604 1.31 
22,480 17,507 39,987 1.32 
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State of South Carolina 

Demographic Statistics 
Last Ten Years 

Median 
a 

Per Capita Age School Unemployment 
a a b c 

Population Income (Years) Enrollment Rate 

at Year Ended at at at 

Year June 30 December 31 June 30 June 30 December 31 

1983 3,225,000 $ 9,323 29.6 673,871 10.1% 

1984 3,262,000 10,157 30.1 669,809 7.1% 

1985 3,293,000 10,831 29.8 668,985 6.9% 

1986 3,332,000 11,585 30.1 670,980 6.2% 

1987 3,369,000 12,283 30.6 672,943 5.6% 

1988 3,400,000 13,210 31.0 676,847 4.5% 

1989 3,444,000 13,838 31.4 678,050 4.3% 

1990 3,497,800 15,043 31.7 677,356 5.5% 

1991 3,543,740 15,391 32.2 681,717 6.2% 

1992 3,589,680 15,989 32.6 685,744 5.7% 

1993 3,635,620 d 32.9 688,513 d 

Sources: 

a 

State Data Center, Research and Statistical Services Division, State Budget and Control Board 
b 

South Carolina Department of Education 
c 

South Carolina Employment Security Commission 
d 

Not yet available. 
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State of South Carolina 

Property Value, Construction, and Bank Deposits 
Last Ten Years 
(Dollars in Millions) 

Nonresidential 
Construction 

Number of 
Units at Value at 

Year December 31 December 31 

1983 7,588 $ 419 

1984 8,512 617 

1985 6,744 659 

1986 6,761 743 

1987 7,283 835 

1988 6,926 763 

1989 6,627 707 

1990 6,877 788 

1991 6,811 670 

1992 6,329 494 

1993 d d 

a 

Residential 
Construction 

Number of 
Units at Value at 

December 31 December31 

35,322 $ 1,184 

45,003 1,573 

44,190 1,592 

40,390 1,581 
b 

26,991 1,489 
b 

25,563 1,438 
b 

20,530 1,252 
b 

22,454 1,475 
b 

19,309 1,372 
b 

20,853 1,585 

d d 

Property taxes do not represent a source of revenue for the State. 
b 

Bank 
Deposits at 

December 31 

$ 16,992 

19,061 

20,886 

22,907 

23,612 

26,022 

27,849 

29,091 

29,528 

29,111 

Beginning with 1987, the number of mobile home permits is not reported. 
c 

a 

Property Value 

Nonresidential Residential 
at at 

June 30 June 30 

c c 

$ 23,339 $ 24,748 

24,879 25,754 

25,915 27,149 

28,364 29,114 

34,127 31,241 

34,936 33,869 

37,079 38,852 

39,089 41,220 

e e 

e e 

The State began compiling this data on a statewide basis in 1984 in connection with the passage of the State 
Education Finance Act. For earlier years, this data was maintained only by the forty-six county governments. 

d 

e 

Not yet available. 

Due to legislation requiring that tax assessments be based on the prior year's property value, neither the 1992 
nor 1993 information is yet available. 

Sources: 1993 South Carolina Economic Report, State Budget and Control Board; State Tax Commission 
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State of South Carolina 
a 

Largest Manufacturing Companies 
December 31, 1992 

Number of Plants 
Name in South Carolina 

Westinghouse Electric Corporation ............ . 6 

Springs Industries, Incorporated ................. . 21 

Milliken & Company ................................... . 30 

Michelin Tire Corporation ........................... . 4 

Charleston Naval Shipyard 
(U.S. Department of the Navy) ................. . 1 

JPS Textile Group ..................................... . 7 

HoechstAG ............................................... . 5 

Greenwood Mills, Incorporated ................... . 9 

Du Pont De Nemours, E I & Company ....... . 4 

Ingersoll-Rand Company ........................... . 5 

AB Electrolux Sweden ............................... . 2 

Spartan Mills .............................................. . 8 

Wellman, Incorporated ............................... . 3 

W. R. Grace & Company ........................... . 4 

Robert Bosch GmbH .................................. . 3 

Allied-Signal, Incorporated ......................... . 5 

Kemet Electronics Corporation ................... . 2 

Graniteville Company ................................ . 7 

Sonoco Products Company ......................... . 3 

Ryobi North America, Incorporated ............ . 2 

Sara Lee Corporation ................................. . 5 

Owens-Corning Fiberglas Corporation ....... . 3 

Cooper Industries, 1ncorporated ................. . 7 

Farley Industries ........................................ . 7 

Delta Woodside Industries, Incorporated .... . 7 

.. 

Number of Employees 
in South Carolina 

24,808 

12,975 

7,655 

6,300 

5,650 

4,157 

4,125 

3,686 

3,268 

2,819 

2,800 

2,695 

2,595 

2,539 

2,530 

2,504 

2,448 

2,446 

2,390 

2,300 

2,290 

2,278 

2,246 

2,082 

2,020 

Based on number of employees. This list includes all companies with 2,000 or more employees. 

Source: 1993 South Carolina Industrial Directory, provided to the Comptroller General's Office by the South 
Carolina Development Board. 
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Miscellaneous Statistics 
December 31, 1992 (Except as Noted) 

State of South Carolina 

a 

Date of ratification--U. S. Constitution.............................................................. 1788 

Form of government......................................................................................... Legislative-Executive-Judicial 
b 

Miles of State highways.................................................................................... 64,129 

Land area (square miles).................................................................................. 30,111 

State police protection: 

Police and sheriff districts ............................................................................ . 

Total number of sworn officers .................................................................... . 

Higher education (universities, colleges, and 

technical education centers): 

Number of campuses .................................................................................. . 

Number of students ..................................................................................... . 

Recreation: 

Number of State parks and historical sites ................................................... . 

Area of State parks ...................................................................................... . 

Area of forests ............................................................................................. . 

State employees--all funds (at June 30, 1993) ................................................ . 

Sources: 
a 

1992 Legislative Manual 
b 

Department of Highways and Public Transportation 
c 

State Data Center 
d 

State Law Enforcement Division 
e 

Commission on Higher Education 
I 

Department of Parks, Recreation, and Tourism 
g 

Forestry Commission 
h 

Budget and Control Board, Budget Division 

d 

265 
d 

8,038 

e 

58 
e 

169,193 

56 
I 

79,273 acres 
9 

77,480 acres 

67,620 
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Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Not since George Washington visited the capital in its early years had a President come to Columbia 
until William Howard Taft arrived on November 6, 1909. The day included a luncheon at the State 
House, a meeting with school children and students at the University of South Carolina, and a 
speech he delivered after this arrival at the old Fairgrounds. 
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Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

The South Caroliniana Library was the first free-standing college library in the nation. The library collects and 
preserves the books, papers, manuscripts, photographs and documents of individuals and institutions that have 
contributed to the history and culture of South Carolina. 
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5000 copies of this document were published at an estimated printing cost of$2.42 eaeh, and a total printing cost of 
$12,075. The FY 1993-94 Appropriation Act requires this information on printing cost be added to the document. 




